
Annual Report 2024

STANDING
SOLID
B R U I S E D  B U T  N O T  B E AT E N
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In what has become a norm in Pakistan, the year 2024 unleashed 
even more unprecedented economic di�culties. Businesses across 
all sectors took a serious beating, and Amreli Steels was no 
exception, experiencing its most challenging �nancial year to date. 
It may seem that this tough business environment has taken its toll 
on us, but our resolve to keep standing has become even more 
SOLID. Because we know that when the bell rings, the last man 
standing is the one who wins.
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THE POWER
PUNCH

VISION MISSION VALUES

VISION
Committed to strengthen the economy and society

MISSION
•  Be the brand of choice for all stakeholders
•  Empower people
•  Continue to invest in state-of-the-art steel manufacturing 

and associated technologies
•  Attain the highest standards of health and safety



CORE VALUES 
RESPECT
 We treat others the way we want to be treated 
Give respect - regardless 
We value diversity and believe in equality 
We value di�erences of opinions 
We respect the environment 

RESILIENCE 
We never give up 
We stand tall in adversity 
We embrace challenges 
We view failures and mistakes as learning opportuni-
ties 
We will win - if not immediately, then de�nitely 

INTEGRITY 
We deliver what we promise 
We uphold the highest standards of ethics and honor 

We act transparently 
We do the right thing 
We speak up when our Values are compromised 

DYNAMISM 
We stay ahead of the curve 
We change the game 
We are innovative and aggressive 
We are decisive and take calculated risks 
We are agile and move fast 

EXCELLENCE 
We give our best everyday 
We strive to excel in every aspect of our business 
We operate outside our comfort zone 
We adapt to best practices 
We believe in continuous improvement
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COMPANY PROFILE
Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in 1984 as a private limited 
Company and converted into a public unquoted Company in 2009. The Company 
enlisted on Pakistan Stock Exchange in December 2015 and is mainly engaged in 
manufacturing and sale of steel rebars and billets.

The Company is one of the largest manufacturers of steel reinforcement bars in 
Pakistan. The two re-rolling plants situated at S.I.T.E. Karachi and Dhabeji are using one 
of the most modern hot re-rolling technologies in the industry with a nameplate 
capacity of 180,000 metric tons and 425,000 metric tons of rebars per annum 
respectively.

Company’s Steel Melt Shop plant in Dhabeji, Sindh, is the largest billet manufacturing 
facility in Pakistan, boasting a nameplate capacity of 600,000 metric tons per year. This 
facility aims to bridge the supply-demand gap of Pakistan's steel industry. 
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Being the pioneer in Pakistani Steel Market not just in terms of technology but also market practices, Amreli Steels introduced the concept of Product 
brands for the 1st time in Pakistan in 2018. The objective of this initiative was to distinguish our di�erent products in a consumer-relevant way and to 
facilitate the end-user, who is in most cases a �rst time purchaser, in making the right decision.

These product brands followed the “Branded House” convention and their identities are closely linked to our Corporate Brand “Amreli Steels”.

Following are the product brands of Amreli Steels along with their unique features:

1.  Amreli Steels Maxima
• Based on ASTM 615
• Ideal for any type of construction – Residential, commercial, mega, infrastructure projects in selected seismic zones*
• Yield Strength 60,000 PSI (Minimum)
• Ultimate Tensile Strength 90,000 PSI
• Earthquake Resistant in select seismic zones
• consistent quality along the length due to Uniform Gauge
• Made from state of art meltshop and 5th generation red ring technology rolling mill for construction reinforcement

2.  Amreli Steels Xtreme
• Based on BS 4449    
• Ideal for Hi-rise buildings
• Yield Strength: 72,500 PSI (Minimum)
• Upto 15% consumption saving as compared to ASTM 615 , G-60 product
• Safely Weldable
• Earthquake Resistant in select seismic zones
• consistent quality along the length due to Uniform Gauge
• Made from state of art meltshop and 5th generation red ring technology rolling mill for construction reinforcement

3.  Amreli Steels Ultima
• Based on ASTM 706
• Earth Quake Resistant in all seismic zones
• Yield Strength: 60,000 PSI (minimum)
• Yield Strength: 78,000 PSI (Maximum)
• Ultimate Tensile Strength 80,000 PSI (minimum)
• Tensile to Yield Strength Ratio > 1.25
• Made from state of art meltshop and 5th generation red ring technology rolling mill for construction reinforcement
• consistent quality along the length due to Uniform Gauge
• Ideal for Residential and Commercial projects especially in high seismic activity zones

Besides these product brands, Amreli Steels is capable of delivering customized rebar solutions never before seen in our market thanks to its 
State-of-the-art plant based on 5th Generation Red Ring Technology, the �rst of its kind in Pakistan. 

Amreli Steels can o�er*
1. Rebars conforming to any international standard**
2. Rebars with Rib patterns as per any international standard**
3. Cut-to-length as per requirement from 6 meter to 16M in length**
4. Tensile to Yield Strength ratio 1.25 ratio in ASTM
5. 8 mm deformed   in Pakistan

*These customized services are available for large quantities only. Lead times will vary from case to case basis. 
** Subject to minimum quantity order.
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Retailers/Stockist Network: The company has presence throughout the Country with Regional O�ces, extensive Stockist / Retailers network
at all strategic locations.

GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE

Sindh
Baluchistan
Punjab
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

Total

128
02
58
12

200

Number Of Existing Retailers /Stockists

Regional O�ces
1. Hyderabad
2. Sukkur
3. Multan 
4. Lahore
5. Islamabad

Warehouses
1. Karachi 
2. Lahore
3. Islamabad

Head O�ce/ Sales O�ce 
1. Head o�ce – Clifton Karachi
2. Sales O�ce - Karsaz Karachi

Factories
1. Factory at Dhabeji
2. Factory at SITE Karachi
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FIGHTING THE
GOOD FIGHT

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
The objectives of the Company are aimed at achieving sustainable productivity, pro�tability, and high 
standards of safety, occupational health, and environmental care. This entails human resource development, 
value addition, the implementation of conservation measures, the up-gradation of existing facilities, and the 
installation of new facilities. The key objective of the Company’s management is to sustain market leadership 
in Pakistan’s steel industry and increase value for all the stakeholders. All the corporate goals are targeted 
towards this purpose, and the key performance indicators are de�ned to measure Amreli Steel’s improved 
performance in all spheres of its operations.

Maintaining competitive position in the core business, aligned with corporate goals, making every employee 
a self-assessor with de�ned yearly targets and transparent measuring criteria, we employ our brand name, 
unique organizational culture, professional excellence, and �nancial strength, diversifying in local and 
multinational environments through acquisitions and new projects, thus achieving synergy towards value 
creation for our stakeholders. Furthermore, the Company also re�nes and improves its human resource 
policies regularly. The Company’s market leadership is a re�ection of the achievement of its corporate goals 
through all-around strategic alignment.

Some of the most signi�cant strategic objectives of the Company are outlined as under:

• Be the brand of choice for all stakeholders;

• Empower people;

• Continue to invest in state-of-the-art steel manufacturing and associated technologies;

• Attain the highest standards of health and safety;

• Ensure that business policies and targets are in conformity with the national goals;

• Contribute in meeting the country’s demand for construction of steel products;

• Ensure customer satisfaction by providing best value, quality products and unmatched 
services;

• Target a reasonable return on the shareholders’ existing and projected investments;

• To function at optimal e�ciency in our business operations as a way to increase 
productivity;

• To introduce existing products into new markets and new products into new and existing 
markets;

• To have all products meet standards of excellence guidelines;

• To develop and implement a promotional plan to drive increased business;

• To develop the leadership abilities and potential of team.





Organizational Structure 

Board of
Directors

CEO

COO
(Strategy)

Audit
Committee

Internal
Audit

Marketing

Corporate
Social 

Responsibility
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Business

Development

Environment
Health &

Safety

Energy &
Sustainability

HR, Admin
& IR

Govt. &
Public

Relations

Corporate
A�airs &
Liaison
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COO
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Corporate
Compliance

Information 
TechnologySales

Finance,
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Taxation

Quality
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Credit 
Administration

& Control

Security &
Vigilance

Supply
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Abbas Akberali

Mr. Abbas Akberali founded Amreli Steels in 1972 and since then has led the Company to see it become the 
largest and most well-known steel bar manufacturer in Pakistan. Mr. Akberali brings unparalleled experience with 
a metallurgical engineering background combined with an MBA from Columbia University, New York. He has 
played an in�uential role in driving reforms aimed towards the growth of Pakistan’s steel industry. With a passion 
for increasing Pakistan’s literacy rate, Mr. Akberali is also a founding member of the Hunar Foundation and serves 
on the Board of other notable non-pro�t organizations.

Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Shayan Akberali

Mr. Shayan Akberali joined Amreli Steels in 2002 and over the past two decades he has played an integral role in 
growing the Company by overseeing production enhancement, technical development, planning and 
expanding the sales footprint of the Amreli brand across Pakistan. As the CEO of the largest rebar producing 
Company in Pakistan, Mr. Akberali’s focus is on operational excellence with passion for developing the HR capital 
of the Company. He has built a strong team of professionals across all verticals that bring functional expertise as 
well as leadership to steer the Company towards higher growth.

Chief Executive O�cer

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi is a highly accomplished professional engineer with a robust background in metallurgical 
engineering. His career spans over four decades, during which he has made signi�cant contributions to the local 
steel industry. Mr. Rizvi’s extensive experience encompasses a variety of roles, from hands-on positions on the 
shop �oor to strategic engineering management and high-level corporate roles. Throughout his illustrious career, 
Mr. Rizvi has demonstrated exceptional leadership and expertise. He has held pivotal positions such as Managing 
Director and Chief Executive in several prominent industries.

Independent Director

Sohail Feroz Shamsi

Mr. Sohail Feroz Shamsi is a highly capable and versatile professional with extensive experience across B2B, 
government, recruitment, training and apprenticeships, hospitality, tourism, and international immigration 
sectors. Currently serving as the Director Operations at a leading recruitment agency, he oversees 
comprehensive operations, including management, logistical support, business sourcing, legal matters, and sta� 
recruitment. He has also been overseeing a recruitment agency and immigration consultancy. Mr. Sohail holds an 
MBA from Buckinghamshire University and various certi�cations in immigration law, food hygiene, and teaching. 
Known for his collaborative approach and ‘can-do’ attitude, he excels in translating business requirements into 
tangible outcomes, inspiring teams, and adapting to changes to achieve organizational goals.

Independent Director
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Hadi Abbas Akberali

Mr. Hadi Akberali brings a mix of technical, management, and leadership skills after graduating from 
Northwestern University, USA in Industrial Engineering and obtaining an MBA in Finance and Strategy from 
INSEAD, France. With over 17 years of experience in the steel industry, Mr. Hadi Akberali has been instrumental in 
the Company's success by spearheading the establishment of the billet manufacturing facility, implementing 
SAP across the organization, playing a key role in the company's IPO, and strengthening the marketing function. 
As Chief Operating O�cer (Strategy), Mr. Hadi Akberali serves on various management committees and leads the 
business diversi�cation, industry a�airs, and marketing functions.

Executive Director & Chief Operating O�cer (Strategy)

Zoeb Salemwala

Mr. Zoeb Salemwala is a seasoned �nance professional with over three decades of experience in �nancial 
management, audit, taxation, and strategic planning. He has a proven track record of enhancing �nancial 
performance, streamlining operations, and driving organizational growth. Mr. Salemwala serves at various levels 
at di�erent organizations in the �eld of tax, planning, accounts and �nance. Mr. Salemwala held managerial roles 
at various organizations. His responsibilities ranged from developing internal controls and conducting audits to 
overseeing strategic �nancial transactions. Mr. Salemwala holds professional certi�cations in accounts & �nance. 
His extensive experience, strategic foresight and leadership capabilities make him an invaluable asset to any 
organization.

Non-Executive Director

Mariam Akberali

Ms. Mariam Akberali brings great diversity to the Board with signi�cant experience in the food, restaurant, mental 
health and education sectors of Pakistan. She has earned a degree in Psychology from Franklin & Marshall 
College, USA and is passionate about social entrepreneurship in Pakistan.

Non-Executive Director
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In line with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG), the Company encourages representation 
of independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board.

Post-election of Directors, the current composition of the Board is as follows:

Total number of Directors:

a) Male   : 06

b) Female   : 01

 Total   : 07

Composition:

a) Number of Independent Directors : 02

b) Number Non-Executive Directors : 03

c) Number of Executive Director : 02

The present Board of Directors of the Company comprises of well-balanced mix of independent, non-executive and executive directors. The Chairman of 
the Board is non-executive director. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held by separate individuals with clearly de�ned roles and 
responsibilities.

The Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration Committee of the Board were established as required under CCG. Both the Committees have 
independent directors as the Chairman of the Committees. These committees are mainly composed of independent and non-executive directors.

Female Directors

The Company is committed to promoting gender diversity in the workplace and provides equal opportunities for all, based on merit and suitability. The 
Company’s Code of Conduct and core values (Respect, Resilience, Integrity, Dynamism and Excellence) clearly inculcate these principles and are followed 
by everyone associated with the Company.

At Amreli, the Board and Management is committed towards championing growing demand of gender diversity at Board level and within workforce culture. 
Currently, there is one Female Non-Executive Director (Ms. Mariam Akberali) representing 14% of the composition of the Board.

The Management encourages females to be part of Company and provides healthy environment to all of its employees. 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD & REPRESENTATION OF FEMALE DIRECTORS
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COMMITTEES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Teizoon Kisat
Chairman

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Member

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Member 

Meetings Held Meetings
Attended

6/6

6/6

6/6

Composition
06-Sep-23 22-Sep-23 27-Oct-23 21-Feb-24 27-Feb-24 26-Apr-24

BOARD’S AUDIT COMMITTEE (BAC)

During the year, six (6) meetings of the BAC were held. All the meetings were held in Pakistan.

The attendance by each Director in the BAC meetings is as follows:

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in ful�lling its oversight responsibilities for the �nancial reporting process (more 
particularly, the integrity of Company’s �nancial statements), the system of internal controls, the audit processes, disclosure of systems and processes, and 
the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws, regulations and the Code of Conduct of the Company.

The Audit Committee is, amongst other things, responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors by Company’s 
shareholders and considers any questions of resignation or removal of external auditors, audit fees and provision by external auditors of any service 
(permissible to be rendered to the Company) in addition to audit of its �nancial statements.

In addition to the generality of the Audit Committee functions that embrace all aspects impinging on the well-being of the Company, shareholders’ 
interests, ethical standards and regulatory requirements, the Committee shall perform the following speci�c responsibilities -

1. Financial Statements

The Committee shall review quarterly, half yearly and annual �nancial statements with particular reference to compliance with applicable accounting 
policies, standards and practices. It shall focus on major judgmental areas, signi�cant adjustments resulting from audit, going concern assumption, any 
change in accounting policies and practices, signi�cant related party transactions and compliance with all statutory and regulatory requirements. It shall 
also review preliminary announcements of �nancial results prior to their publication. 

2. Internal Controls

The Committee shall review the Company’s statement on internal control system before its submission to the Board and satisfy itself as to the adequacy and 
e�ectiveness of internal controls and measures to safeguard the Company’s assets. Where necessary, it shall submit appropriate recommendations to the 
Board. It shall also consider major �ndings of internal investigations of cases of fraud, embezzlement and abuse of power.

3. Internal Audit

The Committee will ensure that the function is adequately resourced, functionally independent with no unreasonable limitations on its proper functioning 
and meets the quality assurance requirements, determined either through internal or external assessment. It shall review the audit reports, share them with 
the External Auditors and report matters of signi�cance to the Board. Where it is decided to out-source the internal audit function, the Committee will 
recommend to the Board a professional services �rm that has suitably quali�ed and experienced persons and is reasonably conversant with Company’s 
policies and procedures. 

4. External Audit

The Committee shall ensure requisite functional autonomy to the external auditors, review assessment of their quality assurance and facilitate their 
coordination with internal auditors of the Company. It shall review the Management Letter and discuss with the external auditors any major �ndings and 
observations therein and where appropriate submit its recommendations to the Board.

5. Risk Management

The Committee shall cause to have installed a viable risk management system in the Company and review assessment of risk and measures to avoid, share, 
mitigate and accept residual risks within the overall risk appetite determined by the Board.
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6. Compliance

The Committee shall have a system installed to determine and monitor on a periodic basis, compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements and best 
practices of corporate governance. The CEO shall be personally responsible to bring to the immediate notice of the Committee �ndings of any examination 
by regulatory agencies, major litigations or claims or signi�cant tax issues for Committee’s review. Further, except where directed otherwise by the Board, 
the Committee shall guide, review and monitor the formulation of signi�cant policies as de�ned in the Code of Corporate Governance. It shall also examine 
all signi�cant issues as de�ned in the Code of Corporate Governance dealing with controls and compliance before their submission to the Board.

7. Reporting and Other Responsibilities

The Chairperson shall keep the Board fully informed on all material issues coming within the Committee’s ambit. The Committee shall act upon such 
directions as given by the Board and have such studies or investigations carried out as desired by the Board or that the Committee itself deems to be useful.

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION (HR&R) COMMITTEE

During the year, two (02) meetings of the HR&R Committee were held in Pakistan. The attendance by each Director in the HR&R Committee meetings is as 
follows:

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The HR&R Committee is responsible for performing the duties set out below as well as any other duties that are otherwise required by applicable corporate 
laws or stock exchange rules and requirements as are delegated to the Committee by the Board -

• Recommending human resources management policies to the Board;

• Recommending to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for determining remuneration of directors (both executive and 
non-executive directors) and members of senior management;

• Annually undertaking a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and its Committees either directly by the Board or the 
Committee(s) or by engaging external independent consultant;

• Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including retirement bene�ts) and succession planning of the 
CEO;

• Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including retirement bene�ts) of COO, CFO, Company Secretary 
and Head of Internal Audit;

• Considering and approving on recommendation of the CEO on such matters for key management positions who report directly to CEO or COO;

• Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board for the appointment of Senior Executives and for determining terms of employment of their 
services;

• Reviewing succession planning and matters of compensation as well as such other matters the Committee may consider suitable;

• Any additional matter delegated to the Committee by the Board of the Company from time to time.

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Chairman

Mr. Teizoon Kisat
Member 

Mr. Shayan Akberali
Member 

Meeting Held on Meeting
Attended

2/2

2/2

2/2

Composition
31-Oct-23

Meeting Held on
10-Jun-24
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Sustainability is an integral part of our business strategy and a key driver in all of our business activities. Our innovative technologies, operational experience 
and expertise enable us to minimize our environmental impact and successfully manage the social challenges and inherent risk that are present in our 
industry.

Our guiding principles for sustainability are as follows:

• Maintain highest degree of corporate governance practices;

• Conduct business activities with the highest principles of honesty, integrity, truthfulness and honor;

• Promote ethical business practices;

• Respect the environment and communities in which we operate;

• Assure equal employment opportunities;

• Value diversity in the workplace;

• Provide healthy and safe working environments;

• Respect human rights and trade ethically;

• Act in utmost good faith and exercise due care, diligence and integrity in performing the o�ce duties;

• Comply with all applicable laws and regulations;

• Ensure that all business transactions are recorded in true, fair and timely fashion in accordance with the accounting and �nancial reporting standards, 
as applicable to the Company;

• Deliver superior value for our shareholders − our intent is to outperform our competitors by delivering superior growth, margins and returns to our 
shareholders;

• Lead the industry in innovation, technology development and conscientious stewardship of resources - our intent is to develop technological solutions 
that give our customers economic access to high quality construction material with maximum use of scarce resources and maximize the value of their 
existing assets; 

• Enhance the economic and social well-being of our employees, their families and the communities in which we operate − our intent is to be a preferred 
employer and make a positive impact in the communities where we live and work;

• Be transparent in reporting and validating our progress − our intent is to provide our stakeholders with thorough and timely information on our 
progress.

SUSTAINABILITY AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES

Annual Report 2024 26



HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT (HSE) POLICY

We at Amreli Steels Limited are committed towards surpassing the requirements and expectations of our customers/stakeholders and continually 
improving upon our Health, Safety & Environment performance by:

a)  Complying with applicable legal, regulatory and other requirements to which our company subscribes;

b)  Embedding the Health, Safety & Environment requirements in our routine and non-routine activities;

c)  Preventing injuries and ill health to personnel a�ected by our activities through a proactive system of risk management;

d)  Conserving natural resources and reducing the Carbon footprint of activities by proactively assessing their environmental impact and mitigating their 
adverse e�ects;

e)  Ensuring competency of employees by providing them with adequate training, information, instructions and supervision;

f )  Communicating with stakeholders to ensure a mutually bene�cial understanding of our HSE policies, standards, programs and performance;

g)  Encourage participation and consultation with sta� and workers pertain to HSE issues.

h)  Ensuring continual improvement through a system of performance planning, measurement and regular reviews.

Company’s employees are at the forefront of this policy; for its successful implementation, they shall demonstrate their HSE consciousness by practicing 
their assigned safety roles and responsibilities. The policy shall also reinforce our standards of nurturing and developing our substantial talent pool, building 
shareholder value through performance excellence, improved �nancial results and measuring customer satisfaction by providing reliable, safe cost e�ective 
service. It is our �rm belief and a core business value that all accidents and work related ill health are preventable. To achieve this, we shall ensure that timely 
decisions are taken and resources provided to demonstrate our commitment on implementing our HSE vision and strategy.

The Company has embraced a proactive stance towards business continuity and disaster recovery planning, ensuring alignment with its business strategy, 
industry best practices, and established standards and frameworks. This commitment is a testament to the organization's dedication to preserving the 
uninterrupted �ow of IT driven business operations and safeguarding valuable information assets. 

The infrastructure has been meticulously designed to ensure resilience in the event of potential disasters or interruptions, with high availability production 
facilities situated at state of art main data center complemented by synchronized DR servers located few kilometers away and connected through dark �ber 
replications. This proactive planning serves not only to safeguard the organization but also to instill con�dence in customers, partners, and stakeholders, 
rea�rming the Company's resilience in the face of any challenge.

The business continuity and disaster recovery plan includes the following key components:

• Policy Statement Development: Formulate a clear and concise policy statement that outlines the organization's commitment to business continuity 
planning.

• Business Impact Analysis (BIA): Conduct a comprehensive analysis to assess the potential impact of disruptions on the business, identifying critical 
functions and dependencies.

• Risk Mitigation and Preventive Controls: Identify and implement preventive measures to mitigate risks and prevent disruptions.

• Business Recovery Strategies: Develop strategies for swiftly recovering critical business functions and processes following a disaster.

• Communication and Stakeholder Engagement: Establish communication protocols for informing stakeholders, including employees, customers, 
partners, and regulatory authorities, during a crisis.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN
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COMPANY EVENTS AND CSR ACTIVITIES

September 2023

Amreli Steels Razakars Visited TCF

On World Literacy Day, Amreli Steels Razakaars visited the students of TCF Akberali Campus for our "Parho aur Parhao” campaign and engaged them in 
di�erent learning activities. The students were gifted with new stationery to encourage them to continue learning and focus on their studies.

October 2023

Amreli Steels National Retailers Awards 2023

Amreli Steels rewarded its business partners for their performances and contributions to the business by organizing Season 2 of our National Retailer 
Awards in Ramada Hotel, Karachi. Retailers from all over Pakistan were in attendance.
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COMPANY EVENTS AND CSR ACTIVITIES

November 2023

Successful Certi�cation of the ISO 45001: 2018 OH&S MS (Occupational Health & Safety Management System) 

We became the �rst proud Steel Melt Shop plant in the steel sector of Pakistan to be ISO 45001 OH&S MS certi�ed. 

November 2023

Plantation Drive & Table Tennis Match

We celebrated the spirit of women with a perfect blend of nature and sports at our Dhabeji facility. Our female Amrelians led a plantation drive and then 
showcased their competitive side in a Table Tennis Tournament.
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COMPANY EVENTS AND CSR ACTIVITIES

December 2023

The International Day for Persons With Disabilities 

Amreli Foundation organized a visit for Amreli Steels Razakaars to the Special Children's Educational Institute on The International Day for Persons With 
Disabilities. The Razakaars helped with English and Math, played cricket, and made handicrafts with the children.

December 2023

Agreement of Collaboration with Haball

Amreli Steels embarked on a path of innovation and digital transformation by collaborating  with Haball, one of the largest premiere B2B �ntech companies 
providing Digital Payment Solutions. 
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January 2024

175K LinkedIn Followers

We celebrated the SOLID success of becoming the �rst Pakistani company in the steel rebars category to achieve 175,000 organic followers on LinkedIn at 
our charming new head o�ce.

COMPANY EVENTS AND CSR ACTIVITIES

February 2024

Launch of Amreli Steels Business Partner Portal

We proudly announced the launch of our Business Partner Portal 4.0 for all our Business Partners. The launch events were held in Karachi, Hyderabad, Multan 
and Lahore.
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March 2024

Iftar Drive

Amreli Foundation organized an Iftar Drive at Saylani Dastarkhwan by Saylani Welfare International Trust in Karachi. Our SOLID team of Razakaars 
volunteered to distribute Iftari.
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HUMAN RESOURCE 

Our Vision “Committed to strengthen the Economy and Society” a�rms our gratitude towards our people’s invaluable contributions which have earned us 
the prestige as the Industry leader across the country. Driven by our Mission – “Be the Brand of Choice for all stakeholders” and “Empower People”, the 
Company takes pride in attracting, developing and retaining talented individuals who bring out the best by capitalizing on our best in-class work 
environment and state-of-the-art technologies.

Our Values At Work – OUR-RIDE

At Amreli Steels, our organizational values – Respect, Resilience, Integrity, Dynamism and Excellence are at the core of our daily business and operations. 
Our life at Amreli Steels revolves around our values making every one of us one family. Translating these values into executable initiatives drives a true sense 
of belongingness and enablement in our people.

Enabling And Rewarding Culture  

We are proud of our Company’s enabling culture that provides �exible work schedules, reciprocates good performance, promotes team cohesiveness and 
welcomes new ideas and initiatives.

 Flexible & Hybrid Working Options: 

 We provide our employees with �exible and hybrid work schedules to opt as per their own preferences. These options have instilled and boosted 
employee empowerment as well as their productivity levels.

 Performance Based Culture

 Our “Objective based Performance Management System” is taking shape and moving towards best industry practices. It aims at delivering the 
optimum business results that creates real value for all stakeholders. 

 Reward & Recognition

 The good performing employees are recognized through a system of rewards that is based on both instantaneous and long-term rewards and 
bene�ts, such as, Rising Star Program, Career Merit Points etc.

 Room for New Ideas’ Implementation

 Our team is provided with all necessary means to achieve the business objectives and limitless opportunities to pursue new challenges.

Brush-Up & Shine

The Company is committed to develop a learning culture which helps employees unleash their full potential and supports their professional as well as 
personal development. While an intensi�ed focus has remained with on-job and in-house learning and training opportunities, Management is also 
planning to utilize external resources with customized training programs for the development of our employees. All in all 4,169 hours of training have been 
invested during this year.

Capitalizing On The Technological Landscape

The Company is a tech-savvy organization as it believes in adapting the best in-class technological platforms not only to make everyday business easier but 
also to ensure data-driven decisions as well as to promote transparency and accuracy in daily operations. Alongside having state-of-the-art production 
facility, the Company has been committed to consistently and gradually transform manual systems into digitalization and automation within all the support 
functions. 

Staying Ahead Of The Curve

In order to stay ahead of the curve, benchmark studies and surveys have now become imperative for us. Staying conversant with market trends, through 
frequent formal and informal market surveys across the industry ensures our readiness to align our future orientation to foresee and introduce new policies, 
schemes and systems for the employees.

Employee Engagement Programs

We place a strong emphasis on employee engagement within our diverse culture. This year, we organized a variety of activities, including board games, 
counter-strike tournaments, inter-departmental cricket matches for all employees across the organization and a dedicated gaming arena program for our 
female employees. Additionally, we’ve introduced initiatives focused on employee well-being, such as mindfulness sessions, to encourage interaction, 
support, and open communication among our teams.
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SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION





NOTICE OF THE 40th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) will be held on Saturday, 26 
October 2024 at 03:00 p.m. at Auditorium Hall of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) located at Block - 8, Chartered Accountants 
Avenue, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following businesses. The shareholders can also attend the AGM via video link facility.

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the annual audited �nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2024, together with the Directors’ 

and Auditors’ reports thereon.

 As required under section 223(7) of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to the S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the annual report of the Company for the �nancial year ended 30 June 2024 has been uploaded on the 
Company’s website which can be downloaded accessing the following link and QR Code:

2. To appoint auditors of the Company for the �nancial year ending 30 June 2025 and to �x their remuneration. The Board of Directors of the Company 
has recommended the name of retiring auditors, M/s. BDO Ebrahim and Co., Chartered Accountants, for their re-appointment as external auditors for 
the �nancial year ending 30 June 2025. M/s. BDO Ebrahim and Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have o�ered themselves for 
re-appointment.

Any Other Business:
3. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.

                      By Order of the Board

04 October 2024                      ADNAN ABDUL GHAFFAR
Karachi                       Company Secretary

Notes:

1. Participation in the AGM Proceeding via Video Link Facility:
 The Company also facilitates participation of its shareholders through a video link facility in pursuance to Circulars noti�ed by the SECP. The 

members/proxies interested to participate in the AGM through this facility are requested to share below information at 
investor-relations@amrelisteels.com with subject “Registration for 40th AGM of Amreli Steels Limited”– 

 Video-link and login credentials will be shared with the members/proxies whose email containing all the above particulars are received at the given 
email address by the close of business on or before 22 October 2024.

2. Closure of Share Transfer Books:
 The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 18 October 2024 to 26 October 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in 

order by our Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial, Street-2, D.H.A., Phase-VII, Karachi-75500, Pakistan by 
the close of business on 17 October 2024 will be considered in time for attending the AGM.

3. Appointment of Proxies:
i. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her 

behalf.

ii. The instrument appointing proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, under which it is signed, or a notarized certi�ed copy of the power or 
authority must be deposited at the registered o�ce of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Form of proxy is enclosed.

iii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iv. In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder shall furnish the attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the member and the proxy, 
along with the proxy form.

v. Corporate entities shall submit the Board of Directors’ resolution/Power of Attorney, with specimen signature, along with the proxy form.

4. Attending the Annual General Meeting:
i. In case of individual, whether physical shareholder or the account holder or sub-account holder at Central Depository Company (CDC), shall 

authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of attending the AGM. 

ii.  The proxy shall also produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of AGM.

iii. Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring details of their account maintained with the CDC. 

iv. In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/Power of Attorney, with specimen signature of the nominee, shall be produced at the 
time of the AGM (unless it has been provided earlier).

Shareholder Name Folio/ CDC Number CNIC Number Cell Number Registered Email Address

https://amrelisteels.com/investor-relations/#investor-information
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5. Change in Members Addresses:
 Members are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

6. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:
 The Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2024 has been placed on the Company’s website www.amrelisteels.com. 

7. Electronic Circulation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023:
 The Annual Report 2024 and notice of AGM are being circulated electronically via email to all those shareholders whose email addresses are available 

with the CDC or the Share Registrar of the Company. In case of remaining shareholders, whose email addresses are not available, a printed copy of 
notice of AGM containing QR enabled code and web link to access and download Annual Report 2024, has been dispatched on their registered 
addresses, as allowed by the SECP vide its S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 and as approved by the shareholders in the Extraordinary General 
Meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2023.

 However, if a shareholder requests for a hard copy of the annual audited �nancial statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within seven (07) 
days of receipt of such request as per Section 235 of the Companies Act, 2017. For the convenience of shareholders, a “Standard Request Form for 
provision of annual audited accounts” has also been made available at the Company’s website www.amrelisteels.com.

8. Consent for Video Conference Facility:
 In compliance with Section 134(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2017, members of the Company may attend and participate in the AGM through video 

conference facility, if member(s) residing in a city other than Karachi, collectively holding 10% or more shareholding, demand in writing, to participate 
in the AGM through video conference at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the AGM.

 To avail such facility, please submit the following form with the requisite information at the Registered O�ce of the Company –

I/We _____________________________________________________of ______________________________________________being a member

of Amreli Steels limited, holder of ___________________________________________________________________________ordinary shares(s) 

as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No. __________________________________________________________________ hereby opt for video 

conference facility at _________________________________________________________________________________ to attend the 40th AGM to be 
held on 26 October, 2024 or any adjournment thereof.

__________________________                                                                                                                                                                    Date:  ____________________
        Name and Signature (s)

 The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least �ve (05) days before the date of the AGM along with 
complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

SPECIAL NOTICES TO THE SHAREHOLDERS: 
A. Unclaimed Dividends (Important and Mandatory):
 Shareholders, who for any reason, were unable to claim their dividends were advised vide last year’s Notice of AGM dated 02 October 2023, to contact 

our Shares Registrar to inquire about or collect any unclaimed dividends. Accordingly, pursuant to Section 244(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, any 
dividends that remain unclaimed for a period exceeding three years would be transferred to the Federal Government in accordance with the statutory 
requirements of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017.

B. 6th Reminder to the shareholders for submission of bank account details/IBAN (E-Dividend):
 As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash shall only be remitted through electronic mode directly into the bank 

account designated by the entitled shareholders. Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are once again requested to update their bank 
accounts details (i.e. title of account, complete bank account number (i.e. 24 digit IBAN), complete mailing address of the bank, name of the bank, folio 
number, mobile number and email address) for payment of any future cash dividend through electronic mode. 

 In case of physical shares, please provide bank account details to our Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited. Please ensure an early update 
of your particulars to avoid any inconvenience in future.  

C. 3rd Reminder for conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form: 
 In compliance with section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SECP’s letter No.CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated 26 March 2021, listed companies 

are required to replace existing physical shares issued by them into Book-Entry Form. In view of the above requirement, shareholders of the Company 
having physical folios/ share certi�cates are requested to convert their shares from physical form into Book-Entry Form as soon as possible. 

 Conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form would facilitate the shareholders in many ways i.e. safe custody of shares, readily available market 
for instant sale and purchase of shares, eliminate risk of loss & damage, easy & safe transfer with lesser formalities as compared to physical shares. The 
shareholders of the Company may contact Share Registrar of the Company for assistance in conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form.

 For any query/problem/information, members may contact our share registrar at the following address 

 THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd
 Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial, Street-2, 
 D.H.A., Phase-VII, Karachi-75500, Pakistan 
 UAN No: (021) 111-000-322
 Email: sfc@thk.com.pk
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING WITH ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
As at 30 June 2024

Directors and their Spouse(s) and Minor Children

Categories of Shareholders Number of  Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Abbas Akberali

Shayan Akberali

Hadi Abbas Akberali

Mariam Akberali

Teizoon Kisat

Badar Kazmi

Zafar Ahmed Taji

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

92,549,482 

37,441,123

37,732,212

1,000

        500

        1,000

12,000

31.16

12.60

12.70

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

Mahvash Akberali 1 55,732,930 18.77

Banks, DFI & NBFI

Insurance Companies

2

4

3,530,000

4,030,500

1.19

1.36

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance
Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds

Local

Non-Resident/ Foreign

8,587

352

27,591,636

3,989,440

9.29

1.34

Shareholders holding 5% or more Shares Held Percentage
Abbas Akberali

Mahvash Akberali

Hadi Abbas Akberali

Shayan Akberali

91,294,723

55,732,930

37,732,212

37,441,123

30.74

18.77

12.70

12.61

General Public

Mutual Funds 14 2,763,993 0.93

Others 42 31,485,611 10.60

Foreign Companies 1 150,000 0.05

Total             9,011 297,011,427 100.00
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Number of
Shareholders

Number of  Shareholders
From To

Shares Held Percentage

567

4792

1358

1519

310

109

84

53

24

21

19

12

21

6

8

4

4

6

2

2

3

1

11

6

5

1

3

3

2

1

4

1

3

1

2

3

3

2

1

1

1

1

2

3

1

101

501

1001

5001

10001

15001

20001

25001

30001

35001

40001

45001

50001

55001

60001

65001

70001

75001

80001

85001

90001

95001

100001

105001

110001

120001

125001

130001

135001

145001

150001

170001

175001

180001

185001

195001

205001

210001

220001

265001

270001

280001

295001

100

500

1000

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

55000

60000

65000

70000

75000

80000

85000

90000

95000

100000

105000

110000

115000

125000

130000

135000

140000

150000

155000

175000

180000

185000

190000

200000

210000

215000

225000

270000

275000

285000

300000

19170

2337052

1328292

3975365

2487126

1396187

1529987

1259317

693800

694855

734626

518020

1026167

316185

467000

247893

275500

446000

156500

170000

268000

95000

1095591

619695

543143

115000

372500

381976

265500

137500

597500

154400

523207

178533

363500

569300

599514

419500

213877

224000

266956

272500

568000

900000

0.0065

0.7869

0.4472

1.3385

0.8374

0.4701

0.5151

0.4240

0.2336

0.2339

0.2473

0.1744

0.3455

0.1065

0.1572

0.0835

0.0928

0.1502

0.0527

0.0572

0.0902

0.0320

0.3689

0.2086

0.1829

0.0387

0.1254

0.1286

0.0894

0.0463

0.2012

0.0520

0.1762

0.0601

0.1224

0.1917

0.2018

0.1412

0.0720

0.0754

0.0899

0.0917

0.1912

0.3030

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at 30 June 2024
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Number of
Shareholders

Number of  Shareholders
From To

Shares Held Percentage

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

9012

305001

320001

335001

340001

345001

350001

360001

395001

500001

505001

580001

590001

595001

645001

940001

1250001

1790001

3495001

3850001

4495001

5995001

16595001

37440001

37730001

55730001

91290001

310000

325000

340000

345000

350000

355000

365000

400000

505000

510000

585000

595000

600000

650000

945000

1255000

1795000

3500000

3855000

4500000

6000000

16600000

37445000

37735000

55735000

91295000

307000

321000

678500

343188

347717

350248

362500

400000

500500

508000

582617

590923

600000

650000

943897

1254759

1793356

3500000

3852500

4500000

6000000

16600000

37441123

37732212

55732930

91294723

0.1034

0.1081

0.2284

0.1155

0.1171

0.1179

0.1220

0.1347

0.1685

0.1710

0.1962

0.1990

0.2020

0.2188

0.3178

0.4225

0.6038

1.1784

1.2971

1.5151

2.0201

5.5890

12.6060

12.7040

18.7646

30.7378

Company Total 297011427 100.0000

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at 30 June 2023
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INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCES POLICY

The Company believes in prompt provision of resolution to all grievances of our valued shareholders in accordance with the statutory guidelines and 
well-designed policy. The development of sustained stakeholder relationships is paramount to the performance of the Company. Investors’ grievances are 
managed centrally by the Corporate Compliance Department of the Company through an e�ective grievance management mechanism for handling of 
investors’ queries and complaints, through the following key measures –

• Increasing the investors’ awareness relating to modes for �ling of queries;

• Handling of investors’ grievances in a timely manner;

• Handling of grievances honestly and in good faith without prejudice;

• Escalating grievances to the appropriate levels with full facts of the case requiring attention of the senior management or the Board, for judicious 
settlement of the grievance, if required;

• Carrying out investigations to inquire about the cause of the grievance;

• Taking appropriate remedial action immediately to facilitate the respected investors of the Company.

Investors can communicate their grievances through any of the following channels -

By calling at UAN:  (+92-21) 111 - AMRELI (267354)
By writing to:   The Company Secretary
    Amreli Steels Limited
    Plot No. A-18, S.I.T.E. Karachi, Pakistan
By sending an email:   investor-relations@amrelisteels.com 
By accessing website:   https://amrelisteels.com/investor-relations#Complaints

DISCLAIMER: “In case investors’ complaints are not properly redressed by the Company, investors may lodge their complaints with Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“the SECP”). However, the SECP will entertain only those complaints which were at �rst directly requested to be 
redressed by the Company and the Company has failed to redress the same. Further, the complaints that are not relevant to the SECP’s regulatory 
domain/competence shall not be entertained by the SECP.”

By accessing SECP:  https://sdms.secp.gov.pk/

Issues raised in last AGM & Decisions taken
The 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24 October 2023. Besides approval 
of annual audited accounts for the year ended 30 June 2023 and satisfactorily concluding other 
ordinary businesses of the said AGM, all the queries raised by the respected shareholders of the 
Company were responded up to their satisfaction by the Chair of the meeting, Directors, Chief 
Executive O�cer and the Chief Financial O�cer of the Company. Other than routine enquiries, 
no issues were raised by the shareholders which require decision or implementation thereof.
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT PROCESS

ASL acknowledges and honors the trust our investors have put 
in us by striving to provide a steady return on their investment. 
We rigorously enforce a transparent relationship with all our 
stakeholders.

The providers of capital allow ASL the means to 
achieve its vision.

Stakeholders

Institutional
Investors /
Shareholders

ASL has invested signi�cantly over the years in customer 
relationship management. Our continuous and sustainable 
growth is also attributable to engaging reputed suppliers as 
business partners for supply of industrial inputs, equipment 
and machinery.

Our success and performance depends upon the 
loyalty of our customers, their preference and our 
supply chain management.

Customers &
Suppliers

Banks and other �nancial institutions are engaged by the 
Company on and on-going basis in relation to negotiation of 
rates, lending purposes, �nancing, deposits and investments. 
Banks are also consulted on issues linked with letters of credit 
and payments to suppliers, along with other disbursements of 
an operational nature.

Dealings with banks and lenders is key to ASL’s 
performance in terms of the following:
• Access to funds
• Better interest rates and loan terms
• Minimal fees
• Higher level of customer service
• E�ective planning for the future

Banks and Other
Lenders

Di�erent communication mediums are used on need basis to 
apprise the general public about new developments, activities 
and philanthropic initiatives of ASL.

By informing the media of the developments and 
activities of ASL, e�ective awareness is created 
regarding the Company and the products and 
services o�ered, indirectly having a positive impact.

Media

ASL prides itself in being a responsible corporate citizen and 
abides by the laws and regulations of Pakistan. ASL consciously 
ensures that all the legal requirements of other countries are 
also ful�lled while conducting business outside Pakistan.

ASL has paid a total of Rs. 6.54 billion tax (comprising in terms of 
income taxes, federal excise duties, sales taxes and custom 
duties) to Government Exchequer during the �nancial year 
under review and continues to be one of the highest taxpayers 
of Pakistan.

Laws and regulations, determination of prices and 
other factors controlled
by the Government a�ect ASL and its performance.

Regulators

In order to remain transparent and attract potential investors, 
ASL regularly engages with analysts on details of projects 
already disclosed to the regulators, with due regard to 
regulatory restrictions imposed on inside information and/or 
trading, to avoid any negative impact on the Company’s 
reputation or share price.

Providing all the required information to analysts 
on the historical performance of the Company, 
material announcement made during the period 
and help them understand the industry and its 
dynamics more clearly to create a positive investor 
environment.

Analysts

ASL’s commitment to its most valued resource, a dedicated and 
competent workforce, is at the core of its human resource 
strategy. ASL provides a nurturing and employee friendly 
environment while investing considerably in local and foreign 
employee trainings. Besides monetary compensations, ASL has 
also invested in health and �tness activities for its employees.

ASL’s employees represent its biggest asset. They 
implement every strategic and operational decision 
and represent the Company in the industry and 
community.

Employees

In addition to local communities near plant sites, ASL engages 
with general public at large through its CSR activities. This 
engagement helps to identify needed interventions in the �eld 
of education, health and general economic uplift of the society.

The people of the Country provide the grounds for 
ASL to build its future on.

Local
Community and 
General Public

Management of
Stakeholders’ Engagement

E�ect and Value to
Amreli Steels Limited (ASL)
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ENCOURAGING MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS TO ATTEND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company disseminates the notice of its general meetings to all registered shareholders alongwith annual report containing �nancial statements of the 
Company. Besides this, the Company also publishes the notice of AGM in English and Urdu newspapers having circulation across the country and 
shareholders are also informed by Company through timely updating the notice of AGM and other relevant information at the o�cial website of the 
Company as well as designated web-portal of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Shareholders are also encouraged to avail the facility of video conferencing (as per the prescribed procedures) and getting notices by email addresses (as 
provided by shareholders) to encourage maximum attendance at the meetings. The Company always facilitates and ensures shareholders’ presence while 
entertaining their requests if feasible and viable. It values and honors their inputs, records their concerns, prepositions, suggestions in minutes and keeps 
them abreast on the progress and subsequent actions. Shareholders can also actively participate during general meetings in discussions on operations, 
objectives and future strategy of the Company. 

SUMMARY OF CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION HELD DURING THE YEAR 2023-24
The Company has conducted mandatory Corporate Brie�ng Session (CBS), for the �nancial year 2022-23 through virtual means for better participation by 
giving fair advance intimation to shareholders and analysts’ community. Chief Financial O�cer of the Company gave presentation on �nancial and 
operational details of the Company during Corporate Brie�ng Session pertaining to the respective period covered. Presentation was also posted on the 
Company’s website after the Corporate Brie�ng Session, which can easily be viewed by all respected shareholders of the Company as well as the analysts. 
The same can be viewed by accessing Investors’ Relations portion of the Company’s website (i.e. 
https://www.amrelisteels.com/investor-relations#investorInformation).

Corporate Brie�ng Session for the year ended 30 June 2023 was held on 16 November 2023.

MAJOR EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

September 
2023

OCTOBER 
2023

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 8 September 
2023. The Board approved the annual audited �nancial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 
2023 and the Directors’ Report thereon.

NOVEMBER 
2023

• The mandatory Corporate Brie�ng Session (CBS) for the 
year ended 30 June 2023 was held on 16 November 
2023.

APRIL
2024

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 26 April 2024. 
The Board approved the condensed interim, �nancial 
statements of the Company for the third quarter ended 
31 March 2024 along with the Directors’ Report 
thereon.

• 39th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was 
held on 24 October 2023 for approval of annual audited 
�nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 
June 2023. 

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 27 October 2023. 
The Board approved the condensed interim �nancial 
statements for the �rst quarter ended 30 September 2023 
along with the Directors’ Report thereon.

FEBRUARY 
2024

• Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 27 February 2024. 
The Board approved the condensed interim �nancial 
statements of the Company for the half year ended 31 
December 2023 along with the Directors’ Report thereon.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

The Company recognizes that Governance, Risk Management, and Compliance (GRC) are three pillars that work together for the purpose of assuring that 
the organization meets its objectives. 

GRC is a discipline that aims to synchronize information and activity across governance, risk management and compliance in order to operate more 
e�ciently, enable e�ective information sharing, more e�ectively report activities and avoid wasteful overlaps.

Governance

Governance (Corporate Governance) is the combination of processes established and executed by the Board of Directors (the Board) that are re�ected in 
the Company’s structure and how it is managed and led toward achieving goals of the Company as a whole.

The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutory and regulatory compliance requirements that are applicable to companies listed 
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and Company’s Articles of Association complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures include a 
risk assessment and control system, as well as a system of assurances on compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s Code of Conduct.

Major External Regulations

• Companies Act, 2017 and Rules made thereunder

• Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance Regulations), 2019

• Securities Act, 2015

• Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

• Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

• CDC Regulations

• All applicable Labor Laws

• All applicable Taxation Laws and Rules made thereunder

• Competition Act, 2010 and Rules made thereunder

• Other SECP Regulations, Circulars, Noti�cations and Guidelines issued from time to time

• Other local and International laws applicable directly or indirectly

Major Internal Regulations

• The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

• Code of Conduct

• Whistle Blowing Policy

• Other signi�cant policies formulated by the Company from time to time

The Board is responsible for governing the organization by establishing Board policies, setting the goals, objectives and strategies the Company is required 
to adopt, and formulating policies and guidelines for achieving the said goals and objectives. The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the discharge 
of its �duciary function.

The management is responsible for implementation of the aforesaid goals and strategies in accordance with the policies and guidelines laid down by the 
Board. In order to facilitate the smooth running of the day-to-day a�airs of the Company, the Board entrusts the Chief Executive O�cer (CEO) with necessary 
powers and responsibilities. The CEO is, in turn, assisted by various committees comprising of the Chief Operating O�cers, Chief Financial O�cer and the 
Heads of Businesses and Functions. The Board is also assisted by sub-committees comprising mainly of independent/non-executive Directors.

Risk Management

Risk management is predicting and managing risks that could hinder the Company to achieve its objectives. The Board has the overall responsibility of 
overseeing the risk management processes, which include both risk management and internal control procedures. The Company’s processes, which are 
documented and regularly reviewed, are designed to safeguard assets and address risks that the business might face or that may impact business 
continuity. These are, in turn, reported to the Board and senior management for timely action where required, to ensure uninterrupted operations.

The Company maintains a clear organizational structure with a well-de�ned chain of authority. Senior management is responsible for implementing 
procedures, monitoring risk and assessing the e�ectiveness of various controls. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the 
unpredictability of �nancial markets, regulatory levies and taxes, external factors a�ecting the marketability and pro�t margin of its products, internal 
factors that may compromise the Company’s ability to meet its targets, and seeks to minimize potential adverse e�ects on the Company’s �nancial 
performance.

Compliance

Compliance at Amreli Steels means adherence with the applicable laws and regulations and the Company's policies and procedures. The Company 
considers strong and e�cient governance as a key to the Company's success.

Due to the increasing number of regulations and need for operational transparency, the Company is increasingly adopting the use of consolidated and 
harmonized sets of compliance controls. This approach is used to ensure that all necessary governance requirements can be met without unnecessary 
duplication of e�orts from resources to ensure e�ectiveness and e�ciency.
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CORPORATE CALENDAR

Tentative Dates for the Financial Year 2024-25

For the First Quarter ending
30 September 2024
Last week of October 2024

• Board Meeting

For the year ended 30 June 2024
Third Week of November 2024

• Corporate Brie�ng
 Session

For the Half Year ending
31 December 2024
Third week of February 2025

• Board Meeting
For the Third Quarter ending
31 March 2025
Last week of April 2025

• Board Meeting

For the Year ending 30 June 2025
Third week of September 2025

• Board Meeting
For the Year ending 30 June 2025
Third week of October 2025

• Annual General
 Meeting
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Has ultimate responsibility 
for risk management, 
ensuring that it is in place 
and e�ectively functioning.

ERM Steering
Committee
Comprises of senior 
executives who identify, 
assess and monitor 
organization-wide risks and     
mitigating actions.

Audit Committee
• Supports the board in 
  monitoring risk exposure 
  against risk appetite,
• Reviews and monitors the 
  e�ectiveness of risk   
  management and internal  
  control systems.

Internal Audit
Supports the Audit 
Committee in reviewing 
the e�ectiveness of risk 
management and internal 
control systems.

Board of Directors
• Has an oversight role and set overarching risk appetite,
• Ensures that adequate and e�ective risk management     
  processes are in place, 
• Approves a risk appetite in accordance with the risk    
   management methodology adopted by Amreli.

Risk
Management

Identi�cation,
Assessment and management
of risks at operational level

Oversight, identi�cation,
assessment and management
of risks at corporate level

CEO

Operational Level

• Adopts regional risk appetite.
• Supporting the Risk Management in reviewing and monitoring e�ectiveness of risk   
  management.
• Identi�cation, assessment and management of risks at the operational level.
• Monitoring of risk management process and e�ectiveness of internal controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the e�ectiveness of company’s risk management activities from a strategic, �nancial, and operational perspec-
tive. These activities are designed to identify and manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives or to successfully deliver our business 
strategy. We follow the Three Lines of Defense approach to risk management. Risks are owned and managed within company and reviewed atleast annually. 

• Consider key business
  objectives
• Identify principal risks
• Identify key controls

• Assess controls
• Estimate likelihood,
  and impact
• Consider legal, reputation
  and conduct exposure

• Accept or remediate
  current risk and control
  environment
• Determine corrective
  action if needed

• Business Unit, Process Level,  
   ERM steering committee and    
   Audit Committee

Step 1
Risk Identi�cation

Step 2
Risk Assessment

Step 3
Risk Response

Step 4
Risk Reporting

and Monitoring

Three Lines of Defence

CEO

Enterprise Risk Management Steering Committee

First Line of Defence

Process Owners

Second Line of Defence Third Line of Defence

Legal and Compliance Internal Audit

Information Technology

Physical Security

Financial and Cost Controlling

Annual Report 2024 54



INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK 

Internal control is an integral part of our activities. It consists of all measures taken by the company for the purpose of: 
• Protecting its resources against waste, fraud, and ine�ciency; 
• Ensuring accuracy and reliability in accounting and operating data; 
• Securing compliance with the organizational policies; and
• Evaluating the level of performance in all organizational units of the Company. 

We are in the process of adopting COSO framework to attain the objectives that are;

• Operational Objectives—these pertain to e�ectiveness and e�ciency of the entity’s operations, including operational and �nancial performance goals, 
and safeguarding assets against loss. 

• Reporting Objectives—These pertain to internal and external �nancial and non-�nancial reporting and may encompass reliability, timeliness, 
transparency, or other terms as set forth by regulators, recognized standard setters, or the entity’s policies.

• Compliance Objectives—these pertain to adherence to laws and regulations to which the entity is subject to.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system of internal controls and for reviewing its e�ectiveness. The Board considers that strong 
internal controls are integral to the sound management of the organization, and it is committed to maintaining strict �nancial, operational, and risk 
management control over all its activities with formally de�ned lines of responsibility, delegated authorities, and clear operating processes. The systems 
that the Board has established are designed to safeguard both the shareholders' investment and the assets of the Company. Entity level controls are in place 
for the achievement of desired objectives. To ensure the e�ectiveness and reliability of internal control, ASL has in-house internal audit function.

The systems, standard operating procedures, and controls are implemented by the executive leadership team and are reviewed by the internal audit team 
whose �ndings and recommendations are placed before the Audit Committee.

To maintain objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit team develops an annual audit 
plan based on the risk pro�le of the business activities. The Internal Audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee, which also reviews compliance with the 
plan.

The Internal Audit team monitors and evaluates the e�cacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with operating 
systems, accounting procedures, and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of the internal audit function, process owners undertake 
corrective actions in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Signi�cant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented 
to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by the Internal Auditors in its meetings. Also, the Audit Committee has independent sessions with the 
external auditors and the Management to discuss the adequacy and e�ectiveness of internal �nancial controls.

Control 
Environment

Management is keen to 
promote integrity, ethical 

values and the 
commitment to 

competence.

Company and 
departmental 

organograms are 
designed properly 

assigning the 
appropriate lines for 

reporting of each 
functional area.

Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) are 

established to monitor 
the performance of its 
departments against 

their stated objectives.

Risk

The Company has 
ongoing process of 

identifying and analyzing 
risks. Mechanisms are 

developed to respond to 
the changing condition. 
The identi�ed risks are 

evaluated and prioritized 
in order to take 

appropriate actions. 

Control Activities

The policies and 
procedures are 

developed in order to 
ensure  that 

management directives 
are understood clearly 

and carried out properly. 

All the necessory actions 
are taken to address risks 

to achieve entity's 
objective.

These include a range of 
activities such as 

approvals, 
authorizations, 

veri�cations, 
reconciliations, 

budgeting, security of 
assets, segregation of 
duties and reviews of 

operating performance.

Information & 
Communication

The Company has a 
de�ned formal 
mechanism of 

communication and 
sharing of information 

amongst the 
departments and 

stakeholders.

All responsible personnel 
have been given clear 
understanding of their 
role in internal control 
system as well as how 

individual activities relate 
to others.

Monitoring

The internal control 
system is actively 

monitored. Ongoing 
monitoring occurs in the 

ordinary course of 
operations, and includes 

regular management and 
supervisory activities, 

and other actions 
personnel take in 

performing their duties 
that assess the quality of 
internal control system 

performance.

Internal Control Framework
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AMRELI STEELS LIMITED ON THE 
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) 
REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) 
prepared by the Board of Directors of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of 
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the 
Statement of Compliance re�ects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight 
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various 
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the �nancial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems su�cient to 
plan the audit and develop an e�ective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers 
all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the e�ectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of 
Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent 
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately re�ect the 
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 
30, 2024.

KARACHI

DATED: October 03, 2024

UDIN: CR2024100673Jl5Y6R8G

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Engagement 
Partner: Zul�qar Ali Causer
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 

Amreli Steels Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the 
Regulations”) in the following manner.

1. The total number of Directors of the Company are seven (07) as per the following:

3. The Directors have con�rmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies, including this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company 
along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed Vision and Mission statements, overall corporate strategy and signi�cant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that 
complete record of particulars of the signi�cant policies along with their date of approval and subsequent update is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/ Shareholders as empowered 
by the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”) and the Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has 
complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and the Regulations.

9. All the Directors of the Company have either obtained certi�cate of Directors’ Training Program as required under clause 19 of listed companies (Code 
of corporate governance) Regulation 2019 or are exempted from the requirement as per the Regulations. 

10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial O�cer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and 
terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief Executive O�cer and Chief Financial O�cer duly endorsed the �nancial statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed the following committees comprising of members given below:

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

Male
Female

6
1

Non-Executive Director/ Chairman
Female (Non-Executive Director)

Executive Directors

Independent Directors

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Mr. Teizoon Kisat
Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Mr. Abbas Akberali
Ms. Mariam Akberali
Mr. Shayan Akberali
Mr. Hadi Abbas Akberali

Mr. Teizoon Kisat - Chairman

Mr. Badar Kazmi

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

CategoryName of Committee Members

a. Audit Committee

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji - Chairman

Mr. Teizoon Kisat 

Mr. Shayan Akberali 

Independent Director 

Independent Director

Executive Director

CategoryName of Committee Members

b. Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees held during the year are as under:

 a)     Audit Committee – Six (06) meetings

 b)     Human Resource and Remuneration Committee – Two (02) meetings

15. The Board has set up an e�ective internal audit function comprising personnel who are considered suitably quali�ed and experienced for the purpose 
and are well conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have con�rmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of 
the institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in 
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the �rm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the Chief Executive O�cer, Chief Financial O�cer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretory or Director of the Company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, the 
Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have con�rmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We con�rm that all other requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with.

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 is as follows:

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Abbas Akberali
Chairman
23 September 2024
Karachi

Name of Committee Members ExplanationRegulation No.

Nomination Committee

The Board may constitute a separate committee, designated as 
the nomination committee, of such number and class of 
directors, as it may deem appropriate in its circumstances.

29(1) The Board and its HR&R Committee are e�ectively discharging 
the responsibilities prescribed for the Nomination Committee, 
as its constitution is non-mandatory. 

Risk Management Committee

The Board may constitute the risk management committee, of 
such number and class of directors, as it may deem appropriate 
in its circumstances, to carry out a review of e�ectiveness of risk 
management procedures and present a report to the Board.

30(1) The Board and its Audit Committee are e�ectively discharging 
the responsibilities prescribed for the Risk Management 
Committee, as its constitution is non-mandatory.

Signi�cant Policies

The signi�cant policies may include but not limited to the 
anti-harassment policy to safeguard the rights and well-being 
of employees, incorporating the mechanism as prescribed 
under the protection against harassment of women at the 
workplace Act 2010 and the respective provincial laws on the 
protection against harassment of women at workplace for the 
time being in force.

10(A)(4) The Company’s Code of Conduct adequately addresses the 
requirements related to workplace harassment, as recently 
introduced by the SECP in its noti�cation dated 12 June 2024. 

Environmental , Social and Governance (ESG) matters

The Board is responsible for setting the company’s sustainability 
strategies, priorities and targets to create long term corporate 
value. The Board may establish a dedicated sustainability 
committee having at least one female director.

10(A)(5) The Board e�ectively provides governance and oversight in 
relation to the Company’s initiatives on Environmental, Social 
and Governance matters, as recently introduced by the SECP in 
its noti�cation dated 12 June 2024.

Disclosure of signi�cant policies on website

The company may post on its website key elements of its 
signi�cant policies including but not limited to the following:
(1) Communication and disclosure policy
(2) Risk management policy
(3) Internal control policy
(4) Director’s remuneration policy

35(1)(4) As the Regulation does not require mandatory disclosure of key 
elements of its signi�cant policies on the website, the Company 
has not made updates to the website. 
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ROLE OF CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board and ensures that the Board plays an 
e�ective role in ful�lling its responsibilities in terms of formulating and implementing corporate 
direction and strategy. He plays a central role in encouraging e�ective relationships and 
communications between board members especially non-executive directors to promote 
constructive debate and e�ective decision-making.

Besides e�ective operations of the Board, the Chairman ensures that its Committees operate in 
conformity with the highest standards of corporate governance and the committees are properly 
established, composed and operated as required under the applicable corporate laws. At the 
beginning of term of each Director, the Chairman ensures that each Director understands his/ her 
role, obligations, powers and responsibilities in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and 
Company’s Articles of Association. He reviews the Board’s performance and suggests the training 
and development of Board Members on individual and collective basis.

The Chairman sets the agenda of the Board Meetings and ensures that all written notices and 
relevant material, including the agenda, of meetings be circulated amongst the Board Members 
prior to the meetings.

Abbas Akberali

ROLE OF CEO

The Chief Executive of the Company is responsible to manage the overall a�airs and day to day 
operations of the Company and to improve the shareholders’ wealth by way of maximizing the 
pro�ts of the Company under the overall directions of the Board.

He develops strategies for implementation of decisions taken by the Board and its Committees. The 
CEO ensures that he develops adequate �nancial and operational plans and attains the targets set 
by the Board in the best interest of the Company.

He acts as a direct liaison between the Board and Management of the Company and communicates 
to the Board on behalf of Management. He ensures that all strategic and operational risks are 
appropriately managed to an acceptable level and that adequate system of internal controls is in 
place for all major operational and �nancial areas. He is also responsible for highest moral, ethical 
and professional values and good governance culture throughout the organization. Shayan Akberali
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present an overview of the Company’s performance for �scal year 2024. Like recent 
years, this period has been characterized by a challenging economic environment and political 
uncertainties, which have notably impacted the steel industry’s performance, particularly the 
documented steel sector which has encountered signi�cant economic challenges, including 
signi�cant reduction in rebars’ demand, rising utility costs - particularly electricity, high interest rates, 
an irrational tari� structure, and heavy tax burdens. Moreover, record in�ation and resultantly 
decreased purchasing power, regressive tax policies, widespread smuggling across land borders, and 
the growth of undocumented activities have intensi�ed unfair competition and has further disrupted 
market equilibrium.

According to o�cial government records, though the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate for 
FY24 has risen to 2.38% marking a recovery from the previous year's contraction, the industrial sector 
recorded only modest growth of 1.2%, with the large-scale manufacturing sector, including steel 
products, shown minimal growth of just 0.07%. Speci�cally, the iron and steel products sector tapered 
by -2.20% highlighting the signi�cant challenges in the steel industry.

The high-interest rate environment has persisted, with rates reaching 19.5% by June 2024, driving up both the cost of capital and operational expenses, 
putting considerable pressure on capital-intensive industries like steel manufacturing. Moreover, electricity costs in Pakistan remain signi�cantly higher 
than in neighboring countries, further straining the industry. Although in�ation eased to 12.6% in June 2024 from a peak of 31.04% in September 2023, it 
continues to erode purchasing power and in�ate cost structures. The exchange rate, elevated at 278 in June 2024, also undermines market competitiveness.

With these challenges, there are encouraging indicators that may boost demand for steel products. The projected GDP growth of 3.6% for FY25 and 
anticipated improvements in industrial sector performance suggest a cautiously optimistic outlook for the future. The favorable economic forecast for the 
coming year is contingent upon key factors such as political stability and exchange rate stability. The Company is steadfast in its commitment to navigating 
these challenging times with resilience and strategic foresight.

The Board remains fully committed to its governance responsibilities, including oversight of business operations, informed decision-making, risk and 
control management, regulatory compliance, and strategic planning to safeguard and promote our long-term objectives and values. In line with regulatory 
obligations, we conducted our annual self-assessment to evaluate the performance and e�ectiveness of the Board, its members, and committees. I am 
pleased to report that the assessment results were satisfactory, demonstrating the Board’s and its committees' continued dedication to excellence and a 
culture of continuous improvement.

As Chairman of the Board, I am delighted to congratulate our newly elected directors, who will serve a three-year term following their successful election at 
the Extraordinary General Meeting on July 30, 2024. Their appointment marks a signi�cant step forward for our organization, and I am honored to welcome 
them to the Board. With their broad expertise, insights, and diverse perspectives, they will add substantial value, enhancing the Board’s ability to guide the 
Company toward sustained success while maintaining the highest standards of governance, providing objective oversight, and ensuring alignment with 
our mission and values. 

On behalf of the entire Company, I would like to express our heartfelt gratitude to our outgoing directors for their outstanding service and leadership as 
members of the Board of Directors. Their collective expertise, drawn from diverse backgrounds, played a pivotal role in steering the Company to new 
heights. Their strategic insights, dedication to excellence, and commitment to strengthening our governance structure have not only helped shape our 
present but also positioned us for a promising future. The positive impact of their contributions will be felt for many years to come. We are immensely 
grateful for the time, energy, and wisdom they shared with us during their tenure. Their legacy of leadership, integrity, and innovation will remain an 
enduring part of our Company's journey. 

Abbas Akberali
Chairman
23 September 2024

Abbas Akberali
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CEO’s MESSAGE

Shayan Akberali
Chief Executive O�cer
23 September 2024

Yours sincerely,

The combination of rising energy costs, record high interest rates along with political instability has eroded consumer con�dence. Further, cash liquidity has 
been �ushed out from the market due to less disposable income available and funds being routed to alternate investments in secured bank deposits and 
sovereign bonds.

The current high interest rate environment has signi�cantly a�ected our Company’s bottom line. The increased costs associated with borrowing and debt 
servicing have put considerable pressure on our �nancial resources and these costs are severely damaging the economy and hindering growth. 

Our revenue for the outgoing �scal year decreased by 14.76% as compared to last year, whereas our gross pro�t decreased by 59.67%. In quantity terms, 
sales volume of re-bars saw a massive decline by 23.02% YoY, from 229,176 tons to 176,426 tons.

To add to the woes of the Company, we were unsuccessful in negotiating our balance sheet re-pro�ling with the banks, which resulted in the Company not 
being able to meet its �nancial obligations. The situation worsened further as our banking lines remain frozen, preventing the Company from opening 
letters of credit for the import of raw materials. Capacity utilization plummeted from 30% in the third quarter to 12% in the fourth, leading to unabsorbed 
�xed costs eroding gross margins; our contribution margins that could have reduced our losses were also diminished.

The management has once again approached the banks, this time seeking a comprehensive restructuring in light of the new circumstances, including the 
recently promulgated national budget, the Company’s weak �nancial position, extremely low capacity utilization in the �rst half of FY 25, and declining 
demand for graded material in the markets. A detailed proposal has been circulated to all banks, and we are hopeful for a positive response. Additionally, 
all other potential avenues to inject liquidity into the Company are being explored to keep it a�oat during this challenging period.

The repercussions of our unsuccessful re-pro�ling with the banks will likely a�ect the Company’s performance in FY 2025, and to some extent, in FY 2026, 
before conditions normalize. Despite these challenges, we remain hopeful that our lenders will support us and that the successful �nancial restructuring of 
our Company will be pivotal in ensuring the continuity of our operations during these challenging times. By strategically renegotiating our debt obligations 
and optimizing our capital structure, we would have signi�cantly improved our cash �ow and �nancial stability. This restructuring would not only alleviate 
immediate �nancial pressures but also position us for long-term growth. As a result, we would be better equipped to navigate market uncertainties and 
enhance our competitiveness.

Ensuring the sustainability of our business demanded sacri�ces that we would not have even considered under normal circumstances. After thoroughly 
evaluating every alternative to avoid extreme actions, we reached the di�cult conclusion that streamlining our operations was the only way forward. We 
carefully mapped out a strategic course of action, considering our �nancial realities and the dynamic economic landscape. We then outlined the resources 
that were needed to follow through and dispassionately identi�ed the redundancies across our entire operation.  

We undertook an extensive exercise to “right-size” our work force. This decision, above all others, was the one we constantly revisited because of its profound 
impact. This step was especially painful for a Company like Amreli Steels which has been an employer of choice for decades in Pakistan and even more so 
for me personally as CEO because I had made empowering people a key pillar of our mission statement. 

In conclusion, the upcoming �nancial year is set to be incredibly tough. As we look ahead, we will face trials with the same relentless determination and 
commitment that have de�ned us for years. Our strategic vision is unwavering, and our resolve is unyielding. I want to remind you that tough times are often 
the crucibles in which great organizations are forged. Let’s unite our e�orts, lean on each other, and emerge stronger than ever.

I would like to recognize the e�orts of our executive management team for their leadership and hard work during these di�cult times. I would also like to 
thank you for your support and con�dence in the Company and would like to thank all our stake holders for their continued support along with our employ-
ees and the management team for their deep level of commitment to the Company.

Dear Shareholders, 
Assalam-o-Alaikum. 
As we review our recent performance, our Company is currently facing signi�cant challenges in the shifting economic 
landscape, where rising costs, �uctuating consumer behavior, and intense competition are creating a complex 
environment. This past year has pushed our resilience to its limits in ways we’ve never experienced before. I want to 
address these di�culties openly and honestly.

The current economic downturn in our country (now in its third year) has led to a signi�cant decline in consumer 
demand, impacting various sectors, including ours. Rising in�ation and uncertainty about the future have caused 
consumers to tighten their belts, prioritizing essential purchases over discretionary spending. This shift in behavior 
has resulted in lower sales volumes and increased competition for a shrinking market. Shayan Akberali
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Directors’ Report to the Members

Esteemed Shareholders,
The �nancial year 2024 truly tested us as we navigated through extreme di�cult conditions. The Company faced considerable market uncertainty, a 
complex political landscape and economic instability, all of which signi�cantly impacted its �nancial performance. While our �nancial results re�ect the 
obstacles encountered, we remain committed to reinforcing operations and improving resilience. Our dedication to overcoming these hurdles will guide us 
toward a more secure and stable future for the Company. 

From a global economic perspective, the past year witnessed notable shifts, re�ecting a mix of ongoing challenges and concerns. Key issues included the 
lingering impacts of the pandemic, geopolitical con�icts and rising debt levels, all contributing to a slowdown in global growth. These challenges 
underscored the urgent need for stronger international cooperation and comprehensive �nancial reforms to stabilize economies and address climate 
change. 

During the year under review, the global economy faced a tumultuous environment shaped by persistent in�ationary pressures, geopolitical instability, and 
uneven regional growth. Major economies, particularly in the West, contended with the impact of prolonged interest rate hikes as central banks, led by the 
U.S. Federal Reserve and the European Central Bank, sought to combat in�ation. These aggressive monetary policies curbed demand, slowed economic 
expansion, and raised concerns about potential recessions. Emerging markets meanwhile struggled with rising debt burdens, currency depreciation and 
capital �ight, exacerbated by a stronger U.S. dollar and �uctuating commodity prices. The world is witnessing a gradual decline in global in�ation, which 
had previously spiked to concerning levels. While this decrease is a positive sign, in�ationary pressures remain impactful, especially as core in�ation is 
expected to decrease at a slower pace.

Geopolitical tensions, particularly the ongoing con�ict in Ukraine and strained U.S.-China relations, further complicated global trade and investment �ows. 
Energy prices remained volatile, driven by shifting supply dynamics and ongoing disruptions from the war in Eastern Europe, a�ecting the global economy. 
Additionally, supply chain bottlenecks, though somewhat eased compared to previous years, continued to hinder global manufacturing and trade, particu-
larly in critical sectors such as automotive and electronics. Amid these challenges, areas of growth emerged. 

Globally, the technology sector, bolstered by advancements in arti�cial intelligence and digital infrastructure, attracted signi�cant investment. Similarly, the 
global shift toward de-carbonization and renewable energy spurred increased activity in the green energy sector, o�ering hope for future growth. Although 
the global economy remained fragile, e�orts to bolster growth through diversi�cation, innovation, and sustainable practices began gaining traction as 
businesses and governments adapted to the evolving economic landscape. These initiatives will be pivotal in navigating the complex global economic 
terrain and fostering sustainable growth.

In 2024, Pakistan's economy continued to face signi�cant challenges, re�ecting ongoing di�culties from the previous year. Despite claims of recovery, 
pressing issues such as persistent in�ation, political instability, energy shortages, and a weakening currency severely impacted the �nancial stability of the 
populace. While there were indications that in�ation might ease, essential goods remained prohibitively expensive, signi�cantly reducing purchasing 
power. Although agricultural output showed marginal improvements due to favorable weather conditions, it remained inconsistent and insu�cient to fully 
address pressing food security concerns. The government's attempts to implement structural reforms often fell short, as bureaucratic ine�ciencies and 
corruption impeded meaningful progress. E�orts to attract Foreign Direct Investment were met with skepticism, given the prevailing political instability and 
perceived economic mismanagement.

Remittances from overseas Pakistanis, though vital, were insu�cient to o�set the broader economic challenges. While the services sector, particularly 
information technology, showed some resilience, this growth did little to alleviate widespread unemployment, which continued to a�ect a large portion of 
the population. Overall, 2024 highlighted the persistence of economic di�culties that began couple of years back, with few signs of a sustainable recovery. 
The underlying structural issues remained largely unaddressed, leaving the economy in a precarious state and raising concerns about future stability and 
growth.

According to the Economic Survey Report, real GDP experienced growth of 2.4%, marking a reversal from the negative growth of 0.2% recorded in FY23. 
This growth was broad-based, with the agriculture sector emerging as a primary driver, achieving its highest expansion in 19 years at 6.25% in FY24. This 
surge was fueled by substantial increases in key crops such as wheat, rice, and cotton, which collectively grew by 16.82%. Meanwhile, the industrial sector 
demonstrated a modest recovery, growing by 1.21%, while the large-scale manufacturing sector, including steel products, showed minimal growth of just 
0.07%. Speci�cally, the iron and steel products sector contracted by 2.20%, highlighting the signi�cant challenges within the steel industry. The persistence 
of macroeconomic constraints is evident in the decline of the investment-to-GDP ratio, which dropped to 13.14% in FY24 from 14.13% in FY23. This 
decrease is primarily attributed to contractionary macroeconomic policies and ongoing political uncertainty.

The long steel sector in Pakistan, particularly the production of billets and rebars, remain a crucial component of the country’s construction and infrastruc-
ture development industries. However, the sector has faced signi�cant challenges in recent years, including the current year, due to economic instability, 
�uctuating demand, and the impact of global market conditions. The ongoing economic di�culties in Pakistan, including high in�ation, rising energy costs, 
and a depreciating currency, have signi�cantly impacted production costs for long steel manufacturers, particularly those committed to documentation. 
These economic pressures, combined with a slowdown in construction activity due to rising interest rates and reduced government spending on infrastruc-
ture projects, have resulted in a decline in domestic demand for rebars.

Annual Report 2024 64



Pakistan’s long steel industry heavily relies on imported raw materials, such as scrap metal, for billet production. In 2024, the continued depreciation of the 
Pakistani rupee exacerbated import costs, placing additional pressure on manufacturers. Global disruptions in scrap supply and �uctuating international 
prices have further contributed to rising production costs, leading to increased prices for billets and rebars domestically. The industry's dependence on 
energy-intensive processes for billet production has made it highly susceptible to Pakistan’s ongoing energy shortages. Frequent power outages, skyrocket-
ing electricity tari�s, and gas supply constraints have caused production disruptions, increasing manufacturing costs and reducing operational e�ciency. 
This, in turn, has led to higher steel prices, making local products less competitive.

The tax exemptions granted to the FATA/PATA regions have created signi�cant challenges for regulated steel producers. Originally intended to promote 
development in these areas, the exemptions have been largely abused, with approximately 90% of the steel produced being sold across the country 
without paying sales tax. This has put legitimate, tax-paying companies at a severe disadvantage. As a result, many compliant businesses are struggling to 
survive under the burden of heavy taxation. Even more alarming is the massive loss of tax revenue, estimated in the hundreds of billions of rupees, that has 
deprived the government of essential revenue needed for economic growth. It is crucial for the government to address this unequal tax structure, which 
punishes compliant industries while bene�ting those in unregulated regions. Without immediate corrective measures, the domestic steel industry could 
face irreversible damage, forcing many already struggling companies to shut down. 

The current turnover tax rate is a signi�cant burden on companies, particularly regulated units in the steel industry, which operate with high capital 
investments and narrow margins. Rising production costs and signi�cantly declining demand have turned already tight pro�t margins into outright losses, 
making the high turnover tax even more oppressive. Since this tax is levied on gross revenue, regardless of pro�tability, it becomes especially di�cult for 
businesses facing economic downturns, like those in the steel sector.

An additional concern is the limited three-year period allowed for adjusting turnover tax. This short timeframe is inadequate for industries attempting to 
recover from major economic challenges. The Pakistan Business Council and other economic advocacy groups have proposed extending this adjustment 
period to at least 10 years, allowing businesses more time to manage the �nancial impact of the tax. They also recommend reducing the turnover tax rate 
to 0.5% for the steel sector to better align with current economic conditions, o�ering much-needed relief to industries vital to the nation’s economic 
recovery. Revising the turnover tax policy would not only relieve immediate �nancial pressure on businesses but also foster a more sustainable environment 
for long-term growth, particularly for heavily taxed sectors like steel.

Political uncertainty in Pakistan, coupled with inconsistent industrial policies, has further dampened investor con�dence in the steel sector. The lack of a 
stable, long-term policy framework for the steel industry, especially in relation to energy pricing, tax structure and import tari�s, has created a challenging 
environment for documented players.

Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2024:

It is evident that the Company faced signi�cant challenges during the �nancial year ended 30 June 2024, which substantially impacted the Company's 
�nancial performance. The sustained economic downturn in Pakistan, characterized by escalating in�ation, volatile exchange rates, and unprecedented 
energy costs, particularly electricity, have placed considerable pressure on the Company's operations. Despite e�orts to streamline processes and enhance 
e�ciency, these macroeconomic forces have resulted in reduced production capacity and increased costs, ultimately leading to �nancial loss for the year. 

A comparison of the key �nancial indicators of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2024 with the corresponding year is as under: 

The �nancial results for the year ended 30 June 2024 show a stark decline compared to the previous year, re�ecting the signi�cant challenges faced by the 
Company. Sales revenue dropped by 14.76%, falling from Rs.45.49 billion in FY23 to Rs. 38.78 billion in FY24. This contraction in revenue is primarily attribut-
ed to ongoing demand contraction, intense price competition, and the entry of new competitors in the northern region. This in�ux of competition has 
created a signi�cant price disparity between the northern and southern markets, leading to market disequilibrium. During the �nancial year under review, 
the Company sold a total of 174,071 metric tons of prime rebars, a decrease from the 218,279 metric tons recorded in FY23. This represents a decline of 
44,262 metric tons, or 20.28%, in overall sales volume compared to the previous year.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023Particulars

Sales Revenue

Gross Pro�t

Operating (Loss)/ Pro�t

Loss Before Tax

Loss After Tax

Loss per share - basic and diluted (in Rupees)

38,775,737

2,401,426

(130,787)

(5,391,396)

(6,106,723)

(20.56)

45,492,724

5,953,930

3,998,651

(301,186)

(697,196)

(2.35)

………….. Rupees in thousands …………..
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Gross pro�t experienced a steep decline of 59.67%, falling from Rs. 5.95 billion in FY23 to Rs. 2.40 billion in FY24. This reduction re�ects mounting produc-
tion costs mainly consisting of unabsorbed �xed cost due to low-capacity utilization, increased energy prices and rupee devaluation of 20% (I USD = 
average Rs. 239 in FY 23 to Rs. 286 in FY24). Another factor that has severely impacted the Company’s volume in the fourth quarter was the unsuccessful 
re-pro�ling of balance sheet with the lenders because of which the Company was not able to utilize available lines to open LCs to procure steel. This �nancial 
bottleneck disrupted operations and hindered critical imports, leading to a substantial decline in Company’s �nancial position. These increased costs 
coupled with the inability to pass onto consumers due to �erce competition has dropped the gross margin from 13.09% in FY23 to 6.19% in FY24 and to 
gross loss of 18.17% in the fourth quarter. The failure to secure timely �nancial support has not only exacerbated the situation in FY24 but will also have 
lingering e�ects into FY25 and FY26. 

Operating performance shifted drastically, with an operating loss of Rs. 130.79 million reported in FY24, compared to an operating pro�t of Rs. 3.99 billion 
in FY23. This shift was driven by lower gross margin and other costs increases primarily three factors �rst, increase in salaries in light of unprecedented 
general in�ation; second, increased cartage and transport costs driven by rising local freight rates during FY24, with average fuel prices climbing to Rs. 283 
per liter from Rs. 241 per liter in FY23, along with higher freight charges due to axle load regulations; and third, increase in allowance for expected credit loss 
for the receivables aging over and above 180 days by increasing default rates considering prevailing economic conditions 

Furthermore, �nance costs experienced a substantial rise despite lower level of volumes in FY 24 as compared to FY23, increasing from Rs. 4.0 billion last 
year to Rs. 4.7 billion in FY24. This increase in interest costs was primarily due to a rise in the average interest rate, which increased from 18.45% in FY23 to 
22.86% in FY24. Importantly, the average borrowing levels remained relatively constant across both periods, indicating that the increase in �nance costs can 
be solely attributed to the higher interest rates. Additionally, borrowing as of the balance sheet date increased due to the transition from Usance to Sight 
Letters of Credit following the easing of LC restrictions in July 2023, alongside cash losses and repayment obligations for matured operational capital 
expenditures.

For the �nancial year ended 30 June 2024, the Company has carried forward Rs. 2,678 million in minimum taxes, including Rs. 485 million for the current 
year. These taxes are recorded as expense in the �nancial year under review due to anticipated low pro�tability and existing carry-forward taxable losses, as 
required under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, if future conditions permit recovery, these amounts will be reversed and recognized as income 
under the applicable �nancial reporting standards.

The loss before tax surged to Rs. 5.39 billion in FY24, a marked increase from Rs. 301.19 million in the previous year. Similarly, the loss after tax expanded 
exponentially to Rs. 6.11 billion, compared to Rs. 697.20 million in FY23. This sharp rise in loss indicates the compounded �nancial di�culties faced during 
the year, including political uncertainty, a general election in February 2024, and market instability. Loss Per Share (LPS) also re�ected the deteriorating 
�nancial position, with a LPS of Rs.20.56 in FY24 compared to a LPS of Rs.2.35 in FY23. 

In summary, the �nancial year 2024 was characterized by a combination of external economic pressures, market competition, and internal operational and 
�nancial di�culties, which severely impacted both top-line and bottom-line performance. Despite the challenging economic landscape, the management 
team and sta� have worked diligently to minimize the adverse e�ects on operations. By prioritizing the optimization of internal processes and adhering to 
sustainable practices, the company is committed to overcoming these challenges and positioning itself for growth when the economic environment 
stabilizes.

Future Outlook:

In reference to Note 2 to the annual audited �nancial statements of the Company, the Board of Directors would like to draw attention to the events, 
conditions, and factors that, according to the external auditors, indicate an uncertainty that may cast doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. Management has developed a comprehensive action plan, which includes a major balance sheet re-pro�ling, injection of fresh funds from various 
other sources, costs rationalization given the lower volumes expected in FY 25 and FY 26, complete moratorium on capital expenditure and future 
expansion plans particularly in steel to address and mitigate these concerns, focusing on stabilizing the Company’s �nancial position and ensuring 
long-term sustainability. The Board and management are closely monitoring the situation and remain con�dent that these steps will improve the Compa-
ny’s �nancial health, allowing it to continue operations as a going concern.

As in�ation trends begin to show signs of improvement, headline in�ation eased to 9.6% year-on-year in August 2024, down from 12.6% in June. This 
decline indicates a positive shift in the economic landscape, as core in�ation also decreased to 11.9%, down from 14.1%. These reductions in in�ation rates 
suggest that the measures taken by the government and the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to control price levels are beginning to show some sign of 
improvement providing hope for consumers and businesses alike.

While risks persist, including uncertainties regarding future energy price adjustments and potential �uctuations in global commodity prices, the overall 
outlook is cautiously optimistic on macro level. The SBP’s Monetary Policy Committee anticipates that average in�ation for FY25 may fall below earlier 
forecasts if �scal and external targets are met, signaling a commitment to maintaining economic stability. Furthermore, the Asian Development Bank 
projects GDP growth of 2.8% in FY25, expected to be driven by a robust framework of deeper economic reforms, improved political stability, and a focus on 
infrastructure development. These reforms are expected to enhance productivity and foster an environment conducive to investment, which can further 
stimulate economic growth.
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However, despite continuous promises of �scal discipline, the government's expenditure has continued to rise at an unsustainable rate, exacerbating the 
�nancial strain on the economy. While industries and the general public have been asked to tighten their belts, the same level of restraint has not been 
re�ected in government spending. Instead of curbing unnecessary expenditures, loss-making State-Owned Enterprises (SOEs) remain under government 
control, draining national resources. Despite the tall claims, no meaningful e�orts have been made to privatize these failing entities, which continue to 
accumulate losses and siphon o� public funds.

Additionally, the absence of serious structural reforms further weakens the economic landscape. Key reforms, especially in the taxation system and public 
sector e�ciency, have been neglected. The burden of taxation, instead of being spread equitably, has disproportionately fallen on the already taxed 
segments, particularly the salaried class. The introduction of a "super tax" of 10%, framed as a surcharge, is another example of the government’s reliance 
on overtaxing compliant sectors, rather than broadening the tax base or addressing chronic ine�ciencies. This approach not only sti�es economic growth 
but also demoralizes those who contribute fairly to the nation’s revenues, while large swaths of the economy remain under-taxed or outside the tax net 
altogether. For genuine economic revival, the government must not only focus on reducing expenditure but also undertake serious structural reforms, 
including the long-delayed privatization of loss-making SOEs and the establishment of a more equitable and sustainable taxation system.

In conclusion, while challenges remain, the combination of declining in�ation, projected GDP growth, and targeted reforms, if implemented, can convert 
the outlook of Pakistan's economy in the coming years from negative to positive. With sustained e�orts and collaboration between the government and the 
private sector, we can hope to witness gradual recovery. As we navigate this tumultuous landscape, our collective resilience and commitment to strategic 
action will be crucial in overcoming these obstacles. We are determined to emerge stronger, adapting to shifting market conditions and positioning 
ourselves for future growth as the domestic economic and political environment stabilizes. According to forecasts from the IMF and World Bank, Pakistan’s 
GDP is expected to grow at an average rate of 4% from FY26 onward. Interest rates, having begun to decline, are projected to reach single digits by mid-next 
�nancial year. Strong demand potential exists in the construction sector due to the current infrastructure state, low water reservoir levels, and signi�cant 
housing shortfalls, all within a population of approximately 240 million that is growing at over 2% annually. Additionally, Pakistan ranks lowest in per capita 
steel consumption in the region. Consequently, management is con�dent that the future outlook for both the sector and the Company is promising.

Role of Pakistan Association of Large Steel Producers: 

The Pakistan Association of Large Steel Producers (PALSP) plays a vital role in advocating for the sustainability of the steel industry amid signi�cant challeng-
es. The Board of Directors expresses its sincere gratitude to PALSP for its dedicated e�orts in addressing critical issues facing the sector. The Association has 
actively engaged with government authorities and industry stakeholders to highlight the negative impacts of large-scale smuggling, mis-declaration, and 
under-invoicing of steel imports, which undermine local competitiveness and result in substantial revenue losses for the national exchequer. The PALSP has 
emphasized the urgent need for stricter enforcement against these illegal activities and has called for essential reforms in energy policies. Their advocacy 
for renegotiating agreements with Independent Power Producers (IPPs), addressing ine�ciencies in the power sector, and restructuring energy debt is 
crucial for alleviating the �nancial burdens on consumers and documented industrial players. These reforms are vital for the steel industry, which is currently 
facing soaring energy costs, currency depreciation, and increased �nancial pressures.

The Board acknowledges PALSP’s signi�cant contributions, particularly during a time when many steel mills are experiencing extreme �nancial di�culties, 
with some ceasing operations and others operating at reduced capacities. PALSP’s commitment to �nding long-term solutions and fostering dialogue for 
the industry's revival is commendable and re�ects a shared vision for the sector's survival, which is essential for Pakistan's economic growth and industrial 
development. Company fully supports PALSP’s mission to protect the future of the steel industry and appreciates the Association’s ongoing e�orts to 
advocate for policies that promote a competitive, fair, and sustainable environment for steel producers nationwide.

Governance:

Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework:

The Board of Directors of your Company is committed to upholding rigorous standards of e�ective corporate governance. The Directors a�rm their 
adherence to the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework established by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Code of 
Corporate Governance for the following areas - 

(a) The �nancial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of a�airs, the results of its operations, cash �ows and changes 
in equity fairly.

(b) The Company has maintained proper books of accounts.

(c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied to prepare the �nancial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgments.

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed in the preparation of �nancial statements.
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(e) The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been e�ectively implemented and monitored. The process of monitoring the internal 
controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system.

(f ) There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

(g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the Regulations of the Rule Book of the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited.

(h) A summary of key operating and �nancial data of the Company is annexed to this annual report. 

(i) Information about taxes and levies is given in notes to the �nancial statements. 

(j) The Company has an unfunded de�ned gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying years of service 
for entitlement of gratuity. The provision for gratuity is in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was 
carried out as of 30 June 2024 using Projected Unit Credit Method. Being an unfunded gratuity scheme, no investment could have been made and 
hence the value of investments as at 30 June 2024 stands Nil. 

Board of Directors;

The governance at Amreli Steels is a combination of processes established and executed by the Board of Directors and the management of the Company, 
which is re�ected in the Company’s structure and how it is managed and led toward achieving its goals as a whole. 

The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutory and regulatory compliance requirements that are applicable to companies listed 
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and Company’s Articles of Association complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures include a 
risk assessment and control system, as well as a system of assurances on compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Company’s Code of Conduct.
The Board of Directors of your Company is highly engaged in maintaining long-term and sustainable value creation founded on durable ideologies of 
governance. The Board comprises of three Independent Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors. 

The Board of Directors of the Company as of 30 June 2024 consists of:

The names and composition of the Board of Directors as of 30 June 2024 are as follows:

a. Independent Directors

b. Non-Executive Director

c. Female Non-Executive Director

d. Executive Directors

Composition of Directors Name of Directors

1) Badar Kazmi

2) Teizoon Kisat

3) Zafar Ahmed Taji 

4) Abbas Akberali 

5) Mariam Akberali

6) Shayan Akberali

7) Hadi Abbas Akberali

Total Number of Directors 7

6

1

i) Men

ii) Women
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During the year, �ve (05) meetings of the Board of Directors took place. All the meetings took place in Pakistan. The attendance by each director in the 
meetings is as follows:

Abbas Akberali - Chairman

Teizoon Kisat 

Badar Kazmi

Zafar Ahmed Taji

Shayan Akberali

Hadi Abbas Akberali

Mariam Akberali

05/05

05/05

05/05

05/05

04/05

05/05

05/05

Name of Directors Number of Meetings Attended

Board’s Audit Committee:

The Board’s Audit Committee (BAC) monitors the Company’s systems of internal controls and risk management process periodically, assisting the Board in ful�lling 
its oversight responsibilities primarily in reviewing regulatory compliance risks and reporting �nancial and non-�nancial information to shareholders. 

The BAC reviews and challenges, where necessary, the actions and judgments of management. The BAC has the autonomy to call for information from 
management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors as considered appropriate. The Chief Financial O�cer of the Company attends the BAC 
meetings by invitation to present the interim and annual accounts. After each meeting, the Chairman of the BAC reports to the Board.

During the year, six (06) meetings of the BAC took place. All the meetings took place in Pakistan. The attendance by each director in the BAC meetings is as follows:

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

The purpose of the Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (HR&R) is to assist the Board in ful�lling its oversight responsibilities in the �eld of Human 
Resources, their development, succession planning and compensation and to perform all such responsibilities as are assigned to the HR&R Committee by 
the Act and the Code of Corporate Governance Regulations. During the year, two meetings of the HR&R Committee took place. The meetings took place in 
Pakistan. The CEO of the Company is a member of the Board’s HR&R Committee. The Head of HR attended the HR&R Committee meeting by invitation. The 
attendance by each Director in the HR&R Committee meeting is as follows:

Annual Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board:

The Company is committed to implementing and adhering to corporate governance guidelines and best practices, not only to enhance long-term 
shareholder value but also to uphold the rights of minority shareholders. It views the timely and accurate disclosure of �nancial performance, leadership, 
and governance as a fundamental responsibility. An annual performance evaluation report of the Board of Directors and its Committees is included in the 
Chairman’s Review section of this annual report.

Female Directors:

The Company is dedicated to fostering gender diversity in the workplace and ensuring equal opportunities for all individuals, based on merit and 
quali�cations. Female directors currently comprise 14% of the Board of Directors. By including female representation on the Board, the Company adheres 
to Section 154 of the Companies Act, 2017, as well as the Code of Corporate Governance Regulations. The Board and management actively encourage the 
recruitment of female employees within the organization.

Teizoon Kisat - Chairman

Badar Kazmi

Zafar Ahmed Taji 

06/06

06/06

06/06

Name of Directors Number of Meetings Attended

Zafar Ahmed Taji - Chairman

Teizoon Kisat

Shayan Akberali

02

02

02

Name of Directors Number of Meetings Attended
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Review of CEO’s Performance:

The performance of the CEO is reviewed against pre-determined operational and strategic goals aligned with the Vision, Mission and Values of the 
Company. The well-de�ned appraisal system includes the performance of the business, the accomplishment of objectives with reference to pro�ts, 
organization building, succession planning and corporate success.

Directors’ Remuneration: 

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and Code 
of Corporate Governance. The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board. In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, it is 
ensured that no Director takes part in the proceedings of the Board Meetings in deciding his own remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration 
to non-executive directors except fee for attending the meetings. The Company’s remuneration policies are structured in line with prevailing industry 
trends and business practices. The details of the Directors and CEO’s remuneration are adequately disclosed in respective notes to the �nancial statements.

Directors’ Training: 

The Board organizes orientation courses for Directors as needed to ensure they are well-acquainted with their responsibilities as speci�ed in the Companies 
Act, 2017, and the Code of Corporate Governance. The Company guarantees that new Directors receive comprehensive brie�ng and orientation materials 
to provide them with an in-depth understanding of the Company's operations. 

All Board members have either completed the Directors’ Training Program certi�cation or exempted under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019. To keep Board members updated on changes in corporate law, the Company regularly conducts refresher courses that 
familiarize them with recent developments in corporate legislation and other pertinent rules and regulations. These sessions are also extended to senior 
executives within the organization.

External Auditors:

The present auditors, M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants are retiring at the conclusion of the annual general meeting scheduled on 26 October 
2024 and o�ering themselves for re-appointment. The Board, upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, has endorsed the re-appointment of M/s. 
BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2025.

Internal Audit:

The Company has an independent Internal Audit function comprising personnel who are considered suitably quali�ed and experienced for the purpose 
and are well conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. The department is overseen by the Head of Internal Audit who functionally 
reports to the Board’s Audit Committee and administratively reports to the Chief Executive. 

Strategic Planning:

The Board of Directors regularly review the strategic direction of the Company in Board Meetings. The Board ensures that short term & long term business 
and operational strategies established by the management are in line with the Company’s overall business objectives. 

Material Changes Concerning the Nature of the Business: 

During the �nancial year under review, there has been no material change concerning the nature of business of the Company. 

Material Changes Between Balance Sheet Date and Reporting Date (Subsequent Events):

There have been no material changes since 30 June 2024 to date of the report and the Company has not entered into any commitment during this period, 
which would have an adverse impact on the �nancial position of the Company except as disclosed in note no.52 to the annexed annual audited �nancial 
statements of the Company.

Pattern of Shareholding:

The Pattern of shareholdings as of 30 June 2024 is annexed with this annual report.

Communication with Shareholders:

The Company places high priority on timely communication with its shareholders. The annual and interim �nancial results are disseminated to all 
concerned immediately upon their approval by the Board of Directors as per the compliance requirements. 

The Company also has a website (www.amrelisteels.com) which, inter-alia, contains up-to-date information on the Company's activities, �nancial reports, 
notices and announcements.

The Company has a dedicated email ID (i.e. investor-relations@amrelisteels.com) to address and gives due priority to the queries of its shareholders and take 
appropriate measures to resolve their grievances.

Annual Report 2024 70



Safeguarding of Records:

The Company has a well-de�ned system for safeguarding of its assets in an e�ective manner. The Company puts ample importance on storage and the safe 
custody of its �nancial records. The Company uses SAP as an ERP system for recording its �nancial information. The access to electronic documentation has 
been secured through implementation of a comprehensive password protected authorization matrix in SAP-ERP system. 

As required by the Companies Act, 2017, records of all circular resolutions and minutes of Board Meetings are maintained in physical form for at least 10 
years and for good in electronic form. Further, records of members’ resolutions and minutes of general meetings are preserved both physically and in 
electronic form respectively for 20 years and permanently. 

Principal Activities of the Company (Nature of Business):

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of steel bars and billets and is the largest manufacturer of steel reinforcement bars in Pakistan. The 
Company’s product portfolio includes high strength deformed bars as per American and British speci�cations. Amreli Steels is ISO 9001:2008 and PSQCA 
certi�ed.

Modi�cation in the Audit Report:

The External Auditors of the Company have provided a clean opinion on the state and a�airs of the Company and the same is enclosed in this annual report; 
and as such, there has been no modi�cation in the Auditors’ Report for the year under review. However, in reference to Note 2 to the annual audited �nancial 
statements of the Company, the Board of Directors would like to draw attention to the events, conditions, and factors that, according to the external 
auditors, indicate an uncertainty and may cast doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The management has developed a 
comprehensive action plan to address and mitigate these concerns, focusing on stabilizing the Company’s �nancial position and ensuring long-term 
sustainability. The Board and management are closely monitoring the situation and remain con�dent that these steps will improve the Company’s �nancial 
health, allowing it to continue operations as a going concern.

Holding Company:

The Company does not have any parent company nor a subsidiary company.

Payment Methodology:

The Company strongly believes in timely payments of its debts to all its stakeholders. 

Internal Control Framework:

The Board acknowledges its responsibility towards the implementation of an e�ective internal control environment throughout the organization. Your 
Company has set up an e�cient and e�ective internal audit function which rigorously monitors the control environment of the Company. A comprehensive 
report on internal controls of the Company is presented in this annual report. 

Business Continuity Plan:

The Company’s comprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is in place which includes activities required to keep the organization running without 
interruption of normal operations during a period of disaster. The report on BCP is annexed in this annual report. 

Health, Safety and Environment - Impact of the Company’s Business on the Environment:

The Company is committed to developing, promoting and achieving the highest standards of Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) to ensure the 
well-being of people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate. The detailed policy of HSE is enclosed in this annual report. 

Human Resource Management:

The Company employs a talented workforce that steers the organization towards its vision through professional development and motivation. The 
Company has been on a journey of Human Resource (HR) transformation. The HR strategy is constantly evolving to meet the needs and challenges of an 
organization operating in an evolving market. 
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Employees’ Retirement Bene�ts:

The Company has an unfunded de�ned gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying years of service for 
entitlement of gratuity. The provision for gratuity is in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out 
on 30 June 2024 using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Activities under Corporate Social Responsibility: 

Contribution to the community has been at the core of Amreli Steels since its inception and the Company strongly believes in improving the standards of 
living of its employees and the community at large. A comprehensive report on CSR Activities of the Company is part of this annual report with the caption 
of “Corporate Social Responsibility”. 

The Corporate Governance Practices:

The Board of Directors of the Company is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance. The corporate governance practice of the Company 
is based on statutory and regulatory compliance requirements that are applicable to companies listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and 
Company’s Articles of Association complemented by several internal procedures. The Board is responsible for governing the organization by setting 
strategies and objectives of the Company. The management is required to adopt and formulate policies and guidelines for achieving the said goals and 
objectives. 

Dividend and Appropriations:

As detailed in this �nancial report, the Company experienced a �nancial loss of Rs.6 billion for the year under review. Given this �nancial shortfall and 
considering the volatile and uncertain business environment within the country, the Company regrettably cannot recommend any distribution of cash 
dividends for the �scal year ended 30 June 2024.

Contribution to National Exchequer:

The Company contributed Rs.6.54 billion (FY 2023: Rs.10.6 billion) towards the National Exchequer on account of various government levies, taxes and 
import duties in the year under review. 

Code of Conduct:

The Code of Conduct of the Company de�nes what we stand for and believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly high ethical standards our Company 
has upheld since its foundation. Strong business ethics forms the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitors, suppliers and 
colleagues. It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity and in accordance with the highest ethical and legal 
standards. 

Operating & Financial Data:

Operating and �nancial data and key ratios of the Company for the last six years are annexed to this annual report.

Acknowledgement:

The Board would like to express its deepest gratitude to valued stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, �nancial institutions, and suppliers, for 
your trust and support, especially during these unprecedented times. Your con�dence has always been the bedrock of our strength and resilience, and we 
are profoundly thankful for your continued partnership.

At this juncture, we would like to express our sincere gratitude to the outgoing directors for their valuable contributions. Their leadership, guidance, and 
service have made a lasting impact on the company’s strategic direction and growth. We deeply appreciate their e�orts and extend our best wishes for their 
continued success and well-being in the future.

The Board extend appreciation to the management team and dedicated employees, whose tireless e�orts and unwavering dedication have been critical 
during this period of uncertainty. Their resilience and commitment have been integral in navigating the Company through these turbulent times. Amid 
these challenges, we remain committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance, transparency, and ethical business practices. Your 
support and trust are deeply valued, and we will continue working to restore the strength and sustainability of the Company for the years ahead.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Shayan Akberali
Chief Executive O�cer

23 September 2024
Karachi

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi
Director
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38,775,737

2,401,426

(130,787)

(5,391,396)

(6,106,723)

(20.56)

45,492,724

5,953,930

3,998,651

(301,186)

(697,196)

(2.35)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Introduction

We are pleased to present annual Audit Committee Report which provides an insight into our work, the issues handled and the focus of the Audit 
Committee’s deliberations during 2023-24. The Audit Committee assists the Board in ful�lling its oversight responsibilities in areas such as the integrity of 
�nancial reporting, the e�ectiveness of the risk management and internal control system and related compliance and governance matters. We are also 
responsible for making a recommendation to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of the external auditors.

Audit Committee Members

The committee comprises of three Independent Non-Executive Directors 

Chair: Mr. Teizoon Kisat (Independent Non-Executive and �nancially-literate* Director)

Members: 

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji   (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Badar Kazmi              (Independent Non-Executive Director)

*as de�ned in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The members of the Audit Committee have the appropriate knowledge, skills and experience to carry out the tasks entrusted to the Committee by the 
Board. The approved minutes of Audit Committee are circulated to the Board for information and guidance.

Audit Committee Attendance

During the current year, six (06) meetings were held and attendance was as tabled.

Name of Member Number of Meetings Attended

Mr. Teizoon Kisat 06

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji 06

Mr. Badar Kazmi 06

Synopsis of Activities 

Financial Reporting

The Committee has a process to review the �nancial information of the Company when quarterly and annual �nancial statements and the reports are 
presented to the Committee by the CFO.  The �nancial reporting was assessed to ensure that credible and reliable information should be timely reported. 
Annual and quarterly �nancial statements were reviewed prior to their approval by the Board of Directors.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except for the changes, if any, which have been appropriately disclosed in the �nancial 
statements. Applicable International Financial Reporting Standards were followed in the preparation of �nancial statements of the Company on a going 
concern basis, for the �nancial year ended 30 June 2024, which present fairly the state of a�airs, results of operations, cash �ows and changes in equity of 
the Company for the year under review.

Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company in 
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is consistent with management processes and adequate for shareholders’ needs.

Review of related party transactions

The Audit Committee reviewed the statement of signi�cant related party transactions, submitted by the management. Audit Committee ensured the 
disclosure of materially signi�cant related party transactions. During the year 2023-2024, the Company has entered into certain related party transactions 
as disclosed in the respective note to the Financial Statements. The details of all related party transactions were placed quarterly before the audit committee 
of the Company and upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, the same were placed before the Board for review and approval.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

E�ectiveness of Internal Control System

The Audit Committee reviewed, discussed and briefed the Board on the regular reports on risks, controls and assurance, in order to monitor the 
e�ectiveness of internal controls over �nancial reporting, compliances and operational matters.

The Audit Committee, on the basis of the internal audit reports, reviewed the adequacy of controls and compliance shortcomings in areas audited and 
discussed corrective actions in the light of management responses. This has ensured the continual evaluation of controls and improved compliances. 

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the ongoing e�ectiveness & independence of the external auditors and making recommendations to 
the Board with respect to the re-appointment of external auditors. 

The external auditors were allowed direct access to Audit Committee.  The Audit Committee reviewed the Management Letter issued by external auditors 
and the management response thereto. Observations were discussed with the auditors and required actions recorded. 

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors without the executive management during the year under review to discuss reservations, if any, arising 
from audit and any matters the external auditors may wish to discuss without the presence of management. 

On 22 Septemer 2023, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board re-appointment of external auditors along with �xing remuneration for the year 
ending 30 June 2024. The Shareholders approved the recommendation in Annual General Meeting held on 24 October 2023 and M/s. BDO Ebrahim & co., 
Chartered Accountants were appointed as external auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2024.

Internal Auditor

The Company has established Internal Audit Function, which is responsible for conducting audits to evaluate the e�ectiveness of the Company’s internal 
controls, risk management processes and compliance with regulations. The Internal Audit Function is led by “Head of Internal Audit” who possesses the 
necessary quali�cation prescribed under the CCG Regulations 2019. The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman Audit Committee.  The 
Committee has ensured that the internal audit function is adequately sta�ed with personnel possessing the necessary internal audit acumen. The Internal 
Audit function has unrestricted access to Management and the right to seek information and explanation. The Internal Audit function has carried out its 
duties under the Audit Charter de�ned by the Committee. The Committee has carefully reviewed material �ndings with management given direction to 
ensure that necessary steps were taken to mitigate any issues. Head of Internal Audit attends all Committee meetings, during which internal audit reports 
are considered and discussed. 
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct (the Code) of the Company de�nes what we stand for and believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly high ethical standards, our 
Company has upheld since it was founded. Strong business ethics should form the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitors, 
suppliers and colleagues. It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity and in accordance with the highest 
ethical and legal standards.

Here we clearly state our business principles and show their impact on everyone involved with the Company; from the Board, management and employees, 
to the consumers, suppliers and business partners.

Following are the salient features of the Code of Conduct, however the complete code of conduct can be viewed at the Company’s website at the link 
https://www.amrelisteels.com/investor-relations#codeOfConduct

Applicability

The Code applies to the following (collectively termed as “Company Personnel” for the purposes of this Code):

• Members of the Board of Directors

• Senior Management Personnel

• All employees of the Company

Consequences of Non-Compliance of Code

Any breach of the Code, terms of appointment, Company’s polices, rules and regulations or any acts of misconduct and fraud or embezzlement will be 
viewed seriously and may invite disciplinary action, including the termination of employment and criminal prosecution, if required. For the said purpose, all 
Company’s polices and rules will also be deemed to be an integral part of this Code.

Con�icts of Interest

The Company expects that all personnel will perform their duties conscientiously, honestly and in accordance with the best interests of the Company. The 
Company personnel must not use their positions or the knowledge gained as a result of their positions for private or personal advantage.

Regardless of the circumstances, if directors/employees sense that a course of action they have pursued, or are presently pursuing, or are contemplating 
pursuing may involve them in a con�ict of interest with their employer, they should immediately communicate all the facts to their supervisor or to the 
Board as the case may be.

Inside Information

The Company personnel shall not use for their own �nancial gain or disclose for the use of others, inside information obtained as a result of their position 
within the Company. 

The Company personnel may �nd themselves in violation of the applicable laws if they misuse information not generally known to the public and either 
trade or induce others to trade in the shares of the Company or in the stock of another Company. Speci�c con�dential information would include �nancial 
information, information concerning acquisitions or dispositions of properties and proposed acquisition or mergers with other companies.

In case of this breach of con�dentiality, the Company may be subjected to regulatory penalties and therefore, to prevent and address such instances, it may 
consider disciplinary and legal recourse.

Health and Safety

We recognize the importance of health and safety within our business. We seek to provide a healthy, safe and clean working environment in line with local 
laws, regulations and industrial practice. We measure, appraise and report performance, as part of our commitment to the health and safety of our 
employees, contractors and everyone who works on or visits our sites.

We should take such steps as are reasonably practicable, to ensure that they meet our health and safety objectives. These are -

• To provide and maintain safe and healthy working places and systems of work in order to protect all Company personnel and others, including visitors 
and the public, in so far as they come into contact with foreseeable work hazards.

• To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working environment for all Company personnel, taking into account individuals' needs and abilities.

• To develop safety awareness amongst all Company’s personnel to enable them to take reasonable care for their own health and safety and of other 
people who may be a�ected by their acts or omissions.
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Consumers

We are committed to providing consumers with high-quality, wholesome products which are marketed truthfully, labeled clearly, and, as a minimum, meet 
domestic and global quality and safety regulations. 

Suppliers

The Company is con�dent that its suppliers desire to operate in an environment that is free from in�uence due to unethical business practices. Therefore, 
suppliers are expected to conduct business in a manner that would not, in any way, compromise the ethical principles adopted by the Company. To ensure 
this, the Company may convey its ethics requirements to its suppliers directly and also hold trainings and orientations for this purpose.

Integrity and Professionalism

The Company personnel should remember that they are a re�ection on the Company and are constantly being judged or otherwise appraised by everyone 
they come in contact with. All Company personnel should conduct themselves with the highest degree of integrity and professionalism in the workplace 
or any other location while on Company business.

Community Activities

We recognize our responsibilities as a member of the communities in which we operate and commit resources to support community and social investment 
through national or locally targeted programs in partnership with others. We will also encourage and support employee e�¬orts to be involved in and 
provide leadership in the educational and social fabric of the communities in which they live.

Protection of the Environment

The Company personnel shall treat the protection of the environment as an integral factor in all decision making. The Company is committed to the 
protection of the environment. To comply with this commitment, the Company’s policy is to meet or exceed all applicable governmental requirements. 
Employees must report to their superior all circumstances in which toxic substances are spilled or released into the environment.

Violations of environmental laws, even if unintentional, can carry severe penalties, and could result in the prosecution of the Company or the employees 
involved or both. Failure to comply with the Company’s instructions for the protection of the environment may result in disciplinary actions.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company is committed to the highest standards of transparency, honesty, openness and accountability. In order to ensure compliance with the best 
practices of the Corporate Governance, the Company has incorporated a Whistleblowing Policy (“the Policy”) to detect, identify and report any activity 
which is not in line with the Company policies, any misuse of Company’s properties or any breach of law which may a�ect the reputation of the Company. 

The Policy applies to all employees, management and the Board and extends to every individual associated with the Company including contractors, 
suppliers, business partners and the shareholders who are encouraged to report serious concerns that could have a signi�cant impact on the Organization, 
such as:

• unlawful civil or criminal o�ence;

• failure to comply with statutory obligations/requirements;

• �nancial or non-�nancial mismanagement, fraud and corruption, including bribery;

• violation of various corporate policies-governing business conduct;

• violation of health, safety & environmental standards applicable to the business;

• harassment, discrimination or other unfair employment practices;

• attempt to conceal or suppress information relating to the above.

Open and candid communication is an important part of our culture. All concerns are to be made in writing to ensure a clear understanding of the issues 
being raised. Whistleblowers may report their concerns through the following methods:

E-mail – whistleblowing@amrelisteels.com which shall only be accessible to the Whistleblowing Unit. 

Mail – Captioned ‘Whistleblowing Unit’ – Registered O�ce, A-18, S.I.T.E. Karachi.

The Whistleblowing Unit shall comprise of the CEO and such other senior o�cials of the Company nominated by the Board of Directors.

Every e�ort will be made to maintain the con�dentiality of complainants and to protect them from any form of retaliation, reprisal or victimization for 
genuinely held concerns that are raised in good faith. At the same time, it should be noted that unfounded allegations made recklessly, maliciously or 
knowing that they were false can expose the complainant to disciplinary action.

It is expected that all complaints will be lodged with proper identi�cation. Anonymous complaints will also be accepted, however, the decision to take them 
up lies with the Whistleblowing Unit depending on their nature and urgency.

The Company undertakes that all complaints will be investigated con�dentially by independent persons and feedback will be provided to the complainant. 
Deliberately making a false concern is also an allegation under this Policy and may lead to a disciplinary action against the complainant.

The Board reserves its right to amend or modify this Policy in whole or in part, at any time without assigning any reason whatsoever.

POLICY FRAMEWORK FOR DETERMINING REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The Company always strives to attract and retain professionals with high expertise to operate business with determination and dedication which creates 
value for its shareholders. The objective of the policy framework is to provide fair, transparent and sound remuneration policy that is aligned with business 
strategy, risk and responsibilities to ensure that shareholders remain informed, con�dent in the management of the Company and to support positive 
outcome across the economic and social context in which the Company operates.

The remuneration policy attracts, motivates and retains quali�ed members of the Board of Directors to align the interests of the Board of Directors with the 
interests of the shareholders in such a way that it does not impair the independence of the respective Board Members.

POLICY FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A complete and updated list of related parties is being maintained by the Company. All transactions with related parties are carried out on an unbiased and 
arm’s length basis as per policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. A complete list of all related party transactions is compiled and 
submitted to the Audit Committee every quarter. The Internal Audit Function ensures that all related party transactions are carried on an arm’s length basis. 
After review by the Audit Committee, the transactions are placed before the Board for their consideration and approval. All transactions with related parties 
are disclosed in the �nancial statements.

POLICY OF SECURITY CLEARANCE OF FOREIGN DIRECTORS
The Company is committed to the well-being of its Board and has in place various protocols and procedures to ensure the safety and security of its Board 
Members including Foreign Directors, however currently the Company does not have any Foreign Director at Board. 
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STATEMENT ON MECHANISM OF BOARD’S PERFORMANCE AND DELEGATION OF 
AUTHORITY TO MANAGEMENT BY BOARD
The Directors are fully aware of the level of trust entrusted in them by the shareholders for managing the a�airs of the Company and safeguarding their 
interests. Thereby, the Board exercises its powers and carries out its �duciary duties with a sense of objective judgment and independence in the best 
interests of the Company. The Board participates actively in major decisions of the Company including but not limited to appointment of key manage-
ment, reviewing the annual business plan, approval of budgets for capital expenditures, investments in new ventures, approval of related party transac-
tions, review of matters recommended / reported by Board’s Committees, review of status of any law suits and report on governance, risk management 
and compliance issues. The Board also monitors Company’s operations by approval of interim and annual �nancial statements and dividend, review of 
internal and external audit observations regarding internal controls and their e�ectiveness.

The Board has constituted Committees of Directors and management with adequate delegation of powers to e�ectively focus on the issues and ensure 
expedient resolution. These Committees meet as often as required to oversee the performance in respective areas. Each Committee has its own charter 
with goals and responsibilities.

The Committees of the Board include Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. The Board meets at least once a quarter. The 
CEO, CFO and other members of the Executive Committee and/or other employees attend the meetings of the Board at the invitation of the Chairman for 
the purpose of reporting or imparting information. The Committees report on their activities and results to the Board. The Board has delegated the 
executive management of the Company to the CEO for smooth operation and day to day business a�airs of the Company.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, MEMBERS 
AND THE CEO
The Company ensures to evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely to not just boost long term shareholders’ value 
but also to respect minority rights. The Company considers it an inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding �nancial 
performance as well as the leadership and governance of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has recognized that it would be imperative for them to continually assess how e�ectively the Board, its Committees, 
members and CEO are performing their roles against their respective objectives as a critical structural tool for assessing Board’s e�ectiveness and e�ciency 
as required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 

The e�ectiveness and performance of the Board, its Committees, Members and CEO is evaluated on following factors –

• Board Structure: Its composition, constitution and diversity and that of its Committees, competencies of the members, Board and Committee 
charters, frequency of meetings, procedures;

• Dynamics and Functioning of the Board: Information availability, interactions and communication with CEO and senior executives, Board’s agenda, 
cohesiveness and the quality of participation in Board meetings;

• Business Strategy Governance: Role of Board in Company’s strategy;

• Financial Reporting Process, Internal Audit and Internal Controls: The integrity and robustness of the �nancial and other controls regarding related 
party transactions on arm’s length basis;

• Monitoring Role: Monitoring of policies, strategy implementation and systems;

• Relationship: Assessment of quality of relationship between the Board and its Committees;
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PRESENCE OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD’S AUDIT COMMITTEE (BAC) AT THE 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)
The Chairman of Board’s Audit Committee - Mr. Teizoon Kisat (an Independent Director) was present in the 39th AGM of the Company which was held on 24 
October 2023, to answer questions on the Audit Committee’s activities and matters within the scope of the Board’s Audit Committee. All queries raised by 
shareholders at the AGM were duly answered by the Chairman, Directors, CEO and CFO present in the meeting up to satisfaction of the shareholders. 

STATEMENT ON THE MANAGEMENT’S AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
TOWARDS THE PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
• Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the �nancial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting 

standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal controls as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of �nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

• In preparing the �nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so;

• The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s �nancial reporting process. 

HOW THE ORGANIZATION IMPLEMENTED GOVERNANCE PRACTICES EXCEEDING 
LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
The term “Governance” refers to a system of Company’s management that focuses on responsibility, transparency and sustainable value creation. It 
encompasses the management and monitoring system of the Company, including its organization, business principles and guidelines, as well as internal 
and external controls and monitoring mechanisms.

At Amreli, the Board of Directors are committed towards the principles of good corporate governance across the Company through its top management. 
The Board and management of the Company always focus towards the stakeholders expectation that the Company is managed and supervised 
responsibly and proper internal controls and risk management policy and procedures are in place for e�cient and e�ective operations of the Company, 
safeguarding of assets, compliance with laws and regulations and proper �nancial reporting in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and other applicable laws.

The Board encourages high standards of professionalism, ethical practices, accountability and transparency, in line with the global best practices and 
statutory requirements which are embedded in the Company’s governance structure through implementation of sound internal controls, Code of 
Conduct and Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company to provide long-term bene�ts to all stakeholders. The Board being cognizant to its responsibility has 
established a robust governance mechanism surpassing the legal and regulatory requirements which regularly evaluate the processes to ensure growth 
in stakeholders’ value besides safeguarding the interests of minority shareholders. 

The Company conducts its operations in accordance with principles of good corporate governance and provides timely, regular and reliable information 
on its activities, structure, �nancial situation and performance to all shareholders. The Company continuously strives towards improving sound 
governance, best management and CSR practices in day-to-day business activities. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
The Board of Directors of the Company are dedicated in maintaining high standards of good corporate governance. The Directors con�rm compliance with 
the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the SECP and the CCG for the following matters -

a) The �nancial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its state of a�airs, the results of its operations, cash �ows and 
changes in equity;

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company;

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of �nancial statements and accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgments;

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed in preparation of �nancial statements;

e) The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been e�ectively implemented and monitored. The process of monitoring the internal 
controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system;

f ) There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern;

g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the Regulations of the Rule Book of the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited;

h) A summary of key operating and �nancial data of the Company is annexed in this Annual Report;

i) Information about taxes and levies is given in notes to the �nancial statements;

j) The Company has an unfunded de�ned gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying years of service 
for entitlement of gratuity. The provision for gratuity is made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was 
carried out as of 30 June 2024 using Projected Unit Credit Method. Being an unfunded gratuity scheme, no investment could have been made and 
hence the value of investments as at 30 June 2024 stands Nil.
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GOING THE
EXTRA ROUND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS





SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

 FINANCIAL POSITION 

Assets Employed       
Property, plant and equipment  29,955   22,263   21,578   20,146   17,651   16,966 
Right of use asset  100   136   76   100   72   -   
Intangible assets  3   7   12   19   24   32 
Long-term investments  -     -     14   15   15   15 
Long-term deposit and loans  176   194   204   152   135   138 
Current assets  16,606  17,829   22,316   15,934   17,345   12,396 
Total Assets  46,840  40,428   44,201  36,366   35,243   29,547

Financed By       
Share capital and reserves  14,226   14,376   15,208  13,941   10,951   12,196 
Long-term liabilities      
Long-term �nancing  -     3,705   4,821   4,821   5,430   1,507 
Current portion of long-term �nancing  4,002   1,800   1,354   1,129   812   1,187 
   4,002   5,505   6,175   5,950   6,241   2,693 
      
Non-current and deferred liabilites  5,689   2,111   1,688   1,116   847   1,369 
      
Current liabilities  26,925   20,236  22,504   16,489   18,015   14,475 
Current portion of long term �nance  (4,002)  (1,800)  (1,354)  (1,129)  (812)  (1,187)
   22,922  18,436  21,151   15,359   17,204   13,288 
Total Funds Invested  46,840  40,428  44,201   36,366   35,243   29,547

OPERATIONS       
      
 Turnover - net   38,776   45,493   58,184   39,218   26,532   28,596 
 Gross pro�t   2,401   5,954   6,491   4,542   1,813   2,424 
 Operating (loss) / pro�t   (131)  3,999   4,385   3,012   356   1,195 
 EBITDA   422   4,670   5,100   3,549   1,229   1,892 
 (Loss) / pro�t before tax   (5,391)  (301)  2,078   1,384   (1,943)  (67)
 (Loss) / pro�t after tax   (6,107)  (697)  1,326   1,368   (1,242)  33 
 Total comprehensive (loss) / income   (150)  (711)  1,314   2,990   (1,246)  17 
 Capital expenditures    514   1,598   2,158   1,273   1,369   2,122 
 (Loss per share) / Earnings per share   (20.56)  (2.35)  4.46   4.61   (4.18)  0.11 
      
      
Cash Flow Summary 
      
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities   (4,212)  7,040   (2,190)  2,440   (4,003)  749 
Net cash (used in) investing activities   (484)  (1,589)  (2,138)  (1,146)  (1,361)  (2,137)
Net cash generated from / (used in) �nancing activities   3,345   (5,491)  4,514   (1,996)  5,825   1,404 
(Decrease) / increasein cash and cash equivalents   (1,352)  (41)  185   (701)  462   16 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  (3,053)  (1,701)  (1,660)  (1,846)  (1,144)  147  
       

2024 2021 2020 20192023

Rs. in Million

(Restated)
2022

(Restated)(Restated)(Restated)
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

BALANCE SHEET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
       
Share Capital And Reserves       
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 6.34 7.35 6.72 8.17 8.43 10.05
Capital reserves 5.95 6.90 6.31 7.67 7.91 9.44
Revenue reserves – Accumulated (loss) / unappropriated pro�t -1.60 12.60 12.99 12.30 8.41 13.99
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  19.68 8.71 8.38 10.20 6.32 7.80
  30.37 35.56 34.41 38.33 31.07 41.28

Non Current Liabilities       
Long term �nancing 0.00 9.16 10.91 13.26 15.41 5.10
Long term provision 0.00 0.01 0.16 0.46 0.00 0.00
Loan from related parties 0.27 0.00 0.77 0.94 0.97 0.95
Deferred taxation  10.56 2.84 1.45 0.59 0.51 2.99
Deferred liability - de�ned bene�t obligation  1.09 1.12 0.84 0.85 0.72 0.70
Lease liabilities 0.23 0.30 0.16 0.23 0.18 0.00
Government grant 0.00 0.94 0.39 0.00 0.02 0.00
  12.15 14.39 14.68 16.33 17.81 9.73
Current Liabilities      
Trade and other payables  5.28 11.88 6.71 13.96 10.59 12.05
Contract liabilities 0.93 1.19 1.75 1.37 2.73 0.95
Interest / mark-up accrued  3.11 1.98 1.18 0.73 1.64 1.19
Short term borrowings  38.13 28.94 37.62 26.05 33.80 30.76
Current portion of long-term �nancing 8.55 4.45 3.06 3.11 2.30 4.02
Current portion of long term provision 0.60 0.67 0.44 0.00 0.00 0.00
Current portion of  lease liabilities 0.07 0.09 0.03 0.06 0.02 0.00
Current portion of  government grant 0.79 0.07 0.10 0.03 0.01 0.00
Current portion of  loan from related parties 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unclaimed dividend 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02
  57.48 50.05 50.91 45.34 51.12 48.99
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

ASSETS       
Non-Current Assets       
Property, plant and equipment  63.95 55.07 48.82 55.40 50.08 57.42
Right of use assets 0.21 0.34 0.17 0.28 0.21 0.00
Intangible assets  0.01 0.02 0.03 0.05 0.07 0.11
Long-term investments  0.00 0.00 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.05
Long-term deposits and loans 0.37 0.48 0.46 0.42 0.38 0.47
  64.52 55.86 49.51 56.19 50.78 58.05
Current Assets      
Stores and spars  5.24 6.45 6.24 4.00 4.78 4.53
Stock-in-trade  15.29 17.54 24.93 16.48 22.17 22.08
Trade debts  5.02 12.30 12.39 17.38 13.90 11.52
Loans and advances 0.05 0.03 0.12 0.09 0.08 0.06
Trade deposits & short term prepayments 0.14 0.14 0.07 0.06 1.82 0.12
Short term investment 0.03 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other receivables  2.11 0.52 0.00 0.76 1.50 0.43
Taxation - net 6.25 6.41 5.93 4.00 3.51 2.72
Cash and bank balances  0.42 0.67 0.81 1.04 1.45 0.50
  34.58 44.14 50.49 43.81 49.22 41.95
Non current asset held for sale 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL ASSETS 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

2024

% % % % % %

2021 2020 20192023
(Restated)

2022
(Restated)(Restated) (Restated)
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

BALANCE SHEET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
      
Share Capital And Reserves       
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital reserves 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Revenue reserves – Accumulated (loss) / unappropriated pro�t -114.74 -11.29 28.46 50.89 -28.30 -12.58
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  161.73 -4.96 -0.13 66.50 -3.31 -5.33
  -1.04 -5.47 9.09 27.31 -10.21 -5.61

Non Current Liabilities       
Long term �nancing -100.00 -23.15 0.00 -11.22 260.34 -31.64
Long term provision -100.00 -91.92 -56.78 100.00 0.00 0.00
Loan from related parties 0.00 -100.00 0.00 0.00 21.90 100.00
Deferred taxation  330.48 79.22 200.99 18.46 -79.64 -12.26
Deferred liability - de�ned bene�t obligation  13.02 22.46 19.64 21.37 24.01 31.95
Lease liabilities -13.12 68.19 -14.77 33.59 100.00 0.00
Government grant -100.00 123.61 18347.68 -87.87 100.00 0.00
  -2.19 -10.36 9.28 -5.41 118.29 -14.59
Current Liabilities       
Trade and other payables  -48.48 68.14 -41.55 36.07 4.81 62.68
Contract liabilities -8.75 -38.05 54.81 -48.10 242.89 16.78
Interest / mark-up accrued  82.15 53.56 94.99 -53.74 63.76 160.07
Short term borrowings  52.69 -29.66 75.53 -20.47 31.08 28.85
Current portion of long-term �nancing 122.40 32.95 19.87 39.16 -31.61 53.06
Current portion of long term provision 3.70 39.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Current portion of  lease liabilities -0.63 140.60 -37.21 161.25 100.00 0.00
Current portion of  government grant 1259.16 -36.31 241.31 196.42 100.00 0.00
Current portion of  loan from related parties -100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
Unclaimed dividend -3.22 -2.75 -1.89 -4.54 -8.97 111.57
  33.05 -10.08 36.48 -8.47 24.46 39.23
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  15.86 -8.54 21.54 3.19 19.28 10.73

ASSETS       
Non-Current Assets       
Property, plant and equipment  34.55 3.18 7.11 14.14 4.04 9.25
Right of use assets -26.15 77.64 -23.84 38.48 100.00 0.00
Intangible assets  -51.71 -44.41 -36.25 -23.25 -23.99 14.48
Long-term investments  0.00 -100.00 -6.54 0.00 0.00 0.00
Long-term deposits and loans -9.37 -5.04 33.90 12.88 -2.02 1.58
  33.78 3.27 7.11 14.16 4.36 9.19

Current Assets       
Stores and spares  -5.98 -5.35 89.35 -13.52 25.83 53.82
Stock-in-trade  0.99 -35.63 83.87 -23.31 19.80 -12.56
Trade debts  -52.75 -9.21 -13.33 28.98 44.01 90.34
Loans and advances 106.26 -78.47 56.99 17.73 53.82 -19.59
Trade deposits & short term prepayments 21.31 75.15 48.35 -96.72 1688.79 -18.75
Short term investment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other receivables  368.06 79312 -99.90 -47.87 314.40 -43.92
Taxation - net 13.05 -1.21 80.04 17.62 54.05 104.52
Cash and bank balances  -28.12 -23.81 -5.73 -25.68 246.41 12.18
  -9.23 -20.11 40.06 -8.14 39.92 13.36
Non current asset held for sale 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL ASSETS  15.86 -8.54 21.54 3.19 19.28 10.90

2024 vs
2023

2023 vs 
2022

2022 vs
2021

2021 vs
2020

2020 vs
2019

2019 vs
2018

% % % % % %
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

PROFIT OR LOSS June-24

% % % % % %

June-21 June-20 June-19June-23 June-22
(Restated)(Restated)

Turnover - net 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Cost of sales -93.81 -86.91 -88.84 -88.42 -93.17 -91.52
Gross pro�t 6.19 13.09 11.16 11.58 6.83 8.48
Distribution costs -2.87 -2.22 -2.07 -2.41 -2.57 -2.51
Administrative expenses -2.17 -1.65 -1.26 -1.41 -1.90 -1.61
(Allowance for) / reversal of expected credit losses -0.98 -0.26 -0.01 0.18 -0.70 -0.14
Other income 0.01 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.03 0.02
Other expenses -0.51 -0.18 -0.32 -0.32 -0.36 -0.06
Operating (loss) / pro�t  -0.34 8.79 7.54 7.68 1.34 4.18
Finance costs -12.31 -8.89 -3.96 -4.15 -8.67 -4.41
(Loss) / pro�t before taxation, min and �nal tax -12.65 -0.10 3.57 3.53 -7.32 -0.23
Levy  -1.26 -0.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Loss) / pro�t before taxation  -13.90 -0.66 3.57 3.53 -7.32 -0.23
Taxation -1.84 -0.87 -1.29 -0.04 2.64 0.35
(Loss) / pro�t after taxation  -15.75 -1.53 2.28 3.49 -4.68 0.11
Other comprehensive (loss) /  income 15.36 -0.03 -0.02 4.14 -0.01 -0.06
Total comprehensive (loss) / income -0.39 -1.56 2.26 7.62 -4.70 0.06

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

PROFIT OR LOSS 2024 vs
2023

2023 vs
2022

2022 vs
2021

2021vs
2020

2020 vs
2019

2019 vs
2018

% % % % % %

Turnover - net -14.76 -21.81 48.36 47.81 -7.22 84.48
Cost of sales -8.00 -23.51 49.07 40.28 -5.55 105.40
Gross pro�t -59.67 -8.28 42.92 150.51 -25.19 -12.14
Distribution costs 10.49 -16.19 27.29 38.64 -4.80 85.75
Administrative expenses 12.15 2.06 32.70 10.18 9.02 32.25
(Allowance for) / reversal of expected credit losses 217.06 2210 -107.44 -137.57 367.75 -24.23
Other income -62.03 -66.08 1.61 195.31 15.09 -68.52
Other expenses 136.89 -54.89 50.62 31.15 433.15 -85.61
Operating (loss) / pro�t  -103.27 -8.81 45.58 745.41 -70.19 -36.11
Finance costs 18.03 75.28 41.70 -29.20 82.15 165.01
(Loss) / pro�t before taxation, min and �nal tax 10886.83 -102.15 50.15 -171.23 2793.08 -104.82
Levy  90.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Loss) / pro�t before taxation  1690.06 -114.49 50.15 -171.23 2793.08 0.00
Taxation 80.63 -47.38 4695.75 -102.24 601.10 -47.60
(Loss) / pro�t after taxation  775.90 -152.60 -3.12 -210.16 -3883.96 -97.93
Other comprehensive (loss) /  income -42579.95 22.58 -100.71 -42994.79 -76.32 -102.15
Total comprehensive (loss) / income -78.88 -154.12 -56.05 340.01 -7490.33 -99.28
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

CASH FLOW 
June-24

% % % % % %
June-21 June-20 June-19June-23 June-22

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities  312 -17364 -1182 -348 -867 4692
Net cash (used in) investing activities  36 3920 -1154 163 -295 -13384
Net cash generated from / (used in) �nancing activities  -247 13544 2435 284 1262 8791
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  100 100 100 100 100 100

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

CASH FLOW 2024 vs
2023

2023 vs
2022

2022 vs
2021

2021vs
2020

2020 vs
2019

2019 vs
2018

% % % % % %

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities   -160 -421 -190 -161 -634 -134
Net cash (used in) investing activities  -70 -26 87 -16 -36 -27
Net cash generated from / (used in) �nancing activities -161 -222 -326 -134 315 -73
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  3234 -122 -126 -252 2791 -74
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RATIO ANALYSIS

 Pro�tability Ratios 

 Gross pro�t ratio 
 Net pro�t / (loss) to sales ratio 
 Return on equity 
 Return on capital employed 
 Operating leverage 
 EBITDA margin to sales  

 Liquidity Ratios 

 Current ratio 
 Quick / acid test ratio 
 Cash to current liability 
 Cash �ow from operations to sales  

 Activity / Turnover Ratios 

 Inventory turnover  
 No. of days in Inventory 
 Debtor turnover 
 No. of days in receivables  
 Creditor turnover  
 No. of days in payables 
 Operating cycle 
 Total asset turnover 
 Fixed asset turnover     

 Investment / Market Ratios 

  (LPS) / EPS - basic & diluted 
 P/E ratio 
 Dividend yield ratio 
 Dividend payout ratio 
 Dividend coverage ratio 
 Cash dividend per share 
 Price to book ratio 
 Market value per share 
  - Year End 
  - Highest 
  - Lowest  
 Break value per share with surplus on revaluation 
 Break value per share without surplus on revaluation 

 Capital Structure Ratios 

 Debt / equity ratio  
 Weighted average cost of debt 
 Financial leverage ratio 
 Debt service ratio 
 Interest cover  

 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 
 Percentage 

  Times 
 Times 
 Times 
 Times  

Times
Days

Times
Days

Times
Days
Days

Times
Times

   Rupees 
 Times 

 Percent 
 Percent 

 Times 
 Rupees 

 Times 

 Rupees 
 Rupees 
 Rupees 
 Rupees 
 Rupees 

   Times 
 Percentage 

 Times 
 Times 
 Times 

13.09%
-1.53%
-4.85%
-3.65%
67.19%
10.27%

0.88 : 1
0.53 : 1

-0.08 : 1
0.15 : 1

  4.4 
 84 
 8.7 
 42 
 18 
 20 

 105 
 1.1 
 2.0 

   (2.35)
 (6.54)
0.00%
0.00%

 -   
 -   

 1.53 

 15.35 
 30.86 
 14.99 
 48.40 
 36.54 

0.26 : 1
17.73%
1.24 : 1
0.87 : 1

0.93

6.19%
-15.75%
-42.93%
-37.80%
789.31%

1.09%

0.60 : 1
0.34 : 1

-0.11 : 1
-0.11 : 1

  5.1 
 72 

 10.6 
 35 
 14 

 26.74 
 80 
 0.8 
 1.3 

  (20.56)
 (1.31)
0.00%
0.00%

 -   
 -   

 2.70 

 26.99 
 28.96 
 18.29 
 47.90 
 16.86 

0.00 : 1
23.29%
1.58 : 1
0.06 : 1

-0.13

11.16%
2.28%
8.72%
6.83%

94.26%
8.76%

0.99 : 1
0.50 : 1

-0.07  : 1
-0.04 : 1

  6.1 
 60 
 9.9 
 37 

 134 
 3 

 94 
 1.3 
 2.7 

   4.46 
 5.25 

0.00%
0.00%

 -   
 -   

 2.34 

 23.44 
 49.98 
 21.50 
 51.20 
 38.73

0.32 : 1
9.80%
1.77 : 1
1.48 : 1

1.90

11.58%
3.49%
9.81%
7.79%

1558.95%
9.05%

0.97 : 1
0.60 : 1

-0.11 : 1
0.06 : 1

  5.0 
 73 
 7.0 
 52 
 84 

 4 
 121 
 1.1 
 1.9 

  4.61 
 9.43 

0.00%
0.00%

 -   
 -   

 4.34 

 43.44 
 54.65 
 32.55 
 46.94 
 34.44  

0.35 : 1
8.36%
1.34 : 1
1.46 : 1

1.85

6.83%
-4.68%

-11.34%
-8.26%

972.55%
4.63%

0.96 : 1
0.53 : 1

-0.06 : 1
-0.15 : 1

  3.4 
 106 
 6.4 
 57 
 75 

 5 
 158 
 0.8 
 1.5 

   (4.18)
 (7.81)
0.00%
0.00%

 -   
 -   

 3.26 

 32.64 
 41.61 
 15.83 
 36.87 
 29.37 

0.50 : 1
13.31%
1.83 : 1
0.35 : 1

0.15

8.48%
0.11%
0.27%
0.23%

-42.75%
6.62%

0.86 : 1
0.41 : 1
0.01 : 1
0.03 : 1

   3.7 
 97 

 11.0 
 33 

 150 
 2 

 128 
 1.0 
 1.7 

   0.11 
 223.14 

0.00%
0.00%

 -   
 -   

 2.47 

 24.66 
 79.41 
 21.57 
 41.06 
 33.30 

0.12 : 1
9.73%
1.16 : 1
0.93 : 1

0.95

UoM 2024
(Restated)(Restated) (Restated)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
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Pro�tability Ratios

Gross pro�t 
The Company has achieved a consistent annual sales growth rate of 26.72% between FY 19 and FY 22. However, in FY 19, a signi�cant drop in the gross pro�t 
margin to 8.48% from 17.8% in FY-18 was observed due to an economic slowdown caused by e�orts to address twin de�cits, leading to an abnormal 
devaluation of the national currency, reduced national consumption, and a decline in GDP from 5% in FY 18 to 1.4%. This downward trend continued in FY 
20, exacerbated by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in a further decrease in the gross pro�t margin to 6.83%.

The economic situation began to improve at the start of FY 21, with the lifting of lockdown measures and government and State Bank of Pakistan initiatives 
to support the economy, particularly in the construction and related industries. This improvement in conditions led to a 3.94% GDP growth from the 
negative 0.4% recorded in FY 20, allowing the Company to achieve a gross pro�t margin of 11.58%. During FY 22, despite signi�cant increases in production 
costs due to currency depreciation and in�ation, the Company managed to sustain demand and pass on the rising costs to its selling prices, resulting in a 
slight decline in gross margin to 11.16% (a decrease of 0.42%).

In FY 23, economic challenges persisted due to political instability post change of regime, impacts of Russia/Ukraine crisis, record-high in�ation, rupee 
devaluation, and rising utility rates. Nevertheless, the Company successfully achieved a margin of 13.11% due to improved price retention strategies.

The challenges mentioned above persisted in FY-24 which slowed down the already contracted national demand. Further, in FY-24 input costs have 
increased including electricity tari� from Rs. 29/kwh to Rs. 44/kwhs, gas prices and rupee devaluation of 20% and unabsorbed �xed costs due to 
low-capacity utilization of 28%. Further, the prevailing uncertainties regarding IMF fresh package coupled with general elections in February 2024 have kept 
the demand silent resulting in inability of the Company to pass through the impact of increased cost. Consequently, the gross margin in FY-24 dropped to 
6.19%. 

Operating and Net Pro�t
The operating pro�t and net pro�t margins followed a similar pattern as the gross margin trend discussed earlier. The Company e�ectively managed its 
administrative and distribution costs as a percentage of sales from FY 19 to FY 24. However, in FY 19 and FY 20, the �nance cost of the Company increased 
due to the rise in the policy rate, leading to a decline in the net pro�t margin to 0.11% and a negative 4.68%, respectively.

In FY 21, as the gross margin improved and the policy rate decreased to 7% (compared to 13% in FY 20), the Company achieved a net pro�t margin of 3.49%. 
However, in FY 22, the net pro�t margin decreased to 2.28% due to an increase in the policy rate and higher borrowing costs. The signi�cant rise in interest 
rates from average of 9.39% in FY 22 to 17.51% in FY 23 resulted in a substantial increase in �nance costs, leading to a net loss margin of 1.53%.

In FY 24, the other factors impacting operating margin besides decrease in gross margin mentioned above includes, cartage and transportation cost due to 
increase in fuel prices and implementation of axle load and increase in allowance for expected credit loss for the receivables aging over and above 180 days 
primarily due to increase in default rates. The reason for signi�cant negative net margin includes increased �nance cost by 18% when compared with FY 23 
due to increase in average interest rate from 17.51% to 22% and reversal of deferred tax assets recorded on prior turnover taxes including deferred tax asset 
on turnover tax recorded till March 31, 2024. For further details please refer quarterly analysis.

Liquidity and Working Capital Ratios

Liquidity Ratios
The liquidity ratios primarily stem from the Company's internal cash generation. The current ratio improved from FY 19 till FY 22 primarily due to better 
pro�tability and �nancial position of the Company.

In FY 21, the current ratio saw a slight uptick to 0.97, driven by pro�t generation but still falling short due to impending maturities of long-term loans in FY 
22. The improved collection of cash in FY 22 further enhanced the current ratio, reaching 1.00 from 0.97. However, the economic challenges pertaining to 
FY 23 & FY 24 as discussed above under gross margin heading, has severely impacted the Company’s liquidity position resulting in current ratio to dropped 
to 0.88 and 0.60. Other factor that has signi�cantly deteriorated current ratio in FY 24 is the reclassi�cation of long-term loans and related government grant 
as current liabilities under the requirements of IAS 1- Presentation of �nancial statements under due to breach of �nancial covenants that are required to be 
maintained by the Company as per the agreement with lenders. 

Working capital ratios
The duration for which working capital required is re�ective of the Company’s cash conversion cycle adjusted for optimization based on prevailing market 
situation and liquidity position of the Company remained consistent within the range of 156 to 84 days from FY 18 to FY 23. In FY 18, the Company accrued 
an elevated inventory period of 156 days due to the implementation of a new rolling mill and the expansion of the melt shop, resulting in the stockpiling of 
raw materials. In FY 19, the Company inventory days, improved from 156 in FY 18 to 97 days in FY 19 mainly due to excess production and sale by 59% and 
61% compared to FY 18 respectively, post commissioning of new rolling mill at Dhabeji.

In FY 20, inventory days extended to 106 days primarily due to the COVID-19 lockdown in the fourth quarter, resulting in minimal consumption and an 
accumulation of raw material inventory during this period. FY 21 saw the Company adopt a just-in-time inventory approach to facilitate cash �ow, resulting 
in a decrease of inventory days by 33 days to 73 days.

COMMENTS ON RATIO ANALYSIS
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E�cient working capital management and the maintenance of an optimal inventory level led to a further 13-day improvement in inventory days, reducing 
them to 60 days in FY 22. However, during FY 23, the inventory days increased by 24 days due to an economic slowdown in the country, resulted in selling 
38% less volume compared to FY 22. In FY 24, inventory days reduced due to lower sales volumes and capacity utilization.
  
Debtor days are computed based on the average debtor balance and net sales. The Company is dedicated to reducing its debtor days and has established 
a specialized sales and credit administration department to manage and oversee receivables from customers. Nevertheless, FY 20 posed signi�cant 
challenges due to extraordinarily low demand and COVID-19 lockdowns that disrupted sales, production, and collections. Consequently, debtor days 
increased to 57 days in FY 20 compared to 33 days in FY 19.

In FY 21, as sales and collections improved, debtor days were reduced to 52 days. FY 22 witnessed a notable improvement of 15 days, bringing debtor days 
down to 52 days, achieved through diligent follow-ups, revisiting customer credit policies, and adjusting credit limits. In FY 23 and FY 24, the robust recovery 
e�orts coupled with e�ective internal credit administration and monitoring department, reduced the debtor days to 42 and 35 respectively despite 
depressed economic conditions.

Investment / Market Ratios
The �uctuations in earnings per share directly correlate with changes in the Company's pro�tability, as detailed in the pro�tability section.

The Company's shares were actively traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange, with prices ranging from Rs. 18.29 to Rs. 28.96 throughout FY 24. The lowest 
recorded price was Rs. 18.29, while the highest was Rs. 28.96 during the �scal year.

The breakup value per share, without considering revaluation, shown improvement from of Rs. 33 to Rs. 38 per share from FY 19 to FY 22. However, it came 
down to Rs. 36 and Rs. 16 per share in FY 23 and FY 24 respectively due to declining pro�tability as discussed above in detailed. This breakup value per share 
primarily relies on factors such as capital reserves, revenue reserves, and the total number of ordinary shares. Notably, the capital reserves and the quantity 
of ordinary shares remained unchanged over the past six years. However, �uctuations in revenue reserves occurred due to variations in pro�ts, as discussed 
in the pro�tability section.

Capital Structure Ratios

The debt-to-equity ratio and �nancial leverage showed an upward trend from FY 19 to FY 20 due to permanent working capital obtained by the Company 
and decrease in shareholder’s equity due to loss reported in FY 20 primarily due to Covid-19 crisis. However, there was an improvement in both the 
debt-to-equity ratio and �nancial leverage in FY 21 and FY 22. This positive change was driven by the generation of pro�ts and the recording of a surplus on 
the revaluation of �xed assets in FY 21. In FY 24, debt-to-equity turned zero due to reclassi�cation of long-term loan discussed above in liquidity ratio. 
Further, �nancial leverage increased in FY-24 due to lower cash generation by the Company discussed above in pro�tability section.

The debt service ratio and interest cover are based on Company’s earnings before interest, tax and depreciation (EBITDA) which shows mixed trend from FY 
19 to FY 24. Till FY 22, the both ratios shown improvement. The debt service ratio and interest cover decreased in FY 23 and FY 24 due to lower pro�tability 
and increased current maturity of term loan coupled with heightened �nance cost.

COMMENTS ON RATIO ANALYSIS
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION & WEALTH DISTRIBUTION

WEALTH GENERATION
Revenue from sales including sales tax
Revenue from other income
Bought in material and services
Value added by the Company

 WEALTH DISTRIBUTION

To Employees: 
Salaries, Wages and Other bene�ts
To Government: 
Income tax, Sales tax, Customs & Excise duties
To Providers of capital: 
Bank Charges and Markup
For Replacement of assets:
Depreciation and Amortization
To Company: 
(Net loss)   

53,410,342
8,312

(37,004,115)
16,414,538

1,655,772

10,491,937

4,043,279

920,746

(697,196)
16,414,538

10%

64%

25%

06%

-04%
100%

2024

Rs. ‘000’

45,888,479
3,156

(34,145,752)
11,745,883

1,878,362

10,163,880

4,772,416

1,037,949

(6,106,723)
11,745,883

16%

87%

41%

9%

-52%
100%

Rs. ‘000’

2023

To employees To government To providers of capital To CompanyFor replacement of assets

FY 2024

16%

87%

41%

9%

-52%

FY 2023

10%

64%

25%

6% -4%
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Sales
Cost of Sales
Gross Pro�t
Gross Pro�t %
Administrative Expenses
Allowance for expected credit loss
Distribution Expenses
Other Expenses
Other Income
Operating Pro�t / (loss)
Operating Pro�t  / (loss) %
Finance Cost
(Loss) before taxation, minimum and �nal tax
Levy
(Loss) before taxation
Taxation Reversal / (Expense)
Net (loss)
Net (loss) %

10,891,115
(9,563,289)
1,327,826

12.19%
(199,540)

(10,920)
(244,672)
(119,110)

655
754,238

6.93%
(1,015,460)
(261,222)
(136,078)

(397,299)
224,519

(172,780)
-1.59%

11,359,909
(10,204,139)

1,155,770
10.17%

(241,920)
(18,249)

(308,772)
(3,833)

1,459
584,453

5.14%
(1,247,669)

        (663,216)
(141,932)

(805,148)
343,585

(461,563)
-4.06%

11,182,624
(10,294,339)

888,285
7.94%

(202,371)
(47,293)

(319,713)
(49,880)

82,492
351,521

3.14%
(1,287,686)
(936,165)
(143,144)

(1,079,309)
413,508

(665,803)
-5.95%

5,342,089
(6,312,544)
(970,455)

-18.17%
(198,568)

         (302,743) 
(241,393)

(26,392)
(81,449)

(1,820,999)
-34.09%

(1,221,600)
(3,042,600)

(67,039)
(3,109,639)

(1,696,939)
(4,806,578)

-89.98%

38,775,737
(36,374,311)

2,401,426
6.19%

(842,398)
(379,205)

(1,114,552)
(199,214)

3,156
(130,787)

-0.34%
(4,772,416)

(4,903,203)
(488,193)

(5,391,396)
(715,327)

(6,106,723)
-15.75%

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Annual

---------------- Rs. ‘000’ ----------------

QUARTERLY ANALYSIS 
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COMMENTS ON QUARTERLY ANALYSIS 

First Quarter

During this quarter, demand remained contracted due to macro-level 
challenges resulting in slight downturn of 2% in sales volume when compared 
to the same quarter of last year. However, it is to be noted that corresponding 
quarter was already impacted due to the unprecedented monsoon rainfall, 
leading to �ash �ooding and extensive damage. 

The cost of goods sold increased by 16% during this quarter when compared 
with corresponding quarter primarily due signi�cant rupee devaluation of 
28%, increase in electricity tari� and increased per ton �xed cost due to 
decreased capacity utilization of re-bars by 12%. However, the impact of these 
increased costs couldn’t be completely passed through by the Company due 
to low demand, resulting in decline in gross margin by 3.99% when compared 
with same quarter last year.

During the quarter, the Company's operating margin dropped by 4.7% when 
compared with corresponding quarter followed by decline in gross margin 
coupled with increase in administrative and distribution expenses due to 
increase in salaries in lieu of unprecedented general in�ation and increase in 
cartage and transportation due to increase in fuel prices.

The company experienced a 3.66% decline in its bottom line in this quarter 
compared to the corresponding quarter of the previous year. This decline can 
be primarily attributed to a signi�cant increase in �nance cost, stemming from 
higher interest rates from quarterly average of 16% to 23% in quarter under 
review coupled with decrease in the operating pro�t margin.

Second Quarter

The declining trend faced by the country in the �rst quarter persisted into the 
second quarter. The sales revenue declined by 14% due to lower sales volume 
by 25% when compared with same quarter last year.

However, the lower volumes resulted in decreased in cost of goods sold by 
17% despite devaluation of rupee when compared with same quarter last year. 
Further, during the quarter, rupee depreciated as high as 305 in interbank 
which later has gained its value against dollar after the controlling measures 
taken by the authorities. The gross margin when compared with same quarter 
last year remained on higher side by 3.7%, since in corresponding quarter the 
prices of steel re-bars dropped signi�cantly due to impact of �ooding.

Due to increased gross margin compared to corresponding quarter, the 
company's operating margin witnessed an improvement by 2% despite 
increase in distribution cost primarily due to implementation of axle load.

The net pro�t margin dropped by 1.12% when compared with the same 
quarter of the previous year mainly due to the increase in �nance cost, driven 
by higher interest rates and increased in the allowance for expected credit loss 
due to deteriorated economic conditions of the country.

Third Quarter

During this quarter, the prevailing economic conditions in the country 
continued to deteriorate resulting in decline of 3% in the sales volume and 4% 
in revenue when compared with same quarter last year.

In this quarter, the cost of goods sold witnessed a notable increase of 8% 
compared to corresponding quarter due to lower capacity utilization and 
heightened energy cost. Further, due to general elections in this quarter 
coupled with prevailing economic uncertainties including IMF new package, 
demand remained silent resulting in inability of the Company to increase its 
sale price. Consequently, the gross margin of the Company dropped by 10% 
when compared to corresponding quarter.

The operational margin and net margin dropped by 10% followed by decline 
in gross margin and increase in �nance cost when compared to the same 
quarter of the last year.

Fourth Quarter

In this quarter, in addition to continued deterioration of the country's 
economic conditions, another factor that has signi�cantly impacted the 
Company’s sale o�-take was the refusal of the lenders to make use of available 
working capital limits due to the then pursued but unsuccessful re-pro�ling of 
the balance sheet of the Company with the lenders. Because of that the 
Company was not able to open LCs to procure steel scrap resulting in sharp 
decline in sales volume by 50% and accordingly 51% in sale revenue when 
compared with same quarter last year, despite basic demand of its rebar 
remaining intact in the markets.

The cost of goods sold experienced a noteworthy surge of 33% when 
compared to the same quarter last year. The drivers behind this cost upswing 
were the capacity utilization that has dropped by 35% resulting in unabsorbed 
�xed costs, provision for fuel charge adjustment (FCA) of K-Electric and 
incremental depreciation subsequent to surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment. Therefore, the combination of all such events has 
resulted in drop in gross margin by 31% when compared with same quarter 
last year.

The operating margin of the Company dropped by 42% when compared with 
corresponding quarter due to decline in gross margin discussed above. 
Further, the decline in operating margin was due to increase in allowance for 
expected credit loss for the receivables aging over and above 180 days 
primarily due to increase in default rates.

The net loss margin of the Company witnessed a notable increase of 81% 
when compared with corresponding quarter. The factors for such increase 
include decrease operating margin discussed above and reversal of deferred 
tax assets recorded on prior turnover taxes including deferred tax asset on 
turnover tax recorded till March 31, 2024. These turnover taxes were otherwise 
allowed to be carry forward and adjusted against future tax liabilities in three 
years’ time. However, the Company based on the principle of conservatism and 
being prudent has provided for these taxes as expense in the �nancial year 
under review anticipating low pro�tability in the near term as a result of 
unsuccessful balance sheet re-pro�ling and possible delay in the newly �oated 
balance sheet restructuring to all lenders.  Also, the Company has carry forward 
taxable losses that are required to be adjusted �rst under the income tax 
ordinance 2001 before making any other adjustment.
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ANALYSIS OF VARIATION IN INTERIM RESULTS REPORTED WITH ANNUAL RESULTS

Sales Revenue:

During the year under consideration, the sales revenue recorded almost in same range for the �rst three quarters. However, when compared with revenue of 
corresponding quarters, they have dropped, the reasons of which are discussed in quarterly analysis in this report.

The macro-level challenges faced by the Company during last year remained persisted in year under review. These include, high interest rates, political 
uncertainty, record high in�ation, mounting debt burden of the Country and IMF bailout package with its stringent conditions. Further, in 2nd quarter the 
demand slowed down in anticipation that prices of rebars will decrease due to strengthening of rupee after controlling measures undertaken by the authorities. 
The slowdown in demand continued in 3rd quarter due to general elections that held in February 2024. 

In the fourth quarter, sales revenue witnessed sharp decline. In this quarter, in addition to continued deterioration of the country's economic conditions, 
another factor that has signi�cantly impacted the Company’s sale o�-take was the refusal of the lenders to make use of available working capital limits due to 
the then pursued but unsuccessful re-pro�ling of the balance sheet of the Company with the lenders. Because of that the Company was not able to open LCs 
to procure steel scrap resulting in sharp decline in sales volume by 50% and accordingly 51% in sale revenue when compared with same quarter last year, 
despite basic demand of its rebar remaining intact in the markets.

Gross Pro�t:

The gross pro�t and gross pro�t margin shows declining trajectory over the course of the year. In the �rst quarter, the gross margin was at 12.19%, primarily due 
to better price retention despite increase in input cost due to rupee devaluation. 

However, in the second quarter, the gross pro�t margin drops to 10.17% due to decrease in prices because of demand contraction coupled with strengthening 
of PKR after administrative measures. This declining trend continues in third quarter where gross margin drops to 7.94% due to slowdown in demand given the 
general elections in February 2024. The other reasons for declining gross margin are increased input costs due to lower capacity utilization resulting in 
unabsorbed �xed costs, increased electricity tari� from Rs. 29/kwh to Rs. 44/kwh, gas prices from Rs. 1200/mmbtu to Rs. 2,200/mmbtu along with increase in 
other input costs. 

In fourth quarter, the Company recorded gross loss due to much lower capacity utilization from 32% to 12% due to the reason mentioned in sales above. 
Further, in this quarter, the cost of good sold increases due to recording of provision related to Fuel Charge Adjustments of K-Electric and incremental 
depreciation subsequent to surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

Sales Revenue
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Operating Pro�t:

The declining trend in operating pro�t margin is in line with the gross margin. Followed by decline in gross margin, other factors that have contributed in 
decline in operating margin includes, increase in salaries which is attributable to all time high national in�ation, cartage and transportation cost due to increase 
in fuel prices and implementation of axle load. Further, the operating margin decline signi�cantly in fourth quarter due to increase in allowance for expected 
credit loss for the receivables aging over and above 180 days primarily due to increase in default rates.

Net Pro�t:

The net pro�t margin followed the similar trend as shown in gross and operating margin. The other factor impacted net margin is increased �nance cost due to 
higher interest rates throughout the year. Further, the net pro�t margin declined signi�cantly in fourth quarter due to reversal of deferred tax assets recorded 
on prior turnover taxes including deferred tax asset on turnover tax recorded till March 31, 2024. These turnover taxes are otherwise allowed to be carry forward 
and adjusted against future tax liabilities in three years’ time. However, the Company based on the principle of conservatism and being prudent has provided 
for these taxes as expense in the �nancial year under review anticipating low pro�tability in the near term and the fact that the Company also has to carry 
forward taxable losses that are required to be adjusted �rst under the income tax ordinance 2001.
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DUPONT ANALYSIS

*All �gures are in PKR million, otherwise indicated.

Return on Equity

x

30.37%

Ownership Ratio

-13.04%

Return on Assets

14,226

Owner’s Equity

46,840

Total Assets

-15.75%

Net Loss Margin Asset Turnover

14,226

Owner’s Equity

6,107

Net Loss

46,840

Total Assets

32,614

Total Liabilities

38,776

Sales

38,776

Sales

26.925

Current
Liabilities

44,882

Total Cost

16,602

Current Assets

5,689

Non-Current
Liabilities

30,234

Non-Current
Assets

-42.93%

0.83 times

Annual Report 2024 112



CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
   
Cash receipts from the customers  41,023,969 45,886,624
Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (40,867,640) (34,321,532)
Cash generated from operations  156,329 11,565,092
   
Income taxes paid    (334,309) (822,443)
Gratuity paid  (54,379) (32,833)
Finance costs paid    (3,997,871) (3,680,499)
Long-term deposits – net   18,143 10,276
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities  (4,212,088) 7,039,593

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
   
Fixed capital expenditure  (513,506) (1,597,660)
Addition to intangible assets  - (2,347)
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets  29,009 10,780
Net cash (used in) investing activities  (484,497) (1,589,227)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
   
Short term borrowings – net  4,888,680 (4,887,751)
Long-term �nancing – net  (1,502,095) (525,273)
Lease rentals paid  (38,048) (52,730)
Loan from related parties  (3,411) (25,000)
Dividend paid  (182) (154)
Net cash generated from / (used in) �nancing activities  3,344,944 (5,490,908)
   
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (1,351,640) (40,542)
   
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  (1,700,884) (1,660,342)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year  (3,052,524) (1,700,884)
   
Cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:   
Cash and bank balances  195,444 271,913
Running �nance  (3,247,969) (1,972,797)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year  (3,052,524) (1,700,884)

----------Rs.  In ‘000’----------

2024 2023

CASH FLOW STATEMENT – DIRECT METHOD

(Restated)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AMRELI STEELS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed �nancial statements of AMRELI STEELS LIMITED (the Company), which comprise the statement of �nancial position as at June 30, 2024 and 
the statement of pro�t or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash �ows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the �nancial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information 
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of �nancial position, the statement of pro�t or loss, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash �ows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's a�airs as at June 30, 2024 and of the loss, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash 
�ows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the 
Code) and we have ful�lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su�cient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainties Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 in the �nancial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a net loss of Rs. 6,106.723 million during the year ended June 30, 2024 
and, as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 10,742.584 million. As stated in note 2 these events or conditions, along with other 
matters as set forth in note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast signi�cant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion 
is not modi�ed in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signi�cance in our audit of the �nancial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the �nancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters.

117 BRUISED BUT NOT BEATEN



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does 
not include the �nancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the �nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the �nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the �nancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Existence and valuation of stock-in-trade

2. Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

As at June 30, 2024, the Company held stock in trade amounting to Rs. 
7,162.016 million which constitutes 15.3% of total assets of the Company. This 
comprises of raw materials, billets and rebars.

As described in note 5.5 to the �nancial statements, stock in trade is measured 
at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of work in process and �nished 
goods is determined at average manufacturing cost including the proportion of 
production overheads. There is an element of judgement involved in 
determining an appropriate costing basis, assessing its valuation including 
assessment of provision of slow moving and obsolete stock in trade.

We considered existence and valuation of stock-in-trade as key audit matter 
due to the signi�cance of stock in trade to the Company’s total assets and level 
of judgments and estimates involved.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:

•  Assessed the design, implementation and operating e�ectiveness of the 
relevant key controls over valuation of stock in trade;

•  Assessing the appropriateness of the Company’s accounting policy for 
valuation of stock in trade and compliance of the policy with International 
Accounting Standard (IAS-2) “Inventories”;

•  Observed physical inventory counts for raw material, billets and rebars 
performed by the Company and assessed the reasonableness of the 
management’s process of measurement of raw materials, billets and rebars 
and involved an external expert to perform physical inspection of raw 
material held at Company’s premises;

•  Tested the valuation of speci�c items of raw materials and work in progress 
and �nish goods at year end;

•  Assessed net realizable value (NRV) by comparing management’s 
estimation of future selling prices for the products with the selling prices 
achieved subsequent to the reporting period;

•  Assessed the adequacy of the obsolescence provision and the 
management judgement used;

•  Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures made in �nancial 
statements in accordance with the requirements of the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

 (Refer note 20 to the �nancial statements)
During the year, the Company revalued its land, buildings and plant and 
machinery resulting in recognition of surplus on revaluation amounting to Rs. 
9,030.438 million. Such revaluation was carried out by an independent valuer of 
the Company who considered various factors such as estimated market val, 
utilization by the Company and conditions of asset etc.

We considered revaluation of property, plant and equipment as key audit 
matter due to signi�cant managements’ judgments and estimations involved in 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:
•  Assessed the competence of the managements’ independent valuer and 

reviewed the revaluation report to understand the basis and methodology 
used for such valuation;

•  Involved our own specialist to review the valuation carried out by the 
managements independent valuer to assess the appropriateness of the 
methodology, assumptions and estimates used to determine the fair value 
of property, plant and machinery;

• Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures made in �nancial 
statements in accordance with the requirements of the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the �nancial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of �nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the �nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s �nancial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �nancial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in�uence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these �nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the �nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the e�ectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signi�cant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
�nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the �nancial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the �nancial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signi�cant audit �ndings, 
including any signi�cant de�ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most signi�cance in the audit of the �nancial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest bene�ts of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b)  the statement of �nancial position, the statement of pro�t or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and 
the statement of cash �ows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are 
in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d)  no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Other Matter relating to comparative information

The �nancial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended June 30, 2023, excluding the retrospective adjustments described in note 5.33 to the 
�nancial statements, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodi�ed opinion on those �nancial statements on October 02, 2023.

As part of our audit of the �nancial statements as at and for the year ended June 30, 2024, we also audited the retrospective adjustments described in note 
5.33 to the �nancial statements that were applied to restate the comparative information. We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures 
to the comparative information, other than with respect to the retrospective adjustments described in note 5.33 to the �nancial statements. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on comparative information. However, in our opinion, the retrospective adjustments described in 
note 5.33 to the �nancial statements are appropriate and have been properly applied.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zul�kar Ali Causer. 

KARACHI

DATED: October 03, 2024

UDIN: AR202410067HKo1VtEkJ
BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Chief Executive O�cer Director Chief Financial O�cer

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 Property, plant and equipment
 Right-of-use-assets
 Intangible assets
 Long term investments
 Long term deposits and loans

CURRENT ASSETS

 Stores and spares
 Stock-in-trade
 Trade debts 
 Loans and advances
 Trade deposits and short term prepayments
 Short term investments
 Other receivables
 Taxation – net
 Cash and bank balances
 
 Non current asset held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

 Authorized share capital

 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
 Capital reserve
 Revenue reserves – Accumulated (loss) / unappropriated pro�t
 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Long term �nancing
 Long term provision
 Loan from related parties
 Deferred taxation
 Deferred liability - de�ned bene�t obligation
 Lease liabilities
 Government grant

CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Trade and other payables
 Contract liabilities
 Interest / markup accrued
 Short term borrowings
 Current portion of long term �nancing
 Current portion of long term provision
 Current portion of lease liabilities
 Current portion of government grant
 Current portion of loan from related parties
 Unclaimed dividend 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

7
8
9

10

11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18

19

19

20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

29
30
21
22
26
27
23

31

Note June 30
2024

(Restated) (Restated)

June 30
2023

July 01
2022

------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------
 

29,955,370 
 100,238 

 3,187 
 -   

 175,575 
 30,234,370 

 
2,453,480 
 7,162,016 
 2,349,962 

 60,121 
 30,035
 14,289 

 988,633 
 2,928,387 

 195,444 
 16,182,367 

 423,170
 46,839,907 

5,000,000

 2,970,114 
 2,788,742 
 (751,018)
 9,218,163 

 14,226,001 

 -   
 -   

 124,922 
 4,946,265 

 511,949 
 105,818 

 -   
 5,688,955 

 2,474,553 
 437,305 

 1,457,718 
 17,861,957 

 4,002,484 
 282,189 

 34,310 
 369,161 

 -   
 5,274 

 26,924,951 
 46,839,907 

 

21,578,251 
 76,410 
 11,872 
 14,289 

 203,993 
 21,884,815 

 
2,756,628 

 11,017,657 
 5,478,005 

 53,447 
 31,260 

 -   
 266 

 2,622,040 
 356,869 

 22,316,172 
 -   

 44,200,987 

5,000,000

 2,970,114 
 2,788,742 
 5,743,716 
 3,705,659 

 15,208,231 

 4,820,914 
 72,160 

 341,333 
 641,128 
 369,916 

 72,416 
 170,641 

 6,488,508 

 2,967,756 
 773,573 
 521,139 

 16,630,270 
 1,353,625 

 195,281 
 14,351 
 42,643 

 -   
 5,610 

 22,504,248 
 44,200,987 

 22,263,497 
 135,731 

 6,600 
 -   

 193,717 
 22,599,545 

 2,609,216 
 7,092,139 
 4,973,402 

 45,494
 20,767
 14,289 

 211,236 
 2,590,288 

 271,913 
 17,828,744 

 -
    40,428,289

5,000,000

 2,970,114 
 2,788,742 
 5,095,368 
 3,521,961 

 14,376,185 

 3,704,899 
 5,831 

 -   
 1,149,000 

 452,985 
 121,797 
 381,564 

 5,816,076 

 4,803,126
 479,227 
 800,284 

 11,698,105 
 1,799,680 

 272,127 
 34,529 
 27,161 

 316,333 
 5,456 

 20,236,028 
 40,428,289

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.
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Sales-net 32  38,775,737  45,492,724 

Cost of sales 33  (36,374,311)  (39,538,794)

Gross pro�t  2,401,426  5,953,930 

Distribution costs 34  (1,114,552)  (1,008,778)

Administrative expenses 35  (842,398) (751,114)

Allowance for expected credit losses 12.1  (379,205)  (119,602)

Other expenses 36  (199,214) (84,097)

Other income 37  3,156  8,312 

Operating (loss) / pro�t   (130,787) 3,998,651 

Finance costs 38  (4,772,416) (4,043,279)

Loss before taxation, minimum and �nal tax   (4,903,203) (44,628)

Levy  39  (488,193) (256,558)

Loss before taxation  (5,391,396)  (301,186)

Taxation 40  (715,327) (396,010)

Loss for the year  (6,106,723) (697,196)

Loss per share – basic and diluted 41  (20.56) (2.35)

Note

2024 2023
(Restated)

-------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------

-------- (Rupees) ---------

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

Chief Executive O�cer Director Chief Financial O�cer
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Loss for the year   (6,106,723)  (697,196)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be subsequently reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss:

Actuarial gain / (loss) on remeasurement of de�ned bene�t obligation – net of tax  4,904  (14,022)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax 20  5,951,635   -   

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (150,184) (711,218)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

Note

2024 2023
(Restated)

-------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------

Chief Executive O�cer Director Chief Financial O�cer
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Balance as at June 30, 2022 as previously reported

E�ect of restatements- Note 5.33.3

Balance as at July 01, 2022 - as restated

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year  
Other comprehensive loss for the year  
- Actuarial gain / (loss) on remeasurement of de�ned
       bene�t obligation – net of tax

Change of deferred tax rates - Note 5.33.3  

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment        
       released during the year - net of tax

Balance as at June 30, 2023- as restated

Balance as at June 30, 2023- as previously reported

E�ect of restatements- Note 5.33.3

Balance as at July 01, 2023- as restated

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year  
Other comprehensive income for the year
- Actuarial gain / (loss) on remeasurement of de�ned
       bene�t obligation – net of tax  

- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
       equipment - net of tax 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
       released during the year - net of tax

Balance as at June 30, 2024

 2,970,114 

 -   

2,970,114 

 -   

-   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 2,970,114 

 2,970,114 

 -   
 

2,970,114 

 -   
   
  

 

 - 

-   
 

2,970,114 

 2,788,742 

 -   

2,788,742 

 -   

 -   
 -   
 - 

-   

 2,788,742 

 2,788,742 

 -   

 2,788,742 

 -   

 -   
  

 -   
-

- 

 2,788,742 

 5,865,798 

 (122,082)

 5,743,716 

 5,095,368 
 (697,196)

 (14,022)
 (711,218)

 -   

 62,870 

 5,095,368 

 5,250,225 

 (154,857)

 5,095,368 

 
(6,106,723)

 4,904 
 

- 
(6,101,819)

 255,433 

 (751,018)

 3,705,659 

 -   

 3,705,659 

 -   

 -   
-   

 (120,828)

 (62,870)

 3,521,961 

 3,642,789 

 (120,828)

 3,521,961 

 -   

   
-  
  

 5,951,635 
 5,951,635 

 (255,433)

 9,218,163 

 (75,607)

 75,607 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

-

 (89,629)

 89,629 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 

 -   
-

 -   

 -   

 15,254,706 

 (46,475)

 15,208,231 

(697,196)

 (14,022)
 (711,218)
 (120,828)

 -   

 14,376,185 

 14,562,241 

 (186,056)
 

14,376,185 

 (6,106,723)

 4,904 

 5,951,635 
 (150,184)

 -   
 

14,226,001 

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-

up
capital

 Share
premium

 Surplus on
revaluation
of property,

plant and
equipment

 Accumulated
(loss) /

unappropriated
pro�t

Acturial
loss on

gratuity
fund

Capital Reserve Revenue Reserve

Total

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

---------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------------------------

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Chief Executive O�cer Director Chief Financial O�cer
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 Cash generated from operations 43  156,329   11,565,092  
 Income taxes paid  (334,309)   (822,443)
 Gratuity paid  (54,379)  (32,833)
 Finance costs paid  (3,997,871) (3,680,499)
 Long term deposits and loans – net   18,143  10,276 
 Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities  (4,212,088) 7,039,593 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 Capital expenditure  (513,506)  (1,597,660)
 Additions to intangible assets  -     (2,347)
 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  29,009   10,780 
 Net cash (used in ) investing activities   (484,497)  (1,589,227)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 Dividend paid   (182) (154)
 Short term borrowings – net  4,888,680   (4,887,751)
 Long term �nancing -net  (1,502,095)  (525,273)
 Loan from related parties- net  (3,411)  (25,000)
 Lease rentals paid   (38,048)  (52,730)
 Net cash generated from / (used in)  �nancing activities  3,344,944   (5,490,908)
 Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (1,351,640) (40,542)
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  (1,700,884) (1,660,342)
 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 44  (3,052,524)  (1,700,884)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

Note

2024 2023
(Restated)

-------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------

Chief Executive O�cer Director Chief Financial O�cer
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1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in 1984 as a private limited company and converted into a public unquoted company in 2009 
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance now Companies Act, 2017 ). The Company enlisted on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) 
in 2015. The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of steel bars and billets. The geographical location and addresses of the Company’s 
business units / immovable assets are as under: 

2 MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

 During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Company faced further signi�cant challenges arising from macroeconomic conditions and political 
uncertainties. These challenges included, but were not limited to, a tight monetary policy, constrained �scal space, high in�ation, exorbitant energy 
costs, mounting external and domestic debt burdens, and stringent conditions associated with International Monetary Fund (IMF) support. These 
unprecedented external factors placed considerable pressure on the construction sector, leading to reduced demand and capacity utilization. The 
combination of low capacity utilization, which increased the �xed cost per ton, and the Company’s high leverage during the year resulted in a 
substantial net loss for the year amounting to Rs. 6,106.723 million (2023: Rs. 697.196 million) and have a negative operating cash �ow amounting to 
Rs. 4,212.092 million.

 The gap between current assets and current liabilities has widened considerably, primarily due to negative operating cash �ows, operational capital 
expenditures, and the repayment of current maturities. The Company has also breached the covenant of all long term �nance due to adverse liquidity 
position (refer note 21.6) which  triggered the reclassi�cation of long term loans and related deferred grant  amounting to Rs. 1,961.59 million and Rs. 
336.117 million  from "non-current liabilities" to "current liabilities" under the requirements of IAS 1- Presentation of �nancial statements, further 
deteriorating the Company's current ratio resultantly current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets by Rs.10,742.58 millions. Further 
subsequent to year end, the Company has shutdown it plant located at Shershah (Refer note 52).

 These events or conditions, along with other matters as stated above, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast signi�cant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

 However, the management has devised �nancially viable strategies to navigate through these challenging times. These strategies include 
restructuring of short-term and long-term debt, reducing operational costs, thus conserving cash and showing much-improved liquidity ratios 
post-restructuring. The pro�tability will also improve gradually and as soon as capacity utilization kicks in after a successful restructuring. Further, the 
Company’s Sponsors remain committed to provide unconditional �nancial support to the Company to ensure continued operations.

 According to the IMF and World Bank’s forecasts, the country’s GDP is poised to grow at an average rate of 4% from �nancial year 2026 and beyond, 
the interest rate, which has already started to climb down. It is important to note that strong demand potential exists in the construction industry 
given the current state of infrastructure, lowest water reservoir, and signi�cant housing shortfall all within a country of approximately 240 million 
people, growing at an annual rate of over 2%. Pakistan currently ranks as the lowest in per capita steel consumption in the region. Therefore, the 
management believes that the future outlook of the Company is positive and accordingly, these �nancial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis.

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE        
         
 These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting 

and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as noti�ed under the 
Companies Act, 2017; 

 - Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are noti�ed under the 
Companies Act, 2017; and

 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Business Units

Registered o�ce and warehouse  
 
Production plant
Production plant and warehouse  
 
Warehouses   
   
O�ce Premises   

Addresses

Plot No. A-18, S.I.T.E Karachi (Land measuring area 2.490 Acres)   
Plot No. D-89 Shershah Karachi (Land measuring area 2.220 Acres)   
Plot No. D-90/B Shershah Karachi (Land measuring area 1.05 Acres)   
Industrial Land, Deh Gharo, Tapo Gharo, Taluka Mirpur Sakro, District Thatta, Sindh (Land 
measuring area 109.5 Acres )   
Noor Road Badami Bagh Lahore (Land measuring 0.79 Acres)   
Plot # 392 sector I-9/3 industrial area Islamabad (Land measuring (0.50 Acres)   
14th �oor, West Wing, Sky Tower, Clifton, Karachi (20,000 sq.ft)   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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 The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard (lAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements which 
have been e�ective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to 
accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the �nancial statements.

 The amendments require the disclosure of "Material Accounting Policy Information" rather than "Summary of Signi�cant Accounting Policies". The 
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting the Company to provide useful 
entity-speci�c accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the �nancial statements.

 Management reviewed the accounting policies and updated it and disclosed in Note 5 Material accounting policies information (2023: Summary of 
signi�cant accounting policies) in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accounting policies are material for 
disclosure.

 During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn Technical Release 27 ‘IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ 
and issued the ‘IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). Accordingly, in accordance with the 
Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy to recognise minimum and �nal taxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” which were previously being recognised as ‘Income tax’.

4.4 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet e�ective and have not early adopted by the Company

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only e�ective for accounting periods, beginning on or after July 01, 2024. These 
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have signi�cant impact on 
the Company's �nancial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

E�ective dates
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS Practice

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' - De�nition of Accounting 
Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the requirements regarding deferred tax assets and 
liabilities related to pillar two income taxes

E�ective dates
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Supplier �nance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Amendments regarding the classi�cation and 
measurement of �nancial instruments

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 di�er from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under 
the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

4 BASIS OF PREPARATION

 These �nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting 
policies below. 

4.2 Functional and presentation currency

 These �nancial statements are prepared in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

4.3  New standards, amendments, IFRS interpretations and guidance that are e�ective for the year ended June 30, 2024

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are e�ective for the year ended June 30, 2024. These standards, amendments and 
interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have signi�cant impact on the �nancial statements other than certain 
additional disclosures.
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E�ective dates
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' -  Amendments regarding the classi�cation and measurement of 
�nancial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and 
leaseback transactions

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classi�cation of liabilities as current or non-current

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier �nance arrangements

Amendments to IAS 21 'The E�ects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

 IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB e�ective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not 
been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

 IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB e�ective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been 
adopted yet locally by SECP

 IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB e�ective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been 
adopted yet locally by SECP

 IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been noti�ed by the IASB to be e�ective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP 
has noti�ed the timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION        
        
 The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these �nancial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently 

applied to all the years presented, unless stated otherwise.

5.1 Property, plant and equipment       
        
5.1.1 Owned assets

 These are initially stated at cost. Subsequently, these are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, 
except for leasehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and machinery which are stated at revalued amounts less impairment, if any. Cost in 
relation to certain items in operating �xed assets and capital work in progress, signi�es historical cost and �nancial charges on borrowings.

 Depreciation is charged to statement of pro�t or loss applying the reducing balance method except for plant and machinery, computers and vehicles 
which are depreciated on straight line basis and / or unit of production method at the rates disclosed in note 7 to the �nancial statements. 
Depreciation is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset is 
disposed.

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of pro�t or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements which increase 
the asset’s remaining useful economic life or the performance beyond the current estimated levels are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, 
are retired.

 The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the di�erence between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of an asset 
is recognized in the pro�t or loss in the period of disposal.

 The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

 The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that carrying values may not be recoverable. If such indication exists where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, 
the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.
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 Surplus on revaluation of  land, buildings and plant and machinery is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account 
and is shown in the statement of changes in equity. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. 
Revaluation is carried out with su�cient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not di�er materially from the fair value. Cost / 
revalued amount at the date of the revaluation is adjusted / eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated 
to the revalued amount of the asset. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings. If an asset's carrying amount is increased as a 
result of a revaluation, the increase shall be recognised in statement of comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of 
surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment. If an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be 
recognised in pro�t or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in 
the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in statement of comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in 
equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised in statement of pro�t or loss to the extent that it reverses 
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in statement of pro�t or loss.

5.1.2 Capital work in progress       
        
 Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less impairment and signi�es expenditures incurred, advances made in respect of speci�c assets and 

�nancial charges on borrowings for �nancing the projects which takes substantial time for completion, until such projects are available for their 
intended use. Fixed assets under capital work-in-progress are classi�ed to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment, when 
completed and ready for intended use.

5.2 Right-of-use assets       
        
 The Company recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use). 

Subsequently Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement 
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

5.3 Intangibles       
        
 These are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

 Amortization is charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis over its economic useful life at the rate given in note 9 to these �nancial 
statements. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an intangible asset is available for use while no amortization is charged 
for the month in which an intangible asset is disposed.

 The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset represented by the di�erence between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount 
is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss in the month of disposal.

 An intangible asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount.

5.4 Stores and spares       
        
 These are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, less impairment if any. The net realizable value of stores and spares is determined based on 

replacement cost.  Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Items in 
transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of inventories regularly and as appropriate, inventory is written down to its net realizable value or 
provision is made for obsolescence, if there is any change in usage pattern and/or physical form of related inventory.

5.5 Stock-in-trade 

 These are valued at the lower of cost and NRV.

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

 Raw materials    - Weighted average cost   
 Work-in-process   - Consists of direct materials, labour cost, fuel cost, power cost, depreciation and   

      maintenance etc.   
 Finished goods - Manufactured  - Weighted average cost   
 Stock-in-transit   - Invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date
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 NRV signi�es the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessarily to be 
incurred to make the sale.

5.6 Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding �nancial assets

 These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the e�ective interest rate method.

5.7 Investments at amortised cost

 These are investments which meet the following criteria: 
 -   held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding.

 These are initially recognized at fair value which is equal to amount of consideration paid at the time of acquisition and subsequently carried at 
amortised cost.

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents       
        
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, bank deposit, cheques in hand, short term highly liquid investments and balances with banks. 

Short-term borrowing facilities which are payable on demand, are included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash 
�ows.

5.9 Non current assets held for sale       
        
 'The Company classi�es non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 

than through continuing use. Non-current assets classi�ed as held for sale (except for investment property measured at fair value) are measured at 
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an 
asset, excluding �nance costs and income tax expense.

 'The criteria for held for sale classi�cation is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that signi�cant changes to the sale 
will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale is expected to 
be completed within one year from the date of the classi�cation. 'Assets and liabilities classi�ed as held for sale are presented separately in the 
statement of �nancial position.

5.10 Leases

 The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease i.e., if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identi�ed asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

5.10.1 Short-term leases          
           
 The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short term leases (i.e., leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from 

the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short term leases are recognised as expense on a straight line 
basis over the lease term. 

5.10.2 Finance lease - lease liabilities          
           
 At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over 

the lease term. The lease payments include �xed payments (including in-substance �xed payments) less lease incentives receivable (if any), variable 
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate (if any), and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees (if any). The lease 
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company (if any) and payments of penalties 
for terminating the lease (if any), if the termination option is reasonably certain to be exercised. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an 
index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

 In calculating the present value of lease payments at the lease commencement date, the Company uses the interest rate implicit in the lease. In case 
where the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement 
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to re�ect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying 
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modi�cation, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the 
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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5.11 Financial instruments          
           
 A �nancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a �nancial asset of one entity and a �nancial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

 i) Financial assets

 Initial Recognition and Measurement          
           
 Initial recognition and measurement Financial assets are classi�ed at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value 

through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through pro�t or loss (FVPL).

 The classi�cation of �nancial assets at initial recognition depends on the �nancial asset’s contractual cash �ow characteristics and the Company’s 
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables, the Company initially measures a �nancial asset at its fair value plus, in 
the case of a �nancial asset not at fair value through pro�t or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price 
determined under IFRS 15 ' Revenue from Contract with Customers'.

 In order for a �nancial asset to be classi�ed and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash �ows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an 
instrument level. The Company’s business model for managing �nancial assets refers to how it manages its �nancial assets in order to generate cash 
�ows. The business model determines whether cash �ows will result from collecting contractual cash �ows, selling the �nancial assets, or both.

 Purchases or sales of �nancial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place 
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

 Subsequent measurement          
           
 For purposes of subsequent measurement, �nancial assets are classi�ed into following categories:

 • Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)         
 • Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (FVOCI) with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity 

instruments); and
 • Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss (FVPL)

 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

 The Company measures �nancial assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

 • The �nancial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold �nancial assets in order to collect contractual cash �ows; and
 • The contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding.

 Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the e�ective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and 
losses are recognised in statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modi�ed or impaired.

 Financial assets designated at FVOCI (equity instruments) 

 Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FVOCI when they 
meet the de�nition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classi�cation is determined on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis.

 Gains and losses on these �nancial assets are never recycled to pro�t or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in pro�t or loss when the right 
of payment has been established, except when the Company bene�ts from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the �nancial asset, in 
which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

 Financial assets at FVPL          
           
 Financial assets at FVPL include �nancial assets held for trading, �nancial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL or �nancial assets 

mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classi�ed as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or 
repurchasing in the near term.  Financial assets with cash �ows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classi�ed and measured at 
fair value through pro�t or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classi�ed at amortized 
cost or at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or signi�cantly 
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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 Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the statement of �nancial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in statement of pro�t 
or loss and other comprehensive income.

 This category also includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI. 
Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in pro�t or loss when the right of payment has been established.

 The Company has not designated any �nancial asset at FVPL.

 Derecognition

 A �nancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a �nancial asset or part of a group of similar �nancial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed 
from the Company’s statement of �nancial position) when:

 • The rights to receive cash �ows from the asset have expired, or
 • The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash �ows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash �ows in full 

without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  but has 
transferred control of the asset.

 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash �ows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and 
to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

 When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company 
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that re�ects the rights and obligations that the Company has 
retained. 

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the 
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

 ii) Financial liabilities

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial liabilities are classi�ed, at initial recognition, as �nancial liabilities at fair value through pro�t or loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables, 
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an e�ective hedge, as appropriate.

 All �nancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement          
           
 Financial liabilities at FVPL          
           
 Financial liabilities at fair value through pro�t or loss include �nancial liabilities held for trading and �nancial liabilities designated upon initial 

recognition as at fair value through pro�t or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through pro�t or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if 
the criteria in IFRS 9 are satis�ed. The Company has not designated any �nancial liability as at fair value through pro�t or loss.

 Financial liabilities at amortized cost          
           
 After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the e�ective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains 

and losses are recognised in statement of pro�t or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included as �nance costs in statement of pro�t or loss.

 Borrowings are classi�ed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of borrowings in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of 
the borrowing.
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 Derecognition           
           
 A �nancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing �nancial liability is 

replaced by another from the same lender on substantially di�erent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modi�ed, such an 
exchange or modi�cation is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The di�erence in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income.

5.12 O�setting of �nancial instruments          
           
 Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are o�set and the net amount is reported in the statement of �nancial position if there is a currently 

enforceable legal right to o�set the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

5.13 Impairment          
           
 Impairment of �nancial assets          
           
 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through pro�t or loss. ECLs are 

based on the di�erence between the contractual cash �ows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash �ows that the Company expects to 
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original e�ective interest rate. The expected cash �ows will include cash �ows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

 ECL is recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a signi�cant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are 
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for 
which there has been a signi�cant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the 
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

 For �nancial assets other than trade debts and contract assets, the Company applies general approach in calculating ECL. It is based on di�erence 
between the contractual cash�ows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash�ows that the Company expect to receive discounted at the 
approximation of the original e�ective interest rate. The expected cash�ows will include cash �ows from sale of collateral held or other credit 
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

 For trade debts and contract assets, the Company applies a simpli�ed approach where applicable in calculating ECL. Therefore, the Company does 
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Company has established 
a provision matrix for large portfolio of customer having similar characteristics and default rates based on the credit rating of customers from which 
receivables are due that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors speci�c to the debtors and 
the economic environment.

 The Company considers a �nancial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may 
also consider a �nancial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding 
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A �nancial asset is written o� when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash �ows.

 Impairment of non-�nancial assets          
           
 The carrying amounts of non-�nancial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such 

an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, 
as an expense in statement of pro�t or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value 
in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash �ows using a pre-tax discount rate that re�ects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risk speci�c to the assets for which the estimate of future cash �ow have not been adjusted. For the purpose of 
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identi�able cash �ows (cash-generating units).

 An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 
to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised previously. Reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of pro�t 
or loss.

5.14 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an out�ow 

of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to re�ect current best estimate.
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 The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

5.15 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to 

get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in 
which they occur. Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

5.16 Foreign currency transactions and translations

 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and 
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing at the reporting date. 
Exchange di�erences are recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss.

5.17 Unclaimed dividend          
           
 Dividend declared and remain unclaimed from the date it is due and payable.

5.18 De�ned bene�t obligation - Gratuity          
           
 The Company operates an un-approved and unfunded de�ned bene�t plan for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum 

qualifying year of service for entitlement of gratuity. Gratuity is based on employees' last drawn salary. Provisions are made to cover the obligations 
under the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuations are carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

 Actuarial gain or loss (remeasurements) are immediately recognised in Statement of  Comprehensive Income’ as they occur. The amount recognised 
in the statement of �nancial position represents the present value of de�ned bene�t obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets. 
Current service costs and any past service costs together with net interest cost are charged to pro�t or loss.

 Retirement bene�ts are payable to employees on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under the Plan.

5.19 Ijarah contracts          
           
 Leases under Shariah compliant Ijarah contracts, where signi�cant portion of the risk and reward of ownership is retained by the lessor, are classi�ed 

as Ijarah. Rentals under these arrangements are charged to statement of pro�t or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.

5.20 Taxation - Levy and taxes

5.20.1 Levy          
           
 The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan has issued IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes and 

de�ned two approaches for bifurcation of tax between current and minimum taxes. Accordingly, the Company has accounting policy to recognise 
minimum tax or �nal tax if any on any amount over the current tax as levy under IAS-37 "Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets" 
which was previously recognised as Income tax liabilities.

5.20.2 Income Tax
          
 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in statement of pro�t or loss, except to the extent that it 

relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it is also recognized in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity respectively.

5.20.2.1 Current          
           
 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income. 

The charge for current tax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date after taking into account tax credits and 
tax rebates. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from 
assessments framed during the year for such years.

5.20.2.2 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary di�erences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

and their carrying amounts appearing in the �nancial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary di�erences. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary di�erences to the extent that it is probable that the temporary di�erences will reverse 
in the future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary di�erences can be utilized.
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 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of �nancial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that su�cient taxable pro�t will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of �nancial position date. Deferred tax is charged or 
credited in the statement of pro�t or loss and statement of comprehensive income.

5.20.3 Sales tax          
           
 Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except:

 When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of goods or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the goods or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

 When receivables and payables include amount of sales tax, the net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of �nancial position.

5.21 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised at amounts that re�ect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods or 

services to a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised when performance 
obligation is satis�ed, at a point in time, when control of goods have been transferred to a customer. Generally, the normal credit term is 30 to 60 days 
upon delivery. 

5.22 Other income           
           
 Return on short-term deposits and investments at amortised cost are accounted for using the e�ective interest rate method.

 Scrap sales are recognized on receipt basis.          
           
5.23 Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

 Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability and appropriation to / from reserves is made in the period in which 
these are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the �nancial statement are authorised for issue, they are 
disclosed as subsequent event in the notes to the �nancial statements.

5.24 Contingent liabilities           
           
 Contingent liability is disclosed when:

 - there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or 

 - there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be 
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measure with su�cient reliability.

5.25 Operating segments          
           
 For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organized into one reportable operating segment. The Company operates in the said 

reportable operating segment based on the nature of the products, risks and returns, organizational and management structure, and internal 
financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in the financial statements are related to the Company’s only reportable segment.

5.26 Borrowings          
           
 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any 

di�erence between the proceeds received (net of transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss over the 
period of the borrowings using the e�ective interest method.

 Finance cost are accounted for on accrual basis and are shown as interest and markup is accrued to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

5.27 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and 

services received, whether or not billed to the Company  and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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 Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. 
Accounts payable are classi�ed as current liabilities if payment is due within one year. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

5.28 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of 
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract 
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the 
Company performs under the contract.

5.29 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classi�ed as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options 

are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

5.30 Earnings per share           
            
 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the pro�t or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
EPS is determined by adjusting the pro�t or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for the e�ects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

5.31 Government grant          
           
 The Company recognises benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as a government grant provided there is a reasonable 

assurance that the grant will be received and Company will comply with all attached conditions.

 The deferred capital grant is measured upon initial recognition as the di�erence between fair value of the loan and loan proceeds. The fair value of 
the loan is the present value of the loan proceed received, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for a similar instrument. In 
subsequent periods, the loan amount would be accredited using the e�ective interest method.

 When the grant relates to expense, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to 
compensate, are expensed-out. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the 
related asset.

5.32 Current versus non-current classi�cation          
           
 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of �nancial position based on current / non-current classi�cation.

 An asset is current when: 

 -  it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
 -  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 -  it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 -  cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

 All other assets are classi�ed as non-current. 

 A liability is current when:
 
 -  it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
 -  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 -  it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period;
 -  there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

 The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not a�ect its 
classi�cation.

 The Company classi�es all other liabilities as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classi�ed as non-current assets and liabilities.
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5.33 Restatements          
           
5.33.1 Change in accounting policy          
           
 During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn Technical Release 27 ‘IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ 

and issued the ‘IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). Accordingly, in accordance with the 
Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy to recognise minimum and �nal taxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” which were previously being recognised as ‘Income tax’.

5.33.2 Reclassi�cations and correction of errors

5.33.2.1 During the year, Murabaha �nancing had been included in trade and other payables. During the year, Murabaha �nancing has been classi�ed as short 
term borrowing based on its nature of borrowings and accordingly, outstanding balances as at June 30, 2023 and July 01, 2022 amounting to Rs. 
366.968 million and Rs. 4,056.998 million respectively have been reclassi�ed from trade and other payables to short term borrowings. 

5.33.2.2 In previous year, long term investment having maturity on June, 2024 (within next 12 months maturity) was classi�ed as non current asset instead of 
current asset. The fact has been  identi�ed in the current year and the comparative �gure amounting Rs. 14.289 million has been reclassi�ed to 
current assets as the investment was expected to be realized within next 12 months from the reporting date.

5.33.2.3 Acturial loss on remeasurement of de�ned bene�t obligation had been reported as seperate line item in the Statement of Changes in  Equity / the 
Statement of Financial Position. During the year, the  acturial loss balance as at June 30, 2023 and July 01, 2022 amounting Rs. 89.629 million and Rs. 
75.607 million respectively have been reclassi�ed to Revenue reserves – Accumulated (loss) / unappropriated pro�t  in the Statement of Changes in  
Equity for the purpose of better presentation and classi�cation.

5.33.2.4 As per IAS 12, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the statement of �nancial position date. However, as at June 
30, 2023 it was identi�ed that  the deferred tax on revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment was measured at the rate other than the rate 
enacted at reporting date. During the year, the Company identi�ed this fact and accordingly applied the enacted rate to determine the deferred tax.

5.33.2.5 Pursuant to Supreme Court order in August, 2020 , the Company is required to pay levy of GIDC  in 48 monthly installment through billing by Sui 
Northern Gas Pipeline Limited (SNGPL).

 "Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan issued guidelines dated January 21, 2021 for measurement of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 
(GIDC) as �nancial liability for treatment under accounting principles of IFRS9- “Financial Instruments” that require all the future out�ows need to be 
recognized at present value as �nancial liability at amortized cost. Di�erence between present value of �nancial liability and face value is recognized 
as income in pro�t or loss. However, the accounting treatment as required had not been followed neither the unwinding of the liability was 
accounted for in accordance with the original installment plan classi�cation of current portion was not made based on schedule of payment rather 
the current portion was included in Trade and other payables based on straight line basis of installments, instead of separately presented on the 
Statement of Financial Position. During the year, the management has accurately determined the unwinding e�ect and accounted for accordingly 
and presented current portion of long term provision separately in the Statement of Financial Position as required  by IAS 1.

5.33.3 E�ect of changes

 The above changes have been made in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8, 'Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors' 
in these �nancial statements with retrospective e�ect and restatement of amounts previously reported in the �nancial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 and July 01, 2022 are given below.

 The Company has presented statement of �nancial position as at the beginning of the earliest period presented i.e. July 01, 2022 and related note in 
accordance with the requirements of IAS - 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements".
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 2,333,730 

 11,331,137 
 14,289 

 -   
 1,028,172 

 146,863 
 -   

 4,979,403 

 5,250,225 

 3,642,789 
 

(89,629)

 

2,590,288 

11,698,105 
 -   

 14,289 
 1,149,000

 5,831 
 272,127 

 4,803,126 

5,095,368 

 3,521,961 

 -   

 

256,558

 (366,968)
 (14,289)

 14,289 
 (120,828)

 141,032 
 (272,127)

 176,277

 (154,857)

 (120,828)

 89,629 

As previously
reported

As
restated Restatement

------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

June 30, 2023

 

1,769,109 

 12,573,272 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 154,463 
 -   

 6,238,326 

 5,865,798 

 -   

 (75,607)

 

2,622,040 

 16,630,270 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 72,160 
 195,281 

 2,967,756 

 5,743,716 

 -   

 -   

 852,931 

 (4,056,998)
 -   
 -   
 -   

 82,303 
 (195,281)
 3,270,570 

 (122,082)

 -   

 75,607 

As previously
reported

As
restated Restatement

------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

July 01, 2022

2023
---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

 
 E�ect on statement of pro�t or loss:
 
 Change in accounting policy:
 Increase in levy (Refer 5.33.1)
    Minimum tax   (255,293)
    Final tax (Refer 5.33.1)   (1,265)
    (256,558)
 Decrease in income tax (Refer 5.33.1)   256,558 
 
 Corrections:
 Increase in cost of sales (Refer 5.33.2)   (8,234)
 Increase in �nance cost (Refer 5.33.2)   (10,518)
 Net e�ect on Statement of pro�t or loss   18,752)
 Net e�ect to equity   (18,752)

 
 Increase in loss per share   (0.07)

Rupees

 E�ect on statement of �nancial position
 Change in accounting policy
 Taxation – net (Refer 5.33.1)

 Reclassi�cations and corrections:
 Short term borrowings (Refer 5.33.2.1)
 Long term investments (Refer 5.33.2.2)
 Short term investments (Refer 5.33.2.2)
 Deferred taxation (Refer 5.33.2.4)
 Long term provision (Refer 5.33.2.5)
 Current portion of long term provision (Refer 5.33.2.5)
 Trade and other payables*
 (Refer 5.33.2.1, 5.33.2.5 & 5.33.1)

 E�ect on statement of changes in equity
 Revenue reserves – unappropriated pro�t**
 (Refer 5.33.2.3 & 5.33.2.5)
 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
 (Refer 5.33.2.4)
 Remeasurement loss on de�ned bene�t obligation
 (Refer 5.33.2.3)

* Restatement represents e�ect of change in accounting policy of Rs. 256.558 million (2022: Rs. 852.931 million) and reclassi�cation of Rs. 366.968 
million (2022: Rs. 4,056.998 million) and Rs. 65.867 million (2022: Rs. 66.503 million) from trade and other payables to short term borrowings and 
current portion of long term provision respectively.

** Restatement represents reclassi�cation of remeasurement loss on de�ned bene�t obligation amounting to Rs. 89.629 million (2022: Rs. 75.607 
million) and e�ect of correction of unwinding of GIDC liability as explained in note 5.33.2.5, amounting to Rs. 65.228 million (2022: Rs. 46.475 million).
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6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

 The preparation of �nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are 
continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future 
years a�ected. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which 
are signi�cant to the �nancial statements:

 Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment

 The Company reviews the appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, depreciation method, useful life and residual value used in the calculation of 
depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In 
making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in estimates in future might a�ect the 
carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with corresponding e�ect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

 The Company reviews the appropriateness of the revaluation of certain assets periodically for the purpose of ensuring that the carrying amount of 
the same does not di�er materially from its fair value. In making this assessment, the Company uses the technical resources available with the 
Company. Any change in assessment in future might a�ect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with 
corresponding e�ect on revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment.

 Impairment �nancial assets          
           
 The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade debts and other receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for 

Company's various customer that have similar loss patterns.

 The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the 
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the 
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting 
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

 The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a signi�cant estimate. The 
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and 
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the 
Company’s �nancial assets exposed to credit risk is disclosed in note 46.2 to these �nancial statements.

 Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

 The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease 
if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

 The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it 
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an 
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there 
is a signi�cant event or change in circumstances that is within its control that a�ects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to 
terminate (e.g., construction of signi�cant leasehold improvements or signi�cant customisation of the leased asset).

 Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

 The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR’) to measure lease 
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds 
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

 De�ned Bene�t Plan          
           
 Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 25 to the �nancial statements for the valuation of present value of de�ned 

bene�t obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in these assumptions in future years might a�ect gains and losses in those years.
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 Taxation

 Signi�cant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and deferred tax asset and liability. The Company recognizes liabilities 
for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due taking into account decisions/judgement of appellate 
authorities on similar tax issues in the past. Where the �nal tax outcome of these matters is di�erent from the amounts that were initially recorded, 
such di�erences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The recognition of 
deferred tax is also made taking into these judgements and the best estimate of future results of the Company.

 Contingencies 

 The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of signi�cant judgment as the outcome of the future events cannot be 
predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities 
which may di�er on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events.

 Stock in trade and stores and spares

 The Company reviews the Net Realizable Value (NRV) of stock-in-trade and stores and spares to assess any diminution in the respective carrying 
values. NRV is estimated with reference to the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on management's estimate regarding their future 
usability.

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT     
    

 Owned �xed assets 7.1 28,196,929 20,632,188
 Capital work-in progress 7.2 1,758,441 1,631,309
   29,955,370 22,263,497

Note
2024 2023

-------- (Rupees in ‘000’) ---------
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7.1.1 Operating �xed assets include items having an aggregate cost of Rs. 251.1 million (2023: 163.98 million) which have been fully depreciated and are 
still in use of the Company.        

         
7.1.2 The Company’s leasehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and machinery were revalued by an independent valuer - M/s KG Traders as on 

June 30, 2024 on the basis of present market values of similar sized plots in the vicinity for land and replacement values of similar type of buildings 
based on present cost of construction (level 2) (refer note 43.6) and valuations for plant and machinery and building were based on the estimated 
gross replacement cost, depreciated to re�ect the residual service potential of the assets taking account of the age, condition and obsolescence. 

7.1.3 Had there been no revaluation, the book value of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery would have been Rs. 817.162 
(2023: Rs. 1,012.127) million, Rs. 1,877.328 (2023: Rs. 1,936.534) million and Rs. 12,211.22 (2023: Rs 12,732.102) million, respectively.

7.1.4 Forced sale value as per the latest revaluation report as of June 30, 2024 of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery is 
Rs. 2,960 million, Rs 2,497 million and Rs.14,889 million, respectively. 

7.1.5 The details of operating assets disposed o� during the year are as follows.

Description Mode of disposal Particulars of
buyers Relationship 

--------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) ---------------

Cost /
Revaluation

Book
value

Sale
proceeds

Gain/
loss

Items having net book 
value of Rs. 500,000 
each or more

Leasehold Land
Tmt Area
Furnace Exit Roller 
Table (Fert)
Dryer - Ultra Filter 
Model No. Ud 1650
Dryer Altas Capco 
Model Fd 450
Honda Civic Oriel 
Fhm-Dm 
3997#Bqs-550

Other assets having 
book value less than 
Rs. 500,000

372,752
11,954

11,399

2,737

1,928

3,984

7,536

412,290

44,255

372,752
7,314

6,185

1,331

937

797

1,639

390,955

11,857

287,915
6,220

10,853

1,642

586

797

8,911

316,924

10,780

 (84,837)
 (1,094)

 4,668 

 311 

 (351)

 -   

 7,272 

 (74,031)

 (1,077)

Annulment of Agreement
As per company policy

As per company policy

As per company policy

As per company policy

As per company policy

Kinza Shayan
Used internally/Majahir

Used internally/Majahir

Used internally/Majahir

Used internally/Majahir

Mazhar Hussain

Director
Self/Vendor

Self/Vendor

Self/Vendor

Self/Vendor

Employee

2024

2023

7.1.6 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:     
    

 Cost of sales – production of bars 33.1  522,532   491,964 
 Cost of sales – production of billets 33.2  396,748  346,465 
 Distribution costs 34  60,867  50,569 
 Administrative expenses 35  57,801  31,748 
   1,037,948  920,746

7.1.7 Leasehold land as at June 30, 2023 includes land purchased from a related party with the title in process of being transferred in the name of the 
Company. 

Note
2024 2023

-------- (Rupees in ‘000’) ---------
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7.2.1 During the year, borrowing costs have been capitalized amounting to Rs. 22.109 million (2023: Rs. 20.189 million) by using capitalization rate of 3.25% 
to 24.01% (2023: 3.25% to 24.01%).

7.2 Capital work-in-progress

(Note 7.2.1)

Opening balance  
Additions during the year  
Transfer to operating �xed assets  
Closing balance  

1,631,310
474,614

(347,483)
1,758,441

1,240,403
427,881

(296,212)
1,372,072

270,907
46,733

(51,271)
266,369

120,000
 -

-
120,000

------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000’) ------------------------------

Leasehold
land Civil works Plant and

machinery

2024

Total

Opening balance  
Additions during the year  
Transfer to operating �xed assets  
Closing balance  

1,787,080
1,507,969

(1,663,740)
1,631,309

668,542
1,269,470
(697,610)
1,240,402

1,043,538
193,499

(966,130)
270,907

75,000
45,000

-
120,000

------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000’) ------------------------------

Leasehold
land Civil works Plant and

machinery

2023

Total

8.   RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS

 Balance as at July 01   135,731  76,410 
 Additions  4,654  102,284 
 Depreciation charge  8.1  (40,147) (42,963)
 Balance as at June 30  100,238  135,731 

 Balance as at June 30
 Cost  240,042  235,388 
 Accumulated depreciation  (139,804) (99,657)
 Net book value  100,238  135,731
 
 Depreciation rate (%)  7 to 34  7 to 34 

8.1 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

 Distribution costs 34  17,198  17,618 
 Administrative expenses 35  22,949  25,345 
    40,147   42,963 

8.2 The right-of-use-assets comprise of o�ce premises acquired on lease by the Company for its operations. 

Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Net carrying value basis     
   

 Balance as at July 01  6,600  11,872 
 Additions (at cost)   -    2,347 
 Amortization charge 9.1  (3,413) (7,619)
 Balance as at June 30  3,187  6,600 

 Gross carrying value basis

 Cost 9.2  74,703  74,703 
 Accumulated amortization  (71,516) (68,103)
 Net book value  3,187  6,600 

 Useful life (in years)  3 to 5 3 to 5
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9.1 The entire amount of amortization charge for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses. 

9.2 This include items having an aggregate cost of Rs. 63.755 million (2023: Rs. 48.015 million) which have been fully amortized and are still in use of the 
Company.

10.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 30.871 million (2023: Rs.45.898 million). The 
reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans to executives is as follows:

10.2 This represents interest free loans to employees in accordance with the Company policy. These are recoverable in twelve to forty two equal monthly 
installments. However, these advances are not amortised as the impact of discounting is immaterial.

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

10 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND LOANS

 DEPOSITS

 Margin against guarantees  43,217  38,280 
 Utilities   77,305  77,305 
 Ijarah / Diminishing Musharaka  17,174  34,546 
 Container deposits  6,000  6,000 
 Rent  18,437  17,870 
   162,133  174,001
 LOANS - unsecured

 Due from:
 -    Executives 10.1  29,221  34,770 
 -    Employees  20,603  18,931 
  10.2  49,824  53,701 
 Less: Current portion
 -    Executives  17,321  10,193 
 -    Employees  19,062  23,792 
  13  36,383  33,985 
   13,441  19,716 
   175,574  193,717 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

11 STOCK-IN-TRADE

 
 Raw materials
 - In hand  4,196,151  1,911,763 
 - In transit  644,404  1,485,233 
   4,840,555  3,396,996 
 
 Work-in-process  253,890  967,718 
 
 Finished goods
 - Manufactured  2,067,571  2,727,425 
   7,162,016  7,092,139 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

 

 
 Balance at beginning of the year   34,770  45,898 
 Disbursements during the year  13,110  12,379 
 Received during the year   (18,659) (23,507)
 Balance at end of the year  29,221  34,770 
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Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
12. TRADE DEBTS

  Unsecured    
   Considered good   2,349,962  4,973,402 

    Considered doubtful  672,922  297,714 
  12.2  3,022,884  5,271,116 
    Allowance for expected credit loss 12.1  (672,922) (297,714)
   2,349,962   4,973,402 

12.1 Movement of allowance for expected credit loss

 Opening balance  297,714  187,011 
 Charge during the year  379,205  119,602 
 Write-o� during the year  (3,997) (8,899)
 Closing balance  672,922  297,714 

 The ageing of trade debts and expected credit loss thereon is as follows:

22.26%

 3,022,884 
672,922 

5.65%

 5,271,116 
297,714 

0.19%

 1,112,577 
2,122 

0.12%

 3,379,014 
3,978 

1.46%

 737,866 
10,807 

1.12%

 1,222,372 
13,645 

17.90%

 344,869 
61,723 

7.16%

 202,865 
14,525 

72.29%

 827,572 
598,270 

56.88%

 466,865 
265,566 

------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) -------------------------

Total

Days past due

1-90 Days 91-180 Days Over 180 DaysCurrent 

2024
Expected credit loss rate
Estimated total gross  
carrying amount at default
Expected credit loss

2023
Expected credit loss rate
Estimated total gross  
carrying amount at default
Expected credit loss 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
12.2 This includes balance receivable from related parties as follows:

 Hadi Akber Ali  -    824 
 Abbas Akber Ali  -    4,093 
   -    4,917 

12.3 The maximum amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 7.952 million (2023: Rs. 11.153 million). The Company 
has recognized an allowance for expected credit loss amounting to Nil (2023: Rs. 0.0145 million) as of June 30, 2024.

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----13. LOANS AND ADVANCES

 Unsecured - Considered good     
Current portion of long term loans 10  36,383  33,985 

 Advances
 -to suppliers  20,760  10,805 
 -to employees  2,979  704 
    60,121    45,494 
 Considered doubtful  1,376  1,376 
    Less: allowance for expected credit losses  (1,376) (1,376)
   -    -  
    60,121   45,494 
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14 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

 
 Trade deposits
    Container deposits  -    3,400 
    Ijarah  16,480   - 
   16,480 3,400
 Short term prepayments
    Insurance  7,856  6,524 
    Software maintenance  4,241  9,247 
    Others   1,458  1,596 
   13,555  17,367 
   30,035  20,767 

15 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

 This represents term deposits receipts held with Islamic Bank as a lien for guarantee issued by the bank on behalf of the Company and carries pro�t 
at the rate ranging from 9.74% to 13.63% (2023: 7.4% to 10.9%) per annum having maturity in March 2025 (2023: June 2023).

16 OTHER RECEIVABLES

 
 Sales tax refundable  980,559  210,435 
 Receivable from sale of property, plant and equipment  6,873   -   
 Accrued pro�t on term deposits receipts and savings account  1,201  801 
   988,633  211,236

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 Cash in hand  60,607  9,307 
 
 Bank balances
    Current accounts  134,195  261,278 
    Saving accounts 17.1  642  1,328 
   134,837  262,606 
   195,444  271,913 

17.1 These carry markup at rates ranging from 6.75% to 18% (2023: 6.75% to 20.5%) per annum.

18 NON CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

 Warehouse- Islamabad     
    

 Leasehold land   300,000   -   
 Building  60,670   -   
 Plant and machinery  62,500  -   
  18.1  423,170   -   

18.1 In order to meet the working capital requirements and to settle the liabilities, the Company has decided to sell its Islamabad warehouse which 
comprise of leasehold land, building  and machinery installed therein, having carrying amount of Rs. 300 million, Rs. 60.670 million and Rs. 62.50 
million respectively  and has recieved token money amounting to Rs. 10 million in this regard. The Company has classi�ed these assets, in accordance 
with the requirement of IFRS-5 " Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations".

 As per valuation carried out by M/S KG Traders, the market value of leasehold land, building and plant and machinery was Rs. 300 million, Rs. 60.670 
million and Rs. 62.50 million, respectively.

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
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Note

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

420,000,000
80,000,000

500,000,000

420,000,000
80,000,000

500,000,000

4,200,000
800,000

5,000,000

4,200,000
800,000

5,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Cumulative preference shares of 
      Rs. 10/-each

Number of shares

2024 2023 

263,883,930
33,127,497

297,011,427

263,883,930
33,127,497

297,011,427

2,638,839
331,275

2,970,114

2,638,839
331,275

2,970,114
19.4

Issued for cash 
Issued for consideration other than cash

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 

19.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital   

19 SHARE CAPITAL  
   
19.1 Authorized capital

19.3 Following is the detail of shares held by the related parties:

 Mr. Abbas Akberali   91,294,723 91,294,723
 Ms. Mahvash Akberali   55,732,930 55,732,930
 Mr. Hadi Abbas Akberali  37,732,212 37,732,212
 Mr. Shayan Akberali  37,441,123 35,694,840
 Ms. Kinza Shayan  100 1,746,383
 Ms. Salsabil Akberali  1,254,759 1,254,759
 Mr. Badar Kazmi  1,000 1,000
 Ms. Mariam Akberali  1,000 1,000
 Mr. Teizoon Kisat  500 500
 Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji  12,000 12,000
   223,470,347  223,470,347

19.4 This includes 952,497 ordinary shares issued to various shareholders of the Company against plant and machinery and 32,175,000 ordinary shares of 
the Company against purchase of other �xed assets.

19.5 Voting rights, Board selection, right of �rst refusal and block voting are in proportion to the shareholding.

20 REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 Balance as at July 01  4,538,802  4,641,868
 Surplus on revaluation during the year  9,030,438   -   
 Less: Land sold during the year  (177,785)  -   
 Transfer to unappropriated pro�t in respect of incremental depreciation charged during the year (127,291) (103,066)
 Balance as at June 30  13,264,164  4,538,802
 
 Related deferred tax liability
 Balance as at July 01  (1,016,841) (936,209)
 Charge on surplus for the year  (3,078,803)  -   
 Change of deferred tax rates  -    (120,828)
 Incremental depreciation charged during the year  49,643  40,196 
 Balance as at June 30   (4,046,001) (1,016,841)
   9,218,163  3,521,961 

20.1 Breakup of revaluation surplus net of deferred tax is as follows:

 Leasehold land  2,882,839 1,924,554
 Buildings on leasehold land  765,609 317,587
 Plant and machinery  5,569,715 1,279,820
   9,218,163 3,521,961

2024 2023
(Restated)

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

2024 2023

---- (No. of shares) ----
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 Conventional
    Term Finance Facility 21.1  2,284,532  3,668,355 
    Temporary Economic Re�nance Facility (TERF) 21.4  59,814  49,156 
   2,344,346  3,717,511 
 Islamic
    Islamic Temporary Economic Re�nance Facility (ITERF) 21.2  883,359  852,307 
    SBP Financing for Renewable Energy 21.3  375,447  419,713 
    Diminishing Musharaka 21.5  399,331  515,048 
   1,658,138 1,787,068
   4,002,484 5,504,579
 Current portion shown under current liabilities
    Conventional   (1,658,138) (345,571)
    Islamic   (2,344,346) (1,454,108)
   (4,002,484) (1,799,679)
   -    3,704,899

21.1 This represents term �nance facilities obtained from commercial banks and development �nance institution (DFI) to re�nance capital expenditure 
incurred by the company repayable in 16 and 20 quarterly installments starting from December 2021 and ending by June 2027. These carry markup 
rate ranging from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.15% to 1.50% (2023:6 months KIBOR plus 0.4% to 1.5% ). These facilities are secured against �rst pari passu 
charge over present and future �xed assets of the Company (including land, building and plant and machinery) with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2024, 
unutilized portion of the facilities is Nil (2023 Rs. 563.5 million).

21.2 This represents �nancing facility obtained from an Islamic Bank for import of machinery under Islamic TERF Scheme by SBP repayable in ten years 
through 32 equal quarterly installments starting from July 2023 and ending latest by April 2031 and has been recognised at present value 
discounted at the e�ective rate of interest. This carries mark-up at the SBP rate plus 2.25% (2023: 2.25%) per annum. The di�erential mark-up has 
been recognised as government grant income (as mentioned in note 27) which will be amortised over the useful life of the assets. This facility is 
secured by way of �rst pari passu charge over plant and machinery and mortgage charge over land and building of the Company with 25% margin 
over the facility amount.

21.3 This represents �nancing facility obtained from an Islamic Bank to setup a 7 MW Solar Power Project under SBP Financing Facility for Renewable 
Energy repayable in ten years through 34 equal quarterly installments starting from October 2021 and ending by December 2029 and has been 
recognised at present value discounted at the e�ective rate of interest. This carries mark-up at the SBP rate plus 0.95% per annum. The di�erential 
mark-up has been recognised as government grant income (as mentioned in note 27) which will be amortised over the useful life of the assets. The 
facility is secured by way of �rst pari passu charge over �xed assets of the Company with 25% margin over the facility amount. As at June 30, 2024, 
unutilized portion of the facility is Nil. (2023: Rs. 15.88 million).

21.4 This represents �nancing facility obtained from development �nance institution (DFI) for import of machinery under TERF Scheme by SBP repayable 
in eight years through 24 equal quarterly installments starting from March 2025 and ending by December 2030 and has been recognised at present 
value discounted at the e�ective rate of interest. This carries mark-up at the SBP rate plus 2.25% per annum. The di�erential mark-up has been 
recognised as government grant income (as mentioned in note 27) which will be amortised over the useful life of the assets. The facility is secured 
by way of �rst pari passu charge over �xed assets of the Company with 25% margin over the facility amount.

21.5 This represents Diminishing Musharaka facilities obtained from Islamic �nancial institutions. The facility of Faysal Bank is repayable in 8 equal 
monthly installments starting from December 2022 and ending by June 2027. These carry markup rates of 6 months KIBOR plus 1.65% per annum 
(2023: 6 months KIBOR plus 1.65% per annum).The facility of First Habib Modaraba is repayable in 48 equal monthly installmenmts starting from 
November 2020 and ending by November 2027. These carry markup rates 3 months KIBOR plus 0.75%-0.9% per annum (2023: 3 months KIBOR plus 
0.75% per annum). Diminishing Musharaka facility of Faysal Bank is secured by pari pasu charge over plant and machinery and mortgage charge over 
land and building of the company. As at June 30, 2024, unutilized portion of the First habib Modaraba is Rs. 68.918 million. (2023: Rs. 83.952 million).

21.6 As at June 30, 2024, the Company's current liabilities exceeded current assets by Rs. 10,742.58 million and as a  result of this the current ratio of the 
Company  falls below 1:1 which is required to be maintained as per existing loan agreements. As result of breach of condition of these long term 
loans, the long term loans become payable on demand. Consequently, these loans along with related deferred grant pertaining to subsidized loan 
have been classi�ed as current in accordance with the requirements of  IAS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements", The Company is in negotiations 
with the �nancial institutions for the restructuring of loans and expects that the same will be �nalised in near future and the term of the loans is 
expected to be reschedule  for a period of 8 to 10 years.

21 LONG-TERM FINANCING - secured Note

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
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2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

22 LONG TERM PROVISION

 This represents non-current portion of provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC). During the year ended 2021, the Honorable 
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) has upheld the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intravires allowing 
settlement of GIDC over a period of forty-eight monthly installments. However, the Company has �led an appeal before the Honorable High Court 
of Sindh (the Court) on the grounds that no burden of GIDC had been passed to its customers and thus, the Company is not liable to pay GIDC under 
GIDC Act 2015. The Court vide its order dated September 22, 2020 has granted stay to the Company. 

 The Company without prejudice to the suit �led, has made a provision amounting to Rs. 282.189 million under the relevant accounting standards 
and ICAP guidelines in this regard.

 
 Balance as at July 01  277,958  267,441 
 Interest expense  4,231  10,518 
   282,189  277,958 
 Less: Current Portion  (282,189)  (272,127) 

Balance as at June 30   -    5,831 

23 LOAN FROM A RELATED PARTY

 This represents loan obtained from a related party at a rate of 3 month KIBOR, repayable on December 31, 2027. The loan was obtained to meet the 
�nancial needs of the Company.

24 DEFERRED TAXATION

 Deductible temporary di�erences arising in respect of:     
    

 Deferred liability- Gratuity  (199,660)  (176,664)
 Trade debts  (262,440)  (116,108)
 GIDC Provision  (110,054)  (82,965)
 Right of use asset - lease  (54,650) (60,967)
 Others  (391) (7,382)
 Unused tax credits  (1,796,118) (2,821,262)
   (2,423,313) (3,265,348)
 Taxable temporary di�erences arising in respect of:

 Accelerated tax depreciation / amortization  3,284,485  3,344,573 
 Right-of-use-assets  39,093  52,935 
 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  4,046,000  1,016,840 
   7,369,578  4,414,348 
   4,946,265  1,149,000

24.1 Movement in temporary di�erences during the year   

2024 2023
(Restated)

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

 Deferred tax credits:
 Accelerated tax depreciation
 Surplus on revaluation of
 property, plant and equipment
 Right of use asset
 
 Deferred tax debits:
 Unused tax credit and losses
 Deferred liability- Gratuity
 Trade debts
 GIDC Provision
 Right of use asset - lease
 Others

 2,535,812 

 936,209 
 25,215 

 3,497,236 

 (2,485,273)
 (122,072)

 (61,714)
 (88,256)
 (28,633)
 (29,965)

 (2,815,913)
 681,323 

 808,761 

 -   
 27,720 

 836,481 

 (335,989)
 (45,627)
 (54,395)

 5,291 
 (32,334)

 22,583 
 (440,471)

 396,010 

 -   

 80,631 
 -   

 80,631

 -   
 (8,965)

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 (8,965)
 71,666 

 3,344,573 
 -   

 1,016,840 
 52,935 

 4,414,348 

 (2,821,262)
 (176,664)
 (116,108)

 (82,965)
 (60,967)

 (7,382)
 (3,265,348)

 1,149,000 

 (60,088)
 -   

 (49,644)
 (13,842)

 (123,574)

 1,025,144 
 (26,132)

 (146,332)
 (27,089)

 6,317 
 6,991 

 838,901
 715,327 

 -   
 -   

 3,078,803 
 -   

 3,078,803 

 -   
 3,136 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 3,136 
 3,081,939 

 3,284,485 
 -   

 4,046,000 
 39,093 

 7,369,578 

 (1,796,118)
 (199,660)
 (262,440)
 (110,054)

 (54,650)
 (391)

 (2,423,313)
 4,946,265 

Balance as at
July 01, 2022

Recognised
in statement

of pro�t
or loss

Recognised
in OCI

Balance as at
June 30,

2023

Recognised
in statement

of pro�t
or loss

Recognised
in OCI

Balance as at
June 30,

2024

------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) -------------------------------------------------
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 De�ned bene�t obligation – gratuity scheme 25.1 511,949 452,985

25.1 Amount recognised in statement of �nancial position

 Balance as at July 01  452,985 369,916
 Charge for the year 25.2 121,382 92,915
 Recognised in other comprehensive income  (8,039) 22,987
 Bene�ts paid  (54,379) (32,833)
 Balance as at July 30  511,949 452,985

25.2 Movement in the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation

 Current service cost  54,082 46,116
 Past service cost  1,321 1,339
 Interest cost  65,979 45,460
   121,382 92,915

25 DEFERRED LIABILITY- DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION Note

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

2024 2023
(Restated)

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

25.3 Historical information for de�ned bene�t plans

   Present value of de�ned 
   bene�t obligations
   
   Experience adjustment
   on plan liabilities

452,985

 22,987 

511,949

 (8,039)

369,916

 17,073 

309,193

5,608

254,748

5,325

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) -------------------------------------------------

25.4 Principal actuarial assumptions

 Expected rate of increase in salary level  13.75% 14.75%
 Valuation discount rate  14.75% 15.75%
 Average expected remaining working life of employees  9.4 years 10 years
 Expected mortality rate

2024 2023

SLIC 2001- 2005
Setback 1 Year

Age-Based

SLIC 2001- 2005
Setback 1 Year

Age-Based

25.5 Risk on account of un funded gratuity scheme

 Final salary risk

 The risk that the �nal salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what was assumed. Since the bene�t is calculated on the �nal salary 
(which will closely re�ect in�ation and other macroeconomic factors), the bene�t amount increases proportionately with the increase in salary.

 Discount rate �uctuation 

 The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market yields (at the statement of �nancial position date) on 
government bond. Accordingly, there is a risk that any increase or decrease in government bond yields will decrease or increase plan liabilities.

 Withdrawal risk

 The risk that the actual withdrawal experience is di�erent from assumed withdrawal probability. The signi�cance of the withdrawal risk varies with 
the age, service and entitled bene�ts of the bene�ciary.

 Mortality risk 

 The risk that the actual mortality experience is di�erent than the assumed mortality. This e�ect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and 
service distribution is on the higher side.
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25.6 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 

 Cost of sales – production of bars 33.1.1 33,701 24,178
 Cost of sales – production of billets 33.2.2 26,725 18,202
 Distribution costs 34.1 23,626 17,244
 Administrative expenses 35.1 37,331 33,291
   121,383 92,915

Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

25.7 Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate Salary increase

2024

    Present value of de�ned bene�t obligations

+ 100 bps

(467,551)

- 100 bps

563,504

+ 100 bps

564,275

- 100 bps

(466,130)

------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) --------------------------------

Discount rate Salary increase

2023

    Present value of de�ned bene�t obligations

+ 100 bps

(400,189)

- 100 bps

484,638

+ 100 bps

485,344

- 100 bps

(398,919)

------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) --------------------------------

25.8 As of June 30, 2024, a total of 571 employees (2023: 623) have been covered under the above scheme.

25.9 As per the recommendation of the actuary, the charge for the year ending June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs. 121.383 million.

26 LEASE LIABILITIES

 Balance as at July 01  156,326  86,767 
 Additions during the year  4,654  102,284 
 Accretion of interest  17,196  20,005 
 Payments made during the year  (38,048) (52,730)
 Balance as at June 30  140,128  156,326 

 Current portion  (34,310) (34,529)
   105,818 121,797

26.1 Maturity analysis

 Gross lease liabilities - minimum lease payments:
 Not later than 1 year  59,720  48,785 
 Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  91,330  116,596 
 Later than 5 years  35,789  50,999 
   186,839  216,380 
 Future �nance charge   (46,710) (60,054)
 Present value of �nance lease liabilities  140,128  156,326 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

27 GOVERNMENT GRANT
 
 Balance as at July 01  408,725  213,284 
 Addition during the year  -    217,354 
 Amortised during the year  (39,564) (21,913)
 Balance as at June 30  369,161  408,725 

 Current portion  21.6  (369,161) (27,161)
   -    381,564  
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Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
(Restated)

Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
(Restated)

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

27.1 As aforementioned in notes 21.2 to 21.4, the Government grant has been recorded as per the provisions of IAS-20 due to the di�erence between 
coupon and e�ective interest rates of the aforementioned �nancial liabilities.

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 Creditors  1,325,929  3,989,893 
 Accrued liabilities  511,625  318,269 
 Workers’ Welfare Fund 28.1  128,025  202,477 
 Levy 5.33 488,193  256,558 
 Withholding tax payable  20,781  35,929 
   2,474,553 4,803,126

28.1 This represents liability pertaining to �nancial years ended June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2018. The amount is still outstanding as the matter is pending 
adjudication at the Honorable High Court of Sindh (the Court) due to the 18th amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan.

29 INTEREST / MARK-UP ACCRUED

 Long term �nancing  174,025 95,826
 Short term borrowings  1,251,924 584,723
 Murabaha  31,708  28,393
   1,457,657 708,942
 Related parties  61  91,342
   1,457,718 800,284

30 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

 Secured
    Conventional mode
       Cash �nance 30.1 891,487 766,716
       Finance against trust receipts 30.4 7,903,905 3,580,724
       Running �nance 30.2 2,435,960 1,786,948
       Short term loan 30.6 151,632 1,404,000
   11,382,984 7,538,388
    Islamic mode
       Running �nance 30.2  812,008   185,849 
       Murabaha 30.5 544,644 366,968
       Istisna 30.3 5,122,321 3,606,900
   6,478,973 4,159,717
   17,861,957 11,698,105 

30.1 This represents working capital facilities availed from various conventional banks carrying markup / pro�t of 1 month KIBOR plus 1% per annum 
(2023: 1 month KIBOR + 1% per annum).

30.2 This represents working capital facilities availed from various Islamic banks carrying markup / pro�t ranging from 1 month KIBOR plus 0.85% to 3 
month KIBOR plus 1.50% per annum (2023: 3 month KIBOR plus 0.65% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1.50% per annum).

30.3 This represents working capital facilities availed from various Islamic banks carrying pro�t ranging from 6 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 1.15% per 
annum (2023: 6 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 1.15% per annum).

30.4 This represents working capital facilities availed from various conventional banks carrying markup/pro�t ranging from 1 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 
6 month KIBOR plus 1% per annum (2023: 3 month KIBOR plus 0.65% to 6 month KIBOR plus 1% per annum).

30.5 This represents Murabaha facilities amounting to Rs. 4,021 million (2023: Rs. 8,300 million) obtained from Islamic banks for purchase of raw material. 
These carry pro�t at the rates ranging from relevant 6 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1% per annum (2023: 3 month KIBOR plus 
0.75% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum). These facilities are secured by joint hypothecation charge over present and future current assets of 
the Company with 25% margin.

30.6 This represents working capital facilities availed from various conventional banks carrying markup/pro�t ranging from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% per 
annum (2023: 1 year KIBOR plus 1.00%  to 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% per annum).

30.7 As at June 30, 2024, the Company has unutilized facilities for short term borrowings from Islamic and conventional banks amounting to Rs. 853 
million and Rs. 2,753 million (2023: Rs. 3,521 million and Rs. 4,702 million) respectively. These facilities are secured by way of joint hypothecation 
charge over present and future current assets of the Company with 25% margin.
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31 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

31.1 Contingencies 

31.1.1 During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), Large Taxpayers’ Unit (LTU), Karachi passed an order on the 
contention that the Company had violated the provisions of Rule 58H of Chapter XI of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules, 2007 (the Rules) and 
raised an alleged demand of Rs. 2,013.620 million for the tax periods July 2013 to December 2014. The Company �led an appeal against the order 
before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) and had secured interim stay from the Honorable Sindh High Court (the Court). 

 During the year ended June 30, 2018, the ATIR has decided the case in favour of the Company. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Federal Board 
of Revenue �led reference application before the Court against ATlR's Order. Although the case is still pending adjudication, the Company based on 
the merit of the case and as per the advice of the legal advisor expects a favourable outcome on this matter and accordingly, no provision has been 
made in these �nancial statements. 

31.1.2 The Federal Board of Revenue issued Sales Tax General Order (STGO) No.18 of 2016 on March 14, 2017 and STGO No.119/2017 on August 18, 2017, 
whereby the procedure for payments and claiming adjustments of advance sales tax was amended. Before the STGOs, sales tax was being paid by the 
Company on the basis of Rules 58(H) of the Rules. The Company has challenged both the STGOs before the Sindh High Court restraining the tax 
department to calculate the sales tax liability on the basis of the said STGOs and requesting continuation of the procedure of payment and 
adjustment of advance tax on the basis of the Rules. The Court granted stay against both the said STGOs with the direction that impugned STGOs 
shall remain suspended and the Company shall be entitled for claiming adjustment of advance sales tax on the basis of the Rules. The �nancial 
exposure of the Company up to June 30, 2024 is Rs. 1,166.03 million (2023: Rs. 1,166.03 million). The management based on a legal advice is con�dent 
that the outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these �nancial statements.

31.1.3 During the year ended June 30, 2020, the DTIR, LTU, Karachi issued show-cause notice under Section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 for alleged 
non-charging of further tax on the supplies made to unregistered persons and raised an alleged demand of Rs. 305 million for the tax periods July 
2015 to June 2017. The Company had �led a Constitutional Petition before the Court which issued an interim order, restraining any coercive action 
against the Company. The stay will remain in �eld until further directions from the Court. The management, based on legal advice, is con�dent that 
the eventual outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these �nancial statements.

31.1.4 During the year ended June 30, 2021, the DCIR, LTU Karachi issued show-cause notice under Section 11(2) of the Act, for alleged non-charging of 
further tax on the supplies made to unregistered and raised an alleged demand of Rs. 1.723 billion by disallowing various expenses for the tax periods 
July 2014 to June 2020. The Company �led a constitutional petition before the Sindh High Court which issued an interim order dated December 22, 
2020, restraining any coercive action against the Company. The order will remain in force until further directions from the Sindh High Court. The 
management based on the legal advice, is con�dent that the eventual outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been 
made in this respect in these �nancial statements.

31.1.5 During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), Large Taxpayer Unit (LTU), Karachi passed an Order under 
section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) and raised an alleged demand of Rs. 72.24 million by disallowing various 
expenses for the tax year 2015. The Company is currently contesting the said order at the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). Although the case 
is still pending adjudication, the Company, based on the merits of the case and as per the opinion of its tax advisor, expects a favorable outcome. 
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these �nancial statements.

31.1.6 During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), Large Taxpayer Unit (LTU), Karachi passed an Order under 
section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and raised an alleged demand of Rs. 150.207 million for the tax year 2017. The Company led an 
appeal against the Order at the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) – (CIR-(Appeals)) and had secured an interim stay from the CIR (Appeals) 
under Section 140 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Although the case is still pending adjudication, the Company based on the merits of the case 
and as per the advice of the tax advisor expects a favorable outcome on this matter and accordingly, no provision has been made in these �nancial 
statements.

31.1.7 During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued show-cause notice dated April 05, 2022 under 
Section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby he had raised certain queries relating to apportionment of common expenses, tax credit 
under Section 65E and admissibility of provisions relating to return �led for tax year 2021 . In response, the Company �led explanation along-with 
documentary evidence. Subsequent to the year end, ACIR issued an order under Section 122(5A) of the Ordinance whereby tax demand of Rs.196.061 
million has been raised. The Company is currently contesting the said order at the ATIR. Although the case is still pending adjudication, the Company, 
based on the merits of the case and as per the opinion of its tax advisor, expects a favorable outcome. Accordingly, no provision has been made in 
these �nancial statements.

31.2 Commitments

31.2.1 Outstanding letters of credit 

 - Material  2,883,937  5,564,811 
  - Capital expenditure  34,860  356,567 
   2,918,797  5,921,378 
 Outstanding letters of guarantee   487,856  486,356 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
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31.2.2 Commitments for rentals payable under Ijarah contracts in respect of vehicles with Islamic banks are as follows:

 

 Not later than one year  25,243 40,043
 Later than one year but not later than �ve years  -    24,461

32 SALES – NET

 Local 
    Gross sales  45,667,530  53,438,364 
    Less: sales tax  (7,112,742) (7,917,618)
    Less: trade discounts  (49,481) (99,216)
   38,505,307  45,421,530 
 Export sales  270,430  71,194 
   38,775,737  45,492,724 

32.1 Revenue recognized during the year from contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year amounted to Rs. 411.313 million (2023: Rs. 773.573 
million).

33 COST OF SALES

 Manufactured stock - bars 33.1  36,185,692  38,552,914 
 Manufactured stock - billets  1,198  985,880 
 Manufactured stock - export 33.2.1  187,422   -   
   36,374,311  39,538,794 

33.1 Cost of sales – manufactured goods

 Balance as at July 01 – work in progress 11  967,718  1,245,729 
 Cost of billets manufactured internally 33.2  31,416,680   34,931,421 
 Billets sold  (1,198) (985,880)
 Purchases  -    35,282 
 Balance as at June 30 – work in progress 11  (253,890)  (967,718)
   32,129,310  34,258,834 

 Manufacturing overheads

 Stores and spares consumed  204,322  281,865 
 Salaries, wages and other bene�ts 33.1.1  494,008  422,984 
 Cartage and transport  330,013  438,769 
 Fuel, power and water  1,715,947  1,316,563 
 Depreciation 7.1.6 & 27  505,876  491,964 
 Ijarah rentals  254  517 
 Repairs and maintenance  27,628  43,652 
 Insurance  3,642  3,628 
 Rent, rates and taxes  454  114 
 Consultancy charges  289  65 
 Vehicle running expense  24,751  23,702 
 Conveyance and travelling  37,258  30,487 
 Canteen expenses  27,525  27,165 
 Others  36,583  33,217 
   3,408,549  3,114,692 
 Cost of goods manufactured  35,537,859  37,373,526 
 Cost of bars used for own use  (12,021) (11,612)
   35,525,838  37,361,914 
 Finished goods
    Opening stock  11  2,727,425  3,918,425 
    Closing stock 11  (2,067,571) (2,727,425)
   659,854  1,191,000 
   36,185,692  38,552,914 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
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33.1.1 This includes Rs. 33.701 million (2023: Rs. 24.178 million) in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts.

33.2 Cost of billets manufactured internally

 Raw material consumed 33.2.1  23,399,734  27,620,233 
 Stores and spares consumed  1,913,375 2,376,412 
 Salaries, wages and other bene�ts 33.2.2  591,341  532,631 
 Depreciation 7.1.6 & 27  373,840  324,552 
 Store and spare written o�  2,806   -   
 Physical inventory adjustment  9,281   -   
 Fuel and power  4,944,124  3,872,612 
 Ijarah rentals   -    3,003 
 Consultancy charges  260   -   
 Cartage  40,419  60,652 
 Repairs and maintenance  30,928  29,754 
 Rent, rates and taxes  719  1,894 
 Insurance  6,000  7,023 
 Conveyance and travelling  38,635  43,214
 Canteen expenses  34,990  28,773 
 Vehicle running expense  23,020  21,111 
 Others  7,206  9,557 
   31,416,680 34,931,421 

33.2.1 Raw Material Consumed

 Balance as at July 01,  11 1,911,763 5,085,067 
 Purchases  25,871,544 24,446,929 
   27,783,307 29,531,996
 Less: cost of export  (187,422) - 
 Less: Balance as at June 30,  11  (4,196,151) (1,911,763)
   23,399,734 27,620,233

33.2.2 This includes Rs. 26.725 million (2023: Rs.18.202 million) in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts. 

34 DISTRIBUTION COSTS

 Salaries, allowances and other bene�ts 34.1 271,787 238,018
 Carriage and transport   468,191 392,022
 Advertisement and sales promotion  72,837 108,893
 Depreciation 7.1.6 60,867 50,569
 Right of use asset depreciation 8.1 17,198 17,618
 Utilities  18,218 16,021
 Bundling and special order charges  76,110 73,754
 Rent, rates and taxes  2,089 1,222
 Vehicle running expense  21,999 21,386
 Travelling and conveyance  25,240 9,430
 Packing material  31,605 35,824
 Repair and maintenance  35,767 29,635
 Entertainment  7,032 8,284
 Others  5,612 6,102
   1,114,552 1,008,778

34.1 This includes Rs. 23.626 million (2023: Rs. 17.244 million) in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts.

Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
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35. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

 Salaries, allowances and other bene�ts 35.1 521,227 462,139
 Depreciation 7.1.6 57,801 31,748
 Right of use asset depreciation 8.1 22,949 25,345
 Amortisation 9 3,413 7,619
 Travelling and conveyance  11,253 5,906
 Legal and professional charges  28,463 47,379
 Research expenses  3,391 3,304
 Vehicles running expenses  46,442 37,609
 Security guard expenses  3,822 6,432
 Insurance  3,406 2,793
 Computer consumables  35,577 27,736
 Rent, rates and taxes  1,570 2,812
 Communication charges  9,885 8,969
 Printing and stationery  2,757 3,032
 Utilities  21,485 19,395
 Auditors’ remuneration 35.2 5,023 4,164
 Repairs and maintenance  43,959 38,707
 Ijarah rentals  1,864 2,870
 Others  18,111 13,155
   842,398 751,114

35.1 This includes Rs. 37.331 million (2023: Rs. 33.291 million) in respect of sta� retirement bene�ts. 

35.2 Auditors’ remuneration

 Annual audit fee   2,415  2,415 
 Review of half yearly �nancial statements and other certi�cations  1,155  1,155 
 Out of pocket expenses  1,453  594 
   5,023  4,164

36 OTHER EXPENSES

 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 7.1.5  74,031  1,077 
 Exchange loss  55,386  24,101 
 Detention charges  51,073  36,500 
 Donations 36.1 & 36.2  18,724  22,419 
    199,214  84,097 

36.1 Donations include the following donees to whom donations exceed Rs. 0.5 million.

 Dawat e Hadiya  -    2,500 
 Hunar Foundation  1,524  3,000 
 JDC Foundation  -    2,000 
 Muhammad Anwar  -    1,511 
 Pakistan National Society for Soil Mechanics & Foundation Engineering  -    1,000 
 Namal University  4,000   -   
 The Citizen Foundation  4,200   -   
 Khana Ghar  2,035  1,996 
 Misbah Quddoos  1,071   -   
   12,830  12,007  

36.2 Recipients of donations do not include any donee in which any director or his spouse had any interest except for donation paid to Hunar Foundation 
amounting to Rs. 1.52 million. Further, Mr. Abbas Akberali is also a director in Hunar Foundation.

Note
2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
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37 OTHER INCOME

 Income from �nancial assets
    Pro�t on saving accounts  105  554 
    Pro�t on term deposit reciepts  1,720  6,313 
   1,825  6,867 
 Income from non-�nancial assets
    Scrap sales  1,330  1,445 
   3,156  8,312 

38 FINANCE COSTS

 Markup / interest
 Long term �nancing  973,087  991,903 
 Short term borrowings  3,432,739  2,556,908 
 Murabaha   252,941  355,821 
 Loan from related parties  51,626  61,410 
 Lease liabilities 26  17,196  20,005 
 Gas infrastructure development cess  4,231  10,518 
 Workers' pro�t participation fund  -    14,708 
   4,731,820  4,011,273 
 Bank charges  40,596  32,006 
   4,772,416  4,043,279 

39 LEVY

 Minimum tax 39.1  485,058  255,293 
 Final tax levy  3,135  1,265 
   488,193  256,558 

39.1 This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001), representing levy in terms of requirements of 
IFRIC 21/IAS 37. (Refer note 5.32).

39.2 As at June 30, 2024, the Company has levy amounting to Rs. 2,678 million. Tax levies are allowed to be adjusted against future tax liabilities in three 
years' time. The Company based on the principle of conservatism and being prudent has provided for these levy as an expense in the �nancial year 
due to anticipating low pro�tability in the near term. However, in the future, if possibility arises, the same will be adjusted accordingly with tax 
liability.

40 TAXATION

 Current tax  40.1  -     -   
 Deferred tax  715,327  396,010 
   715,327  396,010 

40.1 The return of income for the tax year 2023 has been filed by the Company. The said return, as per the provisions of Section 120 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 has been deemed to be an assessment order passed by the Commissioner of Inland Revenue. Provision for current year is based on 
minimum tax  and final tax which are treated as levy (Note 39). Accordingly, tax reconciliation has not been presented in these financial statements.

40.2 Reconciliation of current tax charge as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in the statement of pro�t or loss account, is as follows:

 Income tax under IAS 12  - -   
 Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/IAS 37    488,193  256,558 
 Current tax liability as per Income Tax Ordinance  488,193  256,558 

 The provision of tax liability for the year contains minimum tax at 1.25% of the net turnover for the year and �nal tax regime at 1% of export proceeds.

Note
2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

Note
2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----
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41 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

 Net loss for the year   (6,106,723) (697,196)

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each  297,011,427 297,011,427

 Basic and diluted loss per share   (20.56) (2.35)

Number of shares

---------- (Rupees) ----------

Managerial remuneration
Housing allowance
Utilities & conveyance
Medical 
Gratuity
Bonus
Others

Number

 6,900 
 3,105 
 3,105 

 690 
 834 

 -   
 -   

14,634

1

 186,920 
 80,083 
 75,628 
 18,298 
 22,250 

 1,736 
 97,306 

482,221

59

210,920
90,883
86,428
20,698
25,150

1,736
97,306

533,121

61

 
 

42.3

Director Executives Total

----------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -----------------

2024

Note

 17,100 
 7,695 
 7,695 
 1,710 
 2,066 

 -   
 -   

36,266

1

Chief
Executive

Managerial remuneration
Housing allowance
Utilities & conveyance
Medical 
Gratuity
Bonus
Others

Number

 1,035 
 1,035 

 230 
 -   

 834 
 -   

 2,300 
5,434

 1 

157,923
65,030
50,286
15,728
18,579

 -   
113,868
421,414

59

176,058
73,760
58,211
17,438
21,479

 -   
116,168
463,114

 61 

 
 

42.3

Director Executives Total

----------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -----------------

2023

Note

 17,100 
 7,695 
 7,695 
 1,710 
 2,066 

 -   
 -   

36,266

1

Chief
Executive

42 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

42.1 The Chief Executive and the Chairman are provided with free use of Company maintained cars and club memberships with certain reimbursements 
pertaining to business purposes in accordance with their entitlements. Certain executives are also provided with the Company maintained cars as 
per entitlement.

42.2 The aggregate amount paid to the six Non-Executive Directors (2023: six Non-Executive Directors) as a fee for attending the meetings is Rs. 4 million 
(2023: Rs. 3.575 million).

42.3 Other includes payment against car bene�t allowance, drivers' salaries, mobile allowance, achievement of KPI, career merit points and gratuity 
contribution etc.
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---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

(Restated)

Annual Report 2024 158



43 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

 Cash �ows from operating activities

 Loss before taxation  (5,391,396) (301,186)
 Adjustments for:
    Depreciation – operating �xed assets 7.1.6  1,037,949  920,746 
    Depreciation – right-of-use-asset 8.1  40,147  42,963 
    Amortization 9  3,413  7,619 
    Allowance for expected credit loss 12.1  379,205  119,602 
    Bad debts written o� 12.1  (3,997)  (8,899)
    Unrealized exchange (gain) / loss 7.1.5  (19,109)  17,311 
    Provision for gratuity 25.2  121,382  92,915 
    Loss on disposal of operating �xed assets  74,031  1,077 
    Amortization of government grant 27  (39,564)  (21,913)
    Finance costs 38  4,755,220  4,023,274 
    Finance cost on leases 38  17,196  20,005 
 Operating pro�t before working capital changes  974,477  4,913,514 

 (Increae) / decrease in current assets:
 Stores and spares  155,736  152,491 
 Stock-in-trade  (69,877) 3,920,439 
 Trade debts  2,248,232  393,900 
 Loans and advances  (14,627) 7,953 
 Trade deposits and short term prepayments  (9,268) 10,493 
 Other receivables   (777,397) (210,970)
   1,532,799  4,274,306 
 (Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:
 Trade and other payables  (2,309,026) 2,671,619
 Contract liabilities  (41,922) (294,347)
    (2,350,948) 2,377,272
 Cash generated from operations   156,329   11,565,092

44 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash and bank balances 17  195,444  271,913 
 Running �nance 30  (3,247,969) (1,972,797)
    (3,052,524) (1,700,884)

45 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Note
2024 2023

-------- (Rupees in ‘000’) ---------

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Balance as at July 1, 2023
Received during the year
Addition of lease liabilities
Paid during the year
Reversal of long term loan
Balance as at June 30, 2024

 156,326 
 -   

 21,831 
 (38,029)

 -   
 140,128 

 5,504,579 
 -   
 -   

 (1,502,095)
 -   

 4,002,484 

 9,725,308 
 4,888,680 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 14,613,988 

 316,333 
 -   
 -   

 (3,411)
 (188,000)

 124,922 

 5,456 
 -   
 -   

 (182)
 -   

 5,274 

 15,708,002 
 4,888,680 

 21,831 
 (1,543,717)

 (188,000)
 18,886,796 

----------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) --------------------------------------------------

Long term 
Financing

Lease
Liabilities

*Short term
borrowing

Loan from
related parties

Unclaimed
dividend TotalDescription

 *The balance of short term borrowing in the statement of �nancial position includes the balance of running �nance which is the part of cash and cash 
equivalents. 
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46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of �nancial risks i.e. market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. The Company’s overall risk 
management program focuses on the unpredictability of �nancial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse e�ects on the Company’s 
�nancial performance. The Company's risk management function continues to monitor the developing situation and proactively manage any risk 
arising thereof.

 The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

46.1 Market risk           
            
 Market risk is the risk that the value of the �nancial instrument may �uctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or 

the price risk due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand 
of securities and liquidity in the market.The Company is exposed to interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk. 

46.1.1 Interest rate risk           
            
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of the �nancial instruments will �uctuate because of changes in the market interest 

rates. The Company mitigates its risk against exposure by maintaining adequate bank balances. The Company's interest rate risk arises from 
long-term �nancing, short-term borrowings, murabaha, saving accounts and term deposit receipts having �oating rates. Change in benchmark 
interest rate by 1% may have a positive or negative impact of approximately Rs. 220 million (2023: Rs. 177 million) in statement of pro�t or loss. The 
analysis is made based on the assumption that all other variables remain constant.

46.1.2 Foreign currency risk           
            
 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. It 

mainly arises where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign 
exchange rates relate primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expenses are denominated in a di�erent currency from the 
Company’s functional currency).

 Sensitivity Analysis     
    

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the US Dollar and Euro exchange rate, with all other variables 
held constant, of the company’s pro�t before taxation:

 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the e�ects on pro�t / loss for the year and assets and liabilities of the Company.

 Trade and other payables

2024

--------------------Amount in ‘000’--------------------

2023

 The following signi�cant exchange rates have been applied at the reporting dates:

 287.1  -    278.8  314.27 

----------(Rupees)---------- ----------(Rupees)----------

US Dollar

 3,896

Euro

 -   

US Dollar

 13,894

Euro

20

30 June 2024

30 June 2023

 -   
 -   

+10
-10

 -   
 -   

616
 (616)

+10
-10

 -   
 -   

 109 
 (109)

 389,905 
 (389,905)

Change in US
Dollar rate (%)

E�ect on loss
before tax

Change in
Euro rate (%)

E�ect on loss
before tax

------------------------------------------------Rupees in ‘000’---------------------------------------------
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Note
2024 2023

-------- (Rupees in ‘000’) ---------

46.1.3 Price risk

 Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of �nancial instruments will �uctuate because of changes in market prices (other 
than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors speci�c to the individual �nancial 
instruments or its issuer or factors a�ecting all similar �nancial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk.

46.2 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a �nancial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other 
party to incur a �nancial loss. Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have 
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly a�ected by changes in economic, political or 
other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments a�ecting a particular 
industry. 

 The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining 
securities where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

 Investments 15  14,289   14,289  
 Trade debts 12  2,349,962  4,973,402 
 Security deposits 14 178,613   177,401 
 Other receivables 16  8,074  801 
 Bank balances 17  134,837  262,606 
   2,685,775  5,428,499

46.2.1 Credit quality of �nancial assets

 The credit quality of �nancial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical 
information about counterparty default rates as shown below:

 The ageing of trade debts and expected credit loss thereon is as follows:

Expected credit loss rate
Estimated total gross 
carrying amount at default

Expected credit loss

22.26%

 3,022,884 

672,922 

0.19%

 1,112,577 
 

2,122 

1.46%

 737,866 

 10,807 

17.90%

 344,869 

 61,723 

72.29%

 827,572 

 598,270 

----------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) --------------------------------------------------

Total Current 1 - 90 Days 91-180 Days Over 180 Days 2024

Days past due

Expected credit loss rate
Estimated total gross 
carrying amount at default

Expected credit loss

5.65%

 5,271,116 

 297,714 

0.12%

 3,379,014 

 3,978 

1.12%

 1,222,372 

 13,645 

7.16%

 202,865 

 14,525 

56.88%

 466,865 

 265,566 

----------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) --------------------------------------------------

Total Current 1 - 90 Days 91-180 Days Over 180 Days 2023
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 Bank balances

 Ratings
 A1+   126,632  177,962 
 A-1   3,450  78,570 
 A-2   946  1,809 
 A-3   3,808   -   
 Unrated   -    4,265 
  17  134,837  262,606

 Investments

 Ratings
 AA-  - 14,289
 A-1  14,289  -   
  15 14,289 14,289

46.3 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter di�culties in raising funds to meet commitments associated with the �nancial instruments. 
The management is closely monitoring the Company’s liquidity and cash �ow position through its treasury function and ensures availability of funds 
by maintaining credit facilities available from �nancial institutions. The liquidity management also involves monitoring of liquidity ratios and 
maintaining debt �nancing plans.

 Table below summarizes the maturity pro�le of the Company’s �nancial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

Interest bearing  
   �nancial liabilities 
        Current portion of long term �nancing
        Loan from related parties 
        Long-term lease liabilities 
        Short-term borrowings 
 
Non-Interest bearing  
   �nancial liabilities 
        Trade and other payables 
        Unclaimed dividend 
        Accrued mark-up 

 4,002,484 
 -   

 7,506 
 13,181,019 

  1,965,579 
 5,274 

 1,457,718 
20,619,579

 -   
 -   

 26,804 
 4,680,938

  -   
 -   
 -   

4,707,742

 -   
 124,922 
 105,818 

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

230,741

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

4,002,484
124,922
140,128

17,861,957

1,965,579
5,274

1,457,718
25,558,062

----------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) --------------------------------------------------

Less than
3 months

3 to 12 
Months

1 to 5
Years

More than
5 years Total2024

Interest bearing  
   �nancial liabilities 
        Long term �nancing
        Loan from related parties 
        Long-term lease liabilities 
        Short-term borrowings 
 
Non-Interest bearing  
   �nancial liabilities 
        Trade and other payables 
        Unclaimed dividend 
        Accrued mark-up 

 387,814
 316,333 

 34,529 
 4,477,960 

  4,510,639
 5,456 

 800,284 
 10,533,015

 1,411,866 
 -   

 23,119 
 7,220,145 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 8,655,130 

 3,127,222 
 -   

 52,447 
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

3,179,669 

 577,677 
 -   

 46,231 
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 623,908 

 5,504,579 
 316,333 
 156,326 

 11,698,105 

  4,510,639 
 5,456 

 800,284 
 22,991,722

----------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) --------------------------------------------------

Less than
3 months

3 to 12 
Months

1 to 5
Years

More than
5 years Total2023
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46.4 Capital risk management

 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide 
adequate returns to shareholders and to bene�t other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The 
Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in 
the light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to 
shareholders or issue new shares.

 The capital structure of the Company consist of net debt consistent with other companies in the industry, the Company monitors the capital on the 
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank 
balances with lenders. Total capital is calculated as sum of equity shown in statement of �nancial position and net debt. During the year, the 
Company’s strategy was to minimize leveraged gearing. The Company �nances its expansion projects through borrowings and management of its 
working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of �nance to minimize risk. As of the date of statement of 
�nancial position, the Company was �nanced through equity and debt.

 Gearing ratio
 Long-term �nancing  21 - 3,704,899
 Current portion of long term �nancing  4,002,484 1,799,680
 Trade and other payables 28 2,474,553 4,803,126
 Contract liabilities  437,305 479,227
 Lease Liabilities 26 140,128 156,326
 Accrued mark-up 29 1,457,718 800,284
 Short-term borrowings  30 17,861,957 11,698,105
 Cash and bank balances 17  (195,444) (271,913)
 Net debt  26,178,700 23,169,734

 Share capital 19 2,970,114 2,970,114
 Reserves  2,037,724 7,884,110
 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 20 9,218,163 3,521,961
 Total Equity  14,226,001 14,376,185
 Equity and net debt  40,404,701 37,545,919

   65% 62%
46.5 Fair value measurement

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

 The carrying values of all �nancial assets and liabilities re�ected in the �nancial statements approximate fair values.

 The following table shows assets recognized at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value is based on:

 -  Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
 - Level 2: Those involving Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices)  

or indirectly (derived from prices); and
 - Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

46.6 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values

 (a)    Currently, no assets are classi�ed in level 1.
 (b)    Assets included in level 2 comprise of property, plant and equipment. 
 (c)    Currently, no assets are classi�ed in level 3.

46.6.1 There were no transfers amongst the levels during the year.

Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

Property, plant and equipment  27,818,643  20,219,565  27,818,643- -

---------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000’) -------------------------------------------------------

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

2024

Total Total

2023
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Note 2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

47.1 Financial assets 

 At amortised cost
    Investment 15  14,289  14,289 
    Trade debts 12  2,349,962  4,973,402 
    Security deposits 14  178,613  177,401 
    Other receivables 16  8,074  801 
    Cash and bank balances 17  195,444  271,913 

47.2 Financial liabilities

 Long term �nancing 21  -    3,704,899 
 Current portion of long term �nancing 21  4,002,484  1,799,680 
 Loan from related parties 23  124,922  316,333 
 Lease liabilities 26  140,128  156,326 
 Trade payable  28  1,965,579  4,510,639 
 Interest / mark up accrued 29  1,457,718  800,284 
 Short term borrowing 30  17,861,957  11,698,105 
 Unclaimed dividend  5,274  5,456 

48 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and key management personnel of the Company. Details of transactions with related 
parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these �nancial statements are as follows:

48.1 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place:

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Associate
Associate
Associate

Shareholder

 6,853 
 4,113 

 10,000 
 15,000 

 -   
 881 
 881 

5,500
5,500

 -   
 4,093 
 7,985

 267 
 3,000 

 310 

 22,292  

 17,485 
 25,506 
 83,333 
 62,196 

 142,118 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 188,000 
 3,036 

- 

 975 
 1,524 

 -   

 9,447

Transaction with directors
Mr. Abbas Akberali
Mr. Hadi Akberali
Mr. Abbas Akberali
Mr. Hadi Akberali
Mr. Hadi Akberali
Mr. Abbas Akberali
Mr. Shayan Akberali
Mr. Abbas Akberali
Mr. Shayan Akberali
Ms. Kinza Shayan
Mr. Abbas Akberali
Mr. Hadi Akberali

Transactions with associates
Hobnob Bakeries
Hunar Foundation
Amreli Foundation

Transactions with shareholder
Ms. Salsabil Akberali

Name of related party Relationship

Payment of interest to related parties
Payment of interest to related parties
Principal repayment to related parties
Principal repayment to related parties
Loan received related parties
Sale of vehicle to Director
Sale of vehicle to Director
Purchase of vehicle from Director
Purchase of vehicle from Director
Annulement of land
Sale of bars
Sale of bars

Entertainment expense
Donation
Donation

Payment of rent and security deposit of rented o�ce

Transactions during the year
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48.1.1 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place:

48.1.2 None of the key management personnel had any arrangements with the Company other than the employment contract.

48.1.3 All the transactions with related parties are entered in accordance with the terms of agreement as approved by Board of Directors of the Company.

49 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

49.1 Billets

 Plant - name plate capacity  600,000 600,000
 Available capacity  492,000 492,000
 Actual production  167,043 380,817

49.2 Bars

 Plant - name plate capacity  605,000 605,000
 Available capacity  605,000 605,000
 Actual production  168,538 370,566

50 OPERATING SEGMENTS

 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. Total sales of the Company relating to customers in 
Pakistan were 99.30% during the year ended June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023: 99.84%).

 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2024 and 2023 are located in Pakistan.

 Revenue from export sales represents 0.7% (June 30, 2023: 0.16% ) of the total net revenue of the Company.

 Sales to twenty major customers of the Company are around 15% during the year ended June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023: 25%).

50.1 Geographical information

 The Company’s gross revenue from external customers by geographical location is detailed below: 

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

Paramount Steel Company   
Shershah Industries (Private) Limited
Hobnob Bakeries   
Amreli Holding (Private) Limited   
Hi-Tech Metals Special Economic Zone (Private) Limited
The Hunar Foundation   
Amreli Global Enterprises (Private) Limited
Amreli Foundation   
Ms. Salsabil Akberali   
Mr. Hadi Akberali   
Ms. Kinza Shayan   
Mr. Abbas Akberali     

 

Associate (common directorship)  
Associate (common directorship)  
Associate (common directorship)  
Associate (common directorship)  
Associate (common directorship)  
Associate (common directorship)  
Associate (common directorship)  
Associate (common directorship)  
Shareholder  
Director  
Director  
Director    

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

0.42%
12.70%

 - 
30.74%

Company Name Basis of association
Aggregate % of

shareholding
S.No

 Year end balances

 Loan from Mr. Hadi Akberali  124,922  45,000 
 Loan from Mr. Abbas Akberali  -    83,333 
 Loan form Ms. Kinza Shayan  -    188,000 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

2024 2023

---- (Metric Ton) ----
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 Domestic sales  45,667,530  53,438,364 
 Export sales  270,430  71,194 
   45,937,960  53,509,558 

50.1.1 Region wise export sales are as under:

 Indonesia  132,584   -   
 China   137,847  71,194 
   270,431  71,194 

51 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
 
 The total number of employees and average number of employees at year end and during the year respectively are as follows:

 Total number of employees’ as at June 30  662 749
 Average number of employees’ during the year  727 757

52 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

 The Board of directors in its meeting held on September 23, 2024 has decided to temporarily suspend operations at its oldest Karachi-based 
manufacturing facility, SITE Rolling Mill (SRM), which represents 30% of the Company's total production capacity. The situation will be reviewed in six 
months, and the facility may reopen if conditions improve.

53 GENERAL

53.1 Figures have been rounded o� to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

54 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

54.1 Corresponding �gures have been reclassi�ed / rearranged, wherever necessary.

55 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

 These �nancial statements were authorized for issue on 23 September 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company.    
     
  

      
     
 

2024 2023

---- (Rupees in ‘000’) ----

-------- (Number) --------

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Chief Executive O�cer Director Chief Financial O�cer

Annual Report 2024 166



BEYOND
THE BELL

OTHER INFORMATION





Investors’ Education - Jama Punji



E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM
Mandatory Credit of Dividend into Bank Account

To:  _____________________________                               Date:_________________
        _____________________________
        _____________________________

The undersigned being member of AMRELI STEELS LIMITED (the Company), hereby authorize the Company that all my cash dividend amounts declared 
by the Company, from time to time, be credited into the bank account as per following details:

(i) Shareholder's Details

NOTE: 
 1. Please provide complete IBAN after consultation with your bank branch. In case of any error or omission in IBAN, the Company will  
  not be held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your cash dividend payment.
 2. In case of physical shares, a duly �lled-in e-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted with the Company’s Share Registrar. While for  
  shares held in CDC, E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted directly to member’s broker/participant/CDC as required by the   
  Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited vide its Circular No. 16 of 2017 issued on 31 August 2017.

(ii) Shareholder's Bank Details

It is stated that the above mentioned information is correct that I will intimate the change in the above mentioned information to the Company and the 
concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

____________________________________________   
Signature of the member/shareholder       
(Please a�x company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Name of the shareholder

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID & Sub Acc. No./CDC IAS Account

CNIC/NICOP No. (Please attach copy)

Passport No.[in case of Foreign Shareholder]  (Please attach copy)

Landline Phone No.

Cellphone No.

Email Address. 

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank's Name

Branch Name and Address

 International Bank Account Number (IBAN) (24 digit)



The Company Secretary
Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, S.I.T.E, Karachi, Pakistan
UAN: 111-267-354
Fax: +92-21-32587240, 38798328
URL: www.amrelisteels.com
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Proxy Form

The Company Secretary
Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, S.I.T.E, Karachi.

I/We __________________________________ S/o, W/o ________________________________, Resident of  ________________________________ being member(s) of 

Amreli Steels Limited (the Company), holding ___________________________ ordinary shares as per Registered Folio No. / CDC Participant I.D No. ______________ and 

Sub Account No. _______________hereby appoint __________________________ S/o., W/o _______________________ as my / our proxy to attend, act and vote on my 

/ our behalf at the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 26th day of October 2024 at 3:00 pm and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ____ day of __________________ 2024.

_______________________       
Signature of Shareholder

-1)

Signature:                     _____________________________

Name:                   _____________________________

CNIC / Passport No.  _____________________________

Address:                    _____________________________

_____________________________________________

-2)

Signature:                     _____________________________

Name:                   _____________________________

CNIC / Passport No.  _____________________________

Address:                    _____________________________

_____________________________________________

WITNESS: 

 1. The proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered O�ce of the Company, A-18, S.I.T.E. Karachi, not less than 48 hours  
  before the time of holding the meeting.
 2. All members are entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting.
 3. If a member appoints more than one proxy for the annual general meeting and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by the   
  member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.
 4. Members are requested to notify any changes in their address immediately.

NOTE: 

A�x
Revenue 
Stamp



The Company Secretary
Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, S.I.T.E, Karachi, Pakistan
UAN: 111-267-354
Fax: +92-21-32587240, 38798328
URL: www.amrelisteels.com
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DIVIDEND CLAIM FORM
Mandatory Credit of Dividend into Bank Account

To:  _____________________________                               Date:_________________
        _____________________________
        _____________________________

I/We hereby claim below mentioned dividend, which are appearing as outstanding in the books of the Company belong to me/us. I/we con�rm that no 
payment for the said dividend as mentioned below have been received from the Company in the past:

Personal information

Unclaimed Dividend information 

I/We attach the following documents in support of my/our claim: (Please mark (√) on appropriate box)

Folio or CDC Account No

Name as per CNIC

Father’s/Husband’s Name

CNIC Number

Mailing Address

Contact Details Phone No.

Mobile No.

Email Address

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Amount of Unclaimed Dividend 

Signatures as per Company’s records

i. Copy of CNIC of the shareholder(s)
ii. Unclaimed Dividend warrant, if available and not encashed earlier by the shareholders(s) 
iii. Attested copy of electricity /gas/telephone bill showing the current address, if it di�ers with company’s record, alongwith request to record the  
 new address 
iv. Attested copy of Death and succession Certi�cates, if the shareholder has expired. The dividend will be paid after transfer of shares in the name  
 of legal heirs 



The Company Secretary
Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, S.I.T.E, Karachi, Pakistan
UAN: 111-267-354
Fax: +92-21-32587240, 38798328
URL: www.amrelisteels.com
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STANDARD REQUEST LETTER FOR HARD COPY OF AMRELI STEELS LIMITED 
ANNUAL REPORT

Date:  _____________________________

The Share Registrar 
Amreli Steels Limited 
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited
Plot No.32-C, Jami Commercial Street-2
D.H.A, Phase-VII, Karachi.
Email: sfc@thk.com.pk

Copy to: 
The Company Secretary 
Amreli Steels Limited 
A-18, S.I.T.E.,
Karachi 
Email: investor-relations@amrelisteels.com

_____________________________
Member’s Signature (Please a�x company stamp in case of corporate entity) 

Yours truly,

Name of Member(s)

CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No.

CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No.(please attach copy)

Address of Shareholder

Land Line Telephone No. (if any)

Cell No. (if any)

Email Address

Subject: Request for Hard Copy of Annual Report of Amreli Steels Limited (the “Company”) 

Dear Sir, 

As noti�ed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan [“SECP”] vide its S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 allowed the Companies to 
transmit annual audited �nancial statements/ notice of general meeting(s)/ annual report to the members for future years commencing from the �nancial 
year 2023 through QR enabled code and weblink instead of transmitting the same through CD/DVD/USB, at their registered addresses, except for those who 
opt for a hardcopy of the Annual Audited Accounts by �lling out the details below and sending it to the Company’s share registrar and Company Secretary. 

I, being a registered member of Amreli Steels Limited, with my particulars as mentioned below, hereby request that my name be added to the list of 
members of the Company who opt for delivery of a hardcopy of the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company at their registered addresses instead of 
providing the same through QR enabled code and weblink on registered email. 



sales@amrelisteels.com             www.amrelisteels.com             021-111-267354 (AMRELI)


